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NU SKIN
ThE DIFFERENCE DEMONSTRATED

With three consecutive years of record breaking revenue

were climbing to greater heights in virtually every aspect

of our businesswith our sights keenly focused on reaching our

goal of becoming the worlds leading direct selling company

Even as many areas within the global economy continued to struggle to

regain their footing we continued to elevate our performance in 2010 As

we anticipated we met or exceeded virtually all of our operational targets

which led to exceptional annual results

Generated $1.54 billion in revenue 15 percent improvement over the prior year

Improved our operating margin by 300 basis points or 220 basis points excluding

restructuring in the prior year to 14.1 percent of revenue

Generated earnings per share of $2.11 compared to $1.40 or $1 .51 excluding

restructuring in the prior year

Increased the number of executive distributors by percent

Posted ourfirstever$400 million revenuequarterinthefourth quarterof 2010

Improved our cash position by $72 miLlion to $230 million while paying

$37 million in debt and repurchasing $59 million of company stock

Increased dividend distributions for the enviable tenth consecutive year paying

more than $30 million in dividends the equivalent of $0.50 per share



BUILDING FOR THE FUTURE

In 2011 we wilt also break ground

on the Nu Skin Enterprises Global

Innovation Center This $85

million facility will significantly

expand our corporate presence but

more importantly will give us

platform to continue to innovate both

within our product lines as well as

within our direct sales business

model We believe Nu Skin is known

as the most innovative company

in direct selling We intend to

maintain that reputation

As good as these results are the true measure of our success is found in the positive

impact we are having on the lives of people around the world In 2010 an incredible

number of people chose to join our distributor ranks to help them achieve their personal

and professional goals With an innovative product portfolio generous compensation

plan and devoted and talented distributor leadership we wer.e able to help more people

grow their businesses as demonstrated by solid growth in both active and executive-

level distributors and record-level payout of sales commissionsnearly $650 million

We are proud of the incredibly impressive group of people who comprise the

Nu Skin family globally Not only did we elevate our level of financial success

but our collective force for good culture helped us to reach another important

milestonedonating more than 200 million meals to malnourished children

through our Nourish the Children initiative

Equally inspiring was the way our global family came together in the aftermath of

the recent earthquake tsunami and nuclear crisis that have caused havoc in areas

of Japan our largest market Our thoughts immediately turned to the safety and

well being of the tens of thousands of loyal Nu Skin Japan distributors employees

and customers Our worldwide distributors and employees quickly rallied together

to offer relief to those in Japan valiantly confronting unforeseeable hardships Given

our history in Japan understanding of the culture and resiliency of our Japanese

distributor leaders we have no doubt that the people of the land of the rising sun

will successfully tackle these challenges and emerge even stronger

KEYS TO ELEVATING GROWTH

With great run over the last few years some may wonder whether Nu Skin can

sustain growth and if we have what it takes to continue to elevate our results

To answer this questionyes we can and yes we will

FavorabLe Market Trends

We continue to leverage the socio-economic and industry trends that are driving

people toward anti-aging and home-based businesses For example take the

appeal of the direct selLing channel According to the World Federation of direct

Selling Associations WFDSA nearly 65 million people worldwide are participating

in direct selling generating more than $114 billion in sales

Over the past years the direct sales channel has grown solid percent Nu Skin

has strong presence in the largest direct selling markets of the United States

Japan and Mainland China and continues to attract the best of the best to its direct

selling business opportunity

Another global trend that bodes well for Nu Skin is the aging demographic and the

expanding anti-aging market Expected to be the next trillion-dollar industry the

anti-aging market continues to grow at remarkable pace This is understandable

when you consider that by 2025 there will be an estimated 832 million people over

the age of 65 representing 10.4 percent of the worlds population People may not

mind getting old but they do mind looking and living old Our products and business

opportunity are targeted to address this large and rapidly growing market

footnote xAccording to statistics from the United Nations Population Division

We have estabHshed sol.id financial foundation and cu.ture of innovation

that wili continue to provide ample ammunition to hel.p us sustain our

growth over the next decade In 201 wet.l bui.d on our success by focusing

on six key factors that wi1 he.p elevate our business
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AN INNOVATIVE AND EXCLU

SIVE ANTI-AGING PORTFOLIO

The second factor contributing

to our continued success is our

innovative anti-aging product

pipeline We continue to be
lieve and science continues

to confirm that the future of

anti-aging technologies lies

within the human genome
Based on decades of science

we are elevating anti-aging

technology by targeting the

sources of aging Our propri

etary ability to identify target

and reset groups of age
reLated genes to more youthful

activity levels continues to be

well received in the mar
ketplace and is consistently

validated scientificaLly

During 2010 our scientists

were invited to give more than

20 presentations at 11 different

academic conferences around

the world These presenta
tions discussed the genetic

basis of aging and the identifi

cation of nutritional interven

tions that target aging at its

source and promote healthy

life span We are in the very

earLy days of scientific discov

eries on this front and will

continue to broaden our reach

in taking this message to

Targeting aging at its

source

consumers around the world

In 2010 we provided glimpse

of ageLOCs potential with

the highly successful gLobal

rollout of the ageLOC Trans

formation skin care system
The Transformation System

generated about $210 million

of revenue in 2010a remark

able number for the first year

of sales Add to this the sales

from the Galvanic Spa and

related gels and 2010 ageLOC
skin care revenue was ap
proximateLy $372 million or

24 percent of our total annual

revenue We are pleased with

these initial ageLOC results

and believe it reflects the

great market demand that is

possible for our ageLOC anti-

aging portfolio

In 2011 we are infusing

ageLOC science into our nu
tritional product offering We

have solid base to work from

when it comes to nutrition

with more than 40 percent of

our revenue coming from our

Pharmanex nutrition line

In the fourth quarter of 2010

sales of our flagship nutrition

product LifePak increased

percent despite the fact that

the bright lights have really

been focused on the skin care

side of our business In the

latter half of the year we took

ageLOC inside with the intro

duction of ageLOC Vitality in

the United States and Japan
and in the fall of this year we

will initiate the global launch

of new blockbuster supplement

that features ageLOC science

and proven anti-aging ben

efits We are optimistic that

the introduction of ageLOC
into our Pharmanex product

line will enable us to sustain

growth in 2011

REVOLUTIONARY

DISCOVERY

With exclusive access to 30

years of genetic anti-aging

research Nu Skins scien

tific team has identified key

groups of age-related genes

called Youth Gene Clusters

that influence how we age
Nu Skins proprietary ageLOC
science identifies targets

and resets these Youth Gene

Clusters to more youthful

gene expression pattern
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THE CONVERSION OF

INNOVATION INTO REVENUE
The third factor weighing

in our favor is our ability to

convert innovation to revenue

We are spending considerable

time and management atten

tion to refine the manner in

which we launch new prod
ucts We want to maximize

the impact of new products

while minimizing sales canni

balization of existing products

We have made significant

strides in this regard as we

refine best practices from

around the world in outstand

ing markets like South Korea

and Southeast Asia Not only

is our ability to convert innova

tion to revenue evident in the

strong sales of ageLOC prod

ucts but also in our increas

ingly compelling business

opportunity We are continually

infusing innovative features

into the business opportunity

to help generate distributor

success and keep the opportu

nity highly attractive In 2010

we saw an percent increase

in the number of executive

level distributors and per
cent increase in the number

of active distributors Nu Skin

sales leaders are the envy of

the direct selling world These

highly capable and motivating

leaders give us great confidence

in the future

HEALTHY GLOBAL

REVENUE MIX

Just few years ago Japan

represented over 60 percent

of our global sales mix Today

Japan represents 30 percent

of global revenue Our revenue

mix is much more diverse than

it has ever been leaving us

less dependent on any single

market Emerging markets

in particular are becoming

much more significant compo
nent of our business We are

enjoying particularly robust

growth in Greater China and

Southeast Asiatwo regions

with great potential and

population that has strong

desire for entrepreneurial

opportunities In 2010 The

South Asia/Pacific region

grew by more than 50 percent

with Thailand and Malaysia

accounting for more than

half of regional sales And we

continue to be very optimistic

about our potential in Greater

China The crouching tiger in

Mainland China is springing

forward at tremendous pace
In 2010 the region accounted

for 17 percent of our global

revenue By 2015 we expect

the region to represent 20

percent of global sales

LOOK FEEL AND LIVE YOUNGER

Amy Yip pictured here with her son is 50 years young She uses ageLOC products

for their anti-aging benefits and to help build her Nu Skin business Prior to becoming

distributor Yip and her husband had distinguished careers in investment banking

Our Nu Skin business enables us to have wholesome and complete Life with better

health the flexibility to enjoy our Lives and financial freedom



INCREASING OPERATIONAL

EFFICIENCIES

The fifth factor positively

impacting our business is our

continued efforts to increase

operational efficiency In 2006

our operating margin stood at

4.9 percent or 7.8 percent

excluding restructuring We

have made steady progress

over the past few years in

improving profitability In

2010 our operating margin

improved to 14.1 percent In

the mid-term we believe we

can sustain an operating

margin better than 16 percent

as we continue to leverage

revenue growth

2007 2008 2009 2010

Operating

Margin
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G4J%P RECONCILATION TABLE 2007

OPERATING MARGIN 6.1%

PERCENTAGE IMPACT OF RESTRUCTURING 1.7%

OPERATING MARGIN EXCLUDING RESTRUCTURING CHARGES 76%

EARNINGS PER SHARE $0.67

IMPACT OF RESTRUCTURING $0.17

EARNINGS PER SHARE EXCLUDING RESTRUCTURING CHARGES $0.84

2009 2010

11.1% 14.1%

0.8%

11.9%

$1.40

$0.11

$1.51

14i%

$2.11

$2.11
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ELEVATING AND

ALIGNING MANAGEMENT

PERFORMANCE
This leads to final factor that

we would cite in support of

our plan to elevate our rev-

enue and earnings In 2007

we initiated performance-

based incentive plan that had

jumbo-option grants vest on

the achievement of $1.50 and

then $2.00 of EPS When these

options were issued we were

coming off an EPS level of

about $0.75 so the $2.00 goal

seemed like bit of stretch

But our team rallied around

the objective and achieved

the $2.00 EPS level two years

ahead of plan proving that for

us performance incentives

work Recently our Board

of Directors approved new

management performance-

based incentive to broader

group of managers that will

have similar equity incentives

vest at $3.00 $3.50 and $4.00

of EPS achieved by the year

2015 So our sights are set on

new target We have plan

in place to achieve that goal

We feet its realistic and our

team is enthusiastically going

about executing our plan

ogeLoc
LAUNCH PROCESS

Nu Skins unique product launch process focuses on

increasing global synergy around condensed product

launch schedules This enables our distributors to

work from the same blueprint allowing for increased

alignment productivity and momentum

CD
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Can we sustain growth Yes we can We have the tools and commitment we
need to continue to elevate our business Our global management team is

energized and aligned around our key growth drivers

As we move closer to achieving our goal of becoming the leading direct

selling company in the world we draw great strength from the global family

of Nu Skin distributors and employees who are improving their lives and

the lives of others through our innovative products our rewarding business

opportunity and an enriching and uplifting culture

Its great time to be with Nu Skin As we continually elevate our business

the future looks brighter than ever

Sincerely

BHke Roney

CHAIRMAN

NU SKIN ENTERPRISES

Steven Lund Truman Hunt

VICE CHAIRMAN

NU SKIN ENTERPRISES

PRESIDENT CEO
NU SKIN ENTERPRISES
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

Mark One
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15D OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010

OR

LI TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15D OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission file number 001-12421

NUSKIN
ii THE DIFFERENCE

NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC
Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Delaware 87-0565309

State or other jurisdiction
75 WEST CENTER STREET IRS Employer

of incorporation or PROVO UT 84601 Identification No
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of each class Name of exchange on which registered

Class common stock $001 par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the

Securities Act Yes NoLI

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section

15d of the Act Yes El No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13

or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period

that the Registrant was required to file such reports and has been subject to such filing requirements for

the past 90 days Yes No LI

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate

Website if any every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of

Regulation S-T 232.405 of this chapter during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the

Registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes No LI



Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K229.405

of this chapter is not contained herein and will not be contained to the best of the Registrants knowledge

in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any

amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accel

erated filer or smaller reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer

and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer E1 Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer EJ Do not check if smaller reporting company Smaller Reporting Company

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the

Act Yes No l1

Based on the closing sales price of the Class common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on June

30 2010 the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approxi

mately $1.2 billion All executive officers and directors of the Registrant and all stockholders holding more

than 10% of the Registrants outstanding voting stock other than institutional investors such as registered

investment companies eligible to file beneficial ownership reports on Schedule 13G have been deemed solely

for the purpose of the foregoing calculation to be affiliates of the Registrant

As of February 2011 61821041 shares of the Registrants Class common stock $.001 par value per

share and no shares of the Registrants Class common stock $001 par value per share were outstanding

Documents incorporated by reference Portions of the Registrants definitive Proxy Statement for the

Registrants 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K IN PARTICULAR ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION AND ITEM BUSINESS INCLUDE FORWARD-LOOKING STATE

MENTS WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 21E OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AS AMENDED THE

EXCHANGE ACT WHEN USED IN THIS REPORT THE WORDS OR PHRASES WILL LIKELY RESULT EXPECT INTEND

WILL CONTINUE ANTICIPATE ESTIMATE PROJECT BELIEVE AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO

IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE EXCHANGE ACT THESE STATEMENTS

REPRESENT OUR EXPECTATIONS OR BELIEFS CONCERNING AMONG OTHER THINGS FUTURE REVENUE EARNINGS

GROWTH STRATEGIES NEW PRODUCTS AND INITIATIVES FUTURE OPERATIONS AND OPERATING RESULTS AND

FUTURE BUSINESS AND MARKET OPPORTUNITIES WE UNDERTAKE NO OBLIGATION TO PUBLICLY UPDATE OR REVISE

ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WHETHER AS RESULT OF NEW INFORMATION FUTURE EVENTS OR OTHER

WISE EXCEPT AS REQUIRED BY LAW WE CAUTION AND ADVISE READERS THAT THESE STATEMENTS ARE BASED ON

CERTAIN ASSUMPTIONS THAT MAY NOT BE REALIZED AND INVOLVE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE

ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THE EXPECTATIONS AND BELIEFS CONTAINED HEREIN FOR ASUMMARY

OF CERTAIN RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS SEE ITEM 1- RISK FACTORS BEGINNING ON PAGE 16

In this Annual Report on Form 0-K references to dollars and are to United States dollars

Nu Skin Pharmanex and ageLOC are our trademarks The italicized product names used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are product

names and also in certain cases our trademarks

All references to our distributors in this Annual Report on Form io-K include our independent distributors and preferred customers and

our sales employees and contractual sales promoters in China All references to executive distributorsinclude our independent distributors

and China sales employees who have completed certain qualification requirements



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

We are leading global direct selling company with operations in 51

markets worldwide We develop and distribute innovative premium-

quality anti-aging personal care products and nutritional supple

ments under our Nu Skin and Pharmanex brands respectively We

strive to secure competitive advantages in our key areas our people

our products the culture we promote and the business opportunities

we offer In 2010 our 26th year of operations we posted record rev

enue of $1.5 billion

As of December 312010 we had global network of approxi

mately 800000 active distributors Approximately 36000 of our

distributors were qualified sales leaders we refer to as executive dis

tributors Our executive distributors play critical leadership role in

the growth and development of our business

Approximately 86% of our 2010 revenue came from our markets

outside of the United States While we have become more geo

graphically diverse over the past decade Japan our largest revenue

market accounted for approximately 31% of our 2010 total revenue

Due to the size of our foreign operations our results are often im

pacted by foreign currency fluctuations particularly fluctuations in

the Japanese yen In addition our results are impacted by global eco

nomic political demographic and business trends and conditions

Our business is subject to various laws and regulations globally

particularly with respect to our product categories as well as our direct

selling distribution channel sometimes referred to as network mar

keting or multi-level marketing Accordingly we face certain risks

including risks associated with potential improper activities of our dis

tributors or any inability to obtain necessary product registrations

OUR DIFFERENCE DEMONSTRATED

We strive to maintain competitive advantage in four key areas our

people our products our culture and our opportunity

Our peopleA global network of approximately 800000 active

distributors in 51 countries We distribute all of our products exclu

sively through our distributors as opposed to traditional distribution

channels such as retail stores or mail order catalogs Consequently our

most significant asset is our extensive global network of distributors

who enable us to introduce products and penetrate new markets with

little upfront promotional expense We believe our competitive sales

compensation plan for our distributors has helped us to attract and

develop strong group
of distributor leaders who play critical rolen

building motivating and training our extensive distributor network

Our productsScience-based proprietary anti-aging skin care

and nutritional products We believe our innovative approach to

product development provides us with competitive advantage in

the anti-aging and direct selling markets Over the last two years we

have successfully introduced suite of innovative ageLOC anti-aging

products including the ageLOC Transformation daily skin care system

ageLOC Edition Galvanic Spa System II and ageLOC Vitality nutri

tional supplement and we are currently developing additional

ageLOC anti-aging products for the future These products are

designed to positively influence the expression of genes that we be

lieve play critical role in the aging process We believe that our

in-house research expertise and our research collaborations uniquely

position and enable us to continue to introduce innovative and pro

prietary anti-aging products in skin care and nutrition

Our cultureImproving lives Our mission statement encour

ages our people to be force for good by improving lives through

the use of both our products and business opportunities and pro

motes humanitarian culture We encourage our distributors cus

tomers and employees to become involved in humanitarian ef

forts the most significant of which are our Nourish the Children

initiative which provides our distributors the ability to donate

meals to starving children and our Force for Good Foundation

which supports charitable causes that benfit children We believe

that people are attracted to organizations that focus on more than

just financial incentives

Our opportunityGlobal business opportunity We believe our

distributor compensation plan provides our distributors with the

incentive to establish sales organization and customer base in

any country where we conduct business We believe that we were

the first major direct selling company to enable sales leaders to

develop an international business and receive commissions on

global sales volume in their home market We believe our com

pensation plan which pays approximately 42% of our product sales

in commissions is among the most generous compensation plans

in the direct selling industry We believe the high payout
of our

compensation plan enables sales leaders the opportunity to reach

significant income levels and provides us with competitive ad

vantage in attracting
and developing highly capable motivated

sals leaders



OUR PRODUCT CATEGORIES

We have two primary product categories each operating
under its

own brand We market our premium-quality persOnal care products

under the Nu Skin brand and our science-bsed nutritional supple

ments under the Pharmanex brand

Presented below are the U.S dollar amounts and associated

revenue percentages from the sale of Nu Skin Pharrnanex and other

products and services for the
years

ended December 3120082009

and 2010 This table should be read in conjunction with the informa

tion presented in the section entitled Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation which dis

cusses the factors impacting revenue trends and the costs associated

with generating the
aggregate revenue presented

REVENUE BY PRODUCT CATEGORY

U.S dollars in millions1

Year Ended December31

16.5 1.3 12.8 ___________ ___________ ___________

1247.6 100.0% 1331.1 ___________ ___________ ___________

In 201086% of our sales were transacted in foreign currencies that were then converted to U.S dollars For Financial
reporting purposes at weighted-average exchange rates

Foreign currency fluctuations positively impacted reported revenue by approximately 5% in 2010 compared to 2009 Foreign currency fluctuations had no materiel impact

on reported revenue in 2009 compared to 2008

Nu Skin Nu Skin is the brand of our original product line and

offers premium-quality anti-aging personal care products Our strat

egy is to leverage our network marketing distribution model to estab

lish Nu Skin as an innovative leader in the anti-aging personal care

market We are committed to continuously improving and evolving

our product formulations to develop and incorporate innovative and

proven ingredients

Our ageLOC anti-aging skin care products are designed to tar

get both the signs and the ultimate sources of aging Research for our

ageLOC platform has identified and targeted what we call Youth

Gene Clusters functional
groups

of
genes

that regulate how we ap

pear to age We incorporate this research into ageLOC products

that have been demonstrated to support and reset Youth Gene

Clusters to function in more youthful patterns of activity Our

ageLOC products provide both corrective and preventative benefits

in preserving youth and in reducing the signs of aging In 2010 we

launched our ageLOC Transformat/on skin care system in most of our

markets globally following successful limited offering in the fourth

quarter of 2009 at our global convention

Another innovative product that positively impacted our reve

nue growth over the past five years is the Ga/van/c 5pa System The

Ga/van/c Spa instrument emits very mild electrical current When

the Ga/van/c Spa System is used to apply products that carry either

positively or negatively charged active ingredients product efficacy

improves dramatically The Ga/van/cSpa System is an ideal direct sell

ing product because our distributors can demonstrate its benefits

This helps them to recruit new customers and distributors Our

Ga/van/c Spa System Ga/van/c Spa Ge/s and associated products ac

counted for approximately 15% of our total revenue and 27% of

Nu Skin revenue in 2010 In 2010 we launched an a9eLOC Ed/t/on

Ga/van/c Spa System//to capitalize on enthusiasm for ageLOC gen

erally in most of our markets except South Korea This newest system

is more user-friendly and improves the amount of ingredients deliv

ered to the skin We plan to introduce this improved ageLOC Ed/t/on

Ga/van/c Spa System//in South Korea in the first quarter of 2011

Product Category

Nu Skin

Pharmanex

Other

2008 2009

633.4

597.7

50.8% 752.7

47.9 565.6

2010

56.5%

42.5

1.0

100.0%

913.8

122

11.3

1537.3

59.4%

39.8

0.8

100.0%



The following table summarizes our Nu Skin product line by category

CATEGORY DESCRI PTION SELECTED PRODUCTS

CORE SYSTEMS Regardless of skin type our core systems

provide solid foundation for our customers

individual skin care needs Our
systems are

developed to target specific skin concerns

and are made from ingredients scientifically

proven to provide visible results for concerns

ranging from aging to acne

ageLOC Transformation

Nu Skin 180 Anti-A gin9 Skin Therapy System

NuSkin Tri-Phasic White

Nutricentia/s

Nu Skin C/ear Action Acne Medication System

TARGETED TREATMENTS Our customized skin care line allows

customer to tailor product regimens that

help deliver
younger looking skin at any age

The products are developed using cutting-

edge ingredient technologies that target

specific kin care needs

ageLOC Edition Galvanic Spa System II

Galvanic Spa Gels with ageLOC

Tru Face Essence Ultra

Tru Face Line Corrector

Enhancer Skin Conditioning Gel

Celltrex Ultra Recovery Fluid

Ce/Itrex Co 010 Complete

NA RCA Moisturizer

Polishing Peel Skin Refinisher

TOTAL CARE Our total care line addresses body hair and

oral care The total care line can be used by

families and the products are designed to

deliver superior benefits from head to toe

for the ultimate sense of total body wellness

Body Bar

Liquid Body Lufra

Perennial Intense Body Moisturizer

Dividends Mens Care

AP-24 Dental Care

Nu Skin Renu Hair Mask

COSMETIC The Nu Co/our cosmetic line products are

targeted to define and highlight your natural

beauty

Tinted Moisturizer SPF 15

Finishing Powder

Contouring Lip Gloss

Defining Effects Mascara

Our Epoch line is distinguished by utilizing

traditional knowledge of indigenous cultures

for skin care Each Epoch product is formu

lated with botanical ingredients derived

from renewable resources found in nature

In addition we contribute
percentage

of

our proceeds from Epoch sales to chari

table causes

Baobab Body Butter

Sole Solution Foot Treatment

Calming Touch Soothing Skin Cream

Glacial Marine Mud

IceDancer Invigorating Leg Gel

Everglide Foaming Shave Gel

Ava puhi moni Shampoo

Epoch Baby Hibiscus Hair Body Wash

EPOCH



Pharmanex We market variety of anti-aging nutritional prod

ucts under our Pharmanex brand Direct selling has proven to be an

extremely effective method of marketing our high-quality nutritional

supplements because our distributors can personally educate con

sumers on the quality and benefits of our produds differentiating

them from our competitors offerings L.ifePak our flagship line of mi

cronutrient supplements accounted for 16% of our total revenue and

37% of Pharmanex revenue in 2010 We introduced ageLOC Vitality

our first ageLOC nutritional product designed to address the internal

sources of aging in Japan the United States Canada and our mar

kets in Europe and Latin America during the second half of 201 We

plan to fully launch ageLOC Vitality in these markets during the first

quarter of 2011

Our strategy for our nutritional supplement business is to con

tinue to introduce innovative substantiated anti-aging products

based on extensive research and development and quality manufac

turing We are currently developing additional ageLOC anti-aging

supplements including new product that we plan to introduce at

our global convention in the fourth quarter of 2011 and rollout to our

markets beginning in the fourth quarter of 2011 and throughout 2012

The following table summarizes our Pharmanex product line by category

CATEGORY DESCRI PTION SELECTED PRODUCTS

NUTRITIONALS Pharmanex nutritional products supply

broad spectrum
of micronutrients that our

bodies need as foundation for lifetime of

optimal health

LifePak family of products

g3 juice

SOLUTIONS Our targeted solutions supplements contain

standardized levels of botanical and other

active ingredients that are formulated for

consumers to meet the demands of every

day life

ageLOC Vitality

Tegreen 97

ReishiMax GLp

MarineOmega

Cholestin

CordyMax Cs-4

Cortitrol

Detox Formula

Eye Formula

WEIGHT MANAGEMENT Our weight management products include

supplements as well as meal replacement

shakes

The Right Approach TRA weight

management system

My \/ictoryl weight management program

highly nutritious meal that can be

purchased and donated through our

Nourish the Children initiative to feed

starving children or purchased for personal

food storage

VITAM EAL Vitameal



Other We also offer limited number of other products and

services including digital content storage water purifiers and other

household products We have also integrated technology into other

areas of our business and offer advanced tools and services that help

distributors establish an online presence and manage their business

These other categories of products represented only small per

centage of our revenue in 2010 and will not likely be an area of focus

in the next few years

SOURCING AND PRODUCTION

Nu Skin In order to maintain high product quality we acquire our in

gredients and contract production of our proprietary products from

suppliers and manufacturers that we believe are reliable reputable

and deliver high quality materials and service Our ageLOC Edition

Galvanic Spa System I/is procured from single vendor who owns

certain patent rights associated with such product We believe our

agreements
with this vendor are sufficiently long-term and exclusive

However to continue offering this product category following any

termination of our relabonship with this vendor we would need to

develop new galvanic unit and source it from another supplier We

also acquire ingredients and products from one other supplier that

currently manufactures products representing approximately 30% of

our Nu Skin personal care revenue in 2010 We maintain good rela

tionship with our suppliers and do not anticipate that either party will

terminate the relationship in the near term We also have ongoing

relationships with secondary and tertiary suppliers Please refer to

Risk FactorsThe loss of suppliers or shortages in ingredients could

harm our business for discussion of risks and uncertainties associ

ated with our supplier relationships and with the sourcing of raw ma
terials and ingredients

We also operate production facility in Shanghai where we cur

rently manufacture our personal care products sold in China as well

as small portion of product exported to select other markets We

believe that if the need arose this plant could be expanded or other

facilities could be built in China to produce larger amounts of inven

tory for export or as back up to our existing supply chain

Pharmanex Substantially all of our Pharmanex nutritional supple

ments and ingredients including LifePak are produced or provided

by third-party suppliers and manufacturers We rely on two partners

for the majority of our Pharmanex products one of which supplies

products that represent approximately 52% of our nutritional supple

ment revenue while the other supplier manufactures products that

represent approximately 14% of our nutritional supplement revenue

in 2010 In the event we become unable to source any products or

ingredients from these suppliers or from other current vendors we

believe that we would be able to produce or replace those products

or substitute ingredients without
great difficulty or significant in-

creases to our cost of goods sold Please refer to Risk FactorsThe

loss of suppliers or shortages in ingredients could harm our business

for discussion of certain risks and uncertainties associated with our

supplier relationships as well as with the sourcing of raw materials and

ingredients

We also operate facility in Zhejiang Province China where we

produce some of our Pharmanex nutritional supplements for sale in

China and herbal extracts used to produce Tegreen 97 ReishiMax

GLp and other products sold globally

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

We continually invest in our research and development capabilities

Our research and development expenditures were $9.6 million $10.4

million and $12.4 million in 20082009 and 2010 respectively These

amounts do not include salary and overhead expenses
for our inter

nal research and development activities Because of our commit

ment to product innovation we plan to continue to commit resources

to tesearch and development in the future As we invest in our

ageLOC platform of products we expect to increase our research

and development expenditures

The Nu Skin Center for Anti-Aging Research our primary re

search and testing laboratory located adjacent to our office complex

in Provo Utah houses both Pharmanex and Nu Skin research facili

ties and professional and technical personnel We are currently in the

design phase of building state-of-the-art innovation center adja

cent to our corporate headquarters portion of which will be dedi

cated to research and development We also maintain research facili

ties in China Much of our Pharmanex research is conducted in China

where we benefit from well-educated low-cost scientific labor pool

that enables us to conduct research at much lower cost than would

be possible in the United States

We have joint research projects with numerous independent sci

entists including scientific advisory board comprised of recognized

authorities in disciplines related to our nutritional and personal care

product categories We also fund and collaborate on basic research

projects with researchers from prominent universities and research in

stitutions in the United States Europe and Asia whose staffs include

scientists with basic research expertise in natural product chemistry

biochemistry dermatology pharmacology and clinical studies

In addition we evaluate significant number of product ideas

for our Nu Skin and Pharmanex categories presented by outside

sources We utilize strategic licensing and other relationships with

vendors for access to directed research and development work for

innovative and proprietary offerings



INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Our major trademarks are registered in the United States and in each

country where we operate or have plans to operate and we consider

trademark protection to be very important to our business Our ma

jor trademarks include Nu Skin our fountain logos Pharrnanex

ageLOC LifePak and Galvanic Spa In addition number of our

products including the ageLOC Edition Ga/vnic Spa System II and

Pharmanex BioPhotonic Scanner are based on proprietary technolo

gies and formulations some of which are patented or licensed from

third parties We also rely on trade secret protection to protect our

proprietary formulas and other proprietary information

GEOGRAPHIC SALES REGIONS

We currently sell and distribute our products in 51 markets We have segregated our markets into five geographic regions North Asia

Greater China Americas South Asia/Pacific and Europe The following table sets forth the revenue for each of the geographic regions for

the years ended December 3120082009 and 2010

Year Ended December 31

45%

17

16

12

10

100%

Additional comparative revenue and related financial informa

tion is presented in the tables captioned Segment /nformation in

Note 17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements The information

from these tables is incorporated by reference in this Report

Set forth below is information regarding the key markets in our

geographic regions The information includes information about the

introduction and launch of key new products With the launch of

ageLOC Transformation we implemented product launch process

that has been refined in our South Korea market This process gener

ally
involves introducing the product in market through an initial

limited offering that is often tied to distributor event The limited

offering typically generates significant distributor activity and high

level of distributor purchasing This generally results in higher than

normal increase in revenue during the quarter of the limited offering

We typically launch the product for general sales few months fol

lowing the limited offering Information regarding product launches

below refers to the launch of the product for general sales and not to

the limited offering used to introduce the product Reference to in

troduction of product refers to the limited offering

NorthAsia The following table provides information on each of the

markets in the North Asia region including the year we commenced

operations in the market 2010 revenue and the percentage of our total

2010 revenue for each market

percentage of

U.S.dollars in millions year opened 2010 revenue 2010 revenue

Japan 1993 471.4 31%

SouthKorea 1996 214.7 14%

Japan is our largest market and accounted for approximately 31%

of total revenue in 2010 We market most of our Nu Skin and Pharmanex

products in Japan along with limited number of other offerings In

addition all product categories offer limited number of locally devel

oped products sold exclusively in our Japanese market In the first quar

ter of 2010 we launched our ageLOC Future Serum in Japan following

limited offering in the fourth quarter of 2009 During the fourth quarter

of 2009 we also introduced our ageLOC Edition Ga/vanic Spa System 1/

We launched the full ageLOC Transformation skin care system in Japan

in the second quarter of 2010 In the third quarter
of 2010 we introduced

ageLOC Vitality our first ageLOC nutritional product designed to ad

dress the internal sources of aging through limited offering in Japan

We plan to fully launch ageLOC Vita/ity in Japan during the first quar

ter of 2011 We currently plan to introduce additional
age

LOC anti-

aging nutritional products in connection with our global convention

during the fourth quarter of 2011

The direct selling environment in Japan continues to be difficult

as the industry has been oi the decline for several
years

and regula

tory and media scrutiny have increased Please refer to Business

Government Regulation and Risk Factors for discussion of risks

and uncertainties associated with challenges in the Japan market

In South Korea we offer most of our Nu Skin and Pharmanex

products along with limited number of other offerings In the second

quarter of 2010 we launched the ageLOC Transformation skin care

system following very
successful limited offering in the first quarter

of 201 We currently plan to introduce the ageLOC Edition Ga/vanic

Spa System//in South Korea in the first quarter of 2011followed by the

U.S dollars in millions 2008 2009 2010

North Asia 594.5 48% 606.1 45% 686.1

GreaterChina 210.0 17 210.4 16 268.2

Americas 223.9 18 260.9 20 250.0

SouthAsia/Pacific 107.6 120.1 182.8

Europe 1.6 33.6 10 150.2

1247.6 100% 1331.1 100% 1537.3



introduction of additional ageLOC anti-aging products in connection

with our global convention during the fourth
quarter

of 2011

Greater China The following table provides information on

each of the markets in the Greater China region including the
year

we commenced operations in the market 2010 revenue and the per

centage of our total 2010 revenue for each market

percentage of

U.S dollars in millions year opened 2010 revenue 2010 revenue

Taiwan 1992 107.1 7%

China 2003 91.4 6%

Hong Kong 1991 69.7 4%

Our Hong Kong and Taiwan markets operate using our global

direct selling business model and global compensation plan We

offer robust product offering of the majority of our Nu Skin and

Pharmanex products and limited other products and services in

Hong Kong and Taiwan although one of our flagship Nu Skin products

the Galvanic Spa System is not approved for sale in Taiwan Approxi

mately 50% of our revenue in these markets comes from orders

through our monthly product subscription progam which has led to

improved retention of customers and distributors and has helped

streamline the ordering process

In China we sell many of our Nu Skin products and locally

produced value line of personal care products under the Scion brand

name We also sell select number of Pharmanex products includ

ing our number one nutritional product LifePak

We currently are unable to operate under our global direct selling

business model in China as result of regulatory restrictions on direct

selling activities in this market Consequently we have developed

hybrid business model that utilizes retail stores with an employed

sales force and contractual sales promoters to sell products through

fixed locations which we supplement with direct sales opportunity

in those locations where we have obtained direct sales license We

continue to operate our retail store/employed sales representative

model because we believe it provides us with more flexibility in the

manner in which we can operate throughout China and compensate

our sales representatives given the restrictions in the direct selling

regulations We rely on our sales force to market and sell products at

the various retail locations supported by only minimal advertising and

traditional promotional efforts Our sales employees may also refer

individuals to us for employment as sales representatives or contrac

tual sales promoters Our retail model in China is largely based upon

our ability to attract customers to our retail stores through our sales

force to educate them about our products through frequent training

meetings and to obtain repeat purchases

We also continue to implement direct sales opportunity that

allows us to engage independent direct sellers who can sell products

away from our retail stores We have received licenses and approvals

to engage in direct selling activities ib the municipalities of Beijing

Shanghai Shenzhen and four cities in the Guangdong province anä

we continue to work to obtain the
necessary approvals in other loca

tions in China The direct selling licenses allow us to engage an entry-

level non-employee sales force that can sell products away
from fixed

retail locations Our current direct sales model is structured in man

ner that we believe is complementary to our existing retail sales model

We introduced our ageLOC Edition Galvanic Spa System I/in

our Greater China markets excluding Taiwan in the fourth quarter of

2009 In connection with our Greater China regional convention in

the second quarter of 2010 we introduced ourageLOC Transformation

skin care system in Taiwan and Hong Kong We currently plan to intro

duce our ageLOC Transformation skin care system in Mainland China

as soon as we obtain necessary regulatory approvals We also cur

rently plan to introduce ageLOC anti-aging nutritional products in

connection with our global convention during the fourth quarter of

2011 followed by full launch of the products in 2012

Americas The following table provides information on each of

the markets in the Americas region including the year we com

menced operations in themarket 2010 revenue and the percentage

of our total 2010 revenue for each market

percentage of

U.S dollars in millions year opened 2010 revenue 2010 revenue

United States 1984 212.1 14%

Canada 1990 23.9 1%

Latin America 1994 14.0 1%

Latin America indudex Colombia Costa Rica El Salvadot Guatemala Honduras

Mexico and Venezuela

Substantially all of our Nu Skin and Pharmanex products as well

as limited other products and services are available for sale in the

United States In the first
quarter

of 2010 we launched our ageLOC

Transformation skin care system in the United States following suc

cessful limited offering in the fourth quarter of 2009 at our global

convention During the fourth quarter of 2009 we also launched our

ageLOC Edition Galvanic Spa System II In the third quarter
of 2010 we

introduced ageLOC Vitality our first ageLOC nutritional product

designed to address the internal sources of aging through limited

offering in the United States We plan to fully launch ageL.OC Vitality

in the United States beginning in the first quarter of 2011 We cur

rently plan to introduce additional ageLOC anti-aging
nutritional

products in connection with our global convention during the fourth

quarter of 2011



South Asia/Pacific The following table provides information on

each of the markets in the South Asia/Pacific region including the

year opened 2010 revenue and the percentage of our total 2010 rev

enue for each market

2010 percentage of

U.S dollars in millions year opened revenue 2010 revenue

Singapore/Malaysia/Brunei 2000/2001/2004 76.8 5%

Thailand 1997 56.7 4%

Australia/NewZealand 1993 21.7 1%

Indonesia 2005 15.5 1%

Philippines 1998 12.1 1%

The South Asia/Pacific region was our fastest growing region in

2010 with 39% increase in constant currency revenue We offer

majority of our Pharmanex and Nu Skip products in the South Asia/

Pacific region
In the third quarter of 2010 we launched the ageLOC

Transformation skin care system following limited offerings during

the first half of 2010 In 2010 we also launched our ageLOC Edition

GalvanicSpaSystemll We currently plan to introduce ageLOC anti

aging nutritional products in connection with our global convention

during the fourth quarter of 2011 followed by full launch of the prod

ucts in 2012 Our TRA weight management products also continue

to contribute to our strong growth in this region

Europe The following table provides information on our Europe

region including the
year we commenced operations in the market

2010 revenue and the percentage of our total 2010 revenue

U.S dollars in millions year opened 2010 revenue

Europe Region 1995 150.2

Europe region
includes Austria Belgium Czech Republic Denmark Finland France

Germany Hungary Ireland Iceland Israel ftaly Luxembourg the Netherlands Norway

Poland Portugal Romania Russia Slovakia South Africa Spain Sweden Switzerland

Turkey Ukraine and the United Kingdom

We currently operate and offer full range of Nu Skin and

Pharmanex products in 27 countries throughout Northern Eastern

and Central Europe as well as in Israel and South Africa Various

products and distributor tools have contributed to Europes recent

success including the Galvanic Spa System II the Pharmanex

BioRhotonicScanner and g3 In the first quarter of 2010 we launched

the ageLOC Transformation skin care system following limited

offering in the fourth quarter of 2009 In the first quarter of 2010

we also launched our ageLOC Edition Galvanic Spa System II In

connection with our Europe regional convention in the fourth quarter

of 2010 we introduced ageLOC Vitality our first ageLOC nutri

tional product designed to address the internal sources of aging

percentage of

2010 revenue

10%

through limited offering We plan to fully
launch ageLOC Vitality

in most of our markets in Europe beginning in the first quarter of

2011 We currently plan to introduce additional ageLOC anti-aging

nutritional products in connection with nur global convention during

the fourth quarter of 2011

DISTRIBUTION

Overview The foundation of our sales philosophy and distribution

system is network marketing We sell our products through distribu

tors who are not employees except in China where we sell our prod

ucts through employed retail sales representatives contractual sales

promoters and direct sellers Our distributors generally purchase

products from us for resale to consumers and for personal consump

tion We also sell products directly to preferred customers at dis

counted monthly subscription prices

We believe network marketing is an effective vehicle to distrib

ute our products because

distributors can educate consumers about our products in per

son which we believe is more effective for premium-quality

differentiated products than using traditional advertising

direct sales allow for actual product demonstrations and testing

by potential customers

there is greater opportunity for distributor and customer testi

monials and

as compared to other distribution methods our distributors

can provide customers higher levels of service and encourage

repeat purchases

Active distributors under our global compensation plan are de

fined as those distributors who have purchased products for resale or

personal consumption during the previous three months In addition

we have implemented preferred customer programs in many of our

markets which allow customers to purchase products directly from

us generally on recurring monthly product subscription basis We

include preferred customers who have purchased products during

the previous three months in our active distributor numbers While

preferred customers are legally very different from distributors both

are considered customers of our products

Executive distributors under our global compensation plan

must achieve and maintain specified personal.and group sales volumes

each month Once an individual becomes an executive distributor he

or she can begin to take advantage of the benefits of commission

payments on personal and group sales volume As result of direct

selling restrictions in China we have implemented hybrid business



model
utilizing

sales employees and contractual sales promoters in

our retail stores in addition to direct sellers See the discussion on

China in BusinessGeographic Sales Regions

Our revenue is highly dependent upon the number and produc

tivity
of our distributors Growth in sales volume requires an increase

in the productivity and/or growth in the total number of distributors

As of December 312010 we had global network of approximately

800000 active distributors Approximately 36000 of our distribu

tors were executive distributors Our number of active distributors

has historically fluctuated from year to year based on various factors

including our business model transition in China efforts to train and

discipline distributors in Japan and changes in promotions As of

each of the dates indicated below we had the following number of

active and executive distributors in the referenced regions

TOTAL NUMBER OF ACTIVE AND EXECUTIVE DISTRIBUTORS BY REGION

As of December 31 2008

Active Executive

326000 13937

115000 6323

171000 4876

66000 2541

83000 291 _____________ _____________

761000 30588
_____________ _____________

Sponsoring We rely on our distributors to recruit and sponsor

new distributors of our products While we provide internet support

product samples brochures magazines and other sales and marketing

materials at cost distributors are primarily responsible for recruiting

and educating new distributors with respect to products our global

compensation plan and how to build successful distributorship

The sponsohng of new distributors creates multiple levels in

network marketing structure Individuals that distributor sponsors are

referred to as downline or sponsored distributors If downline dis

tributors also sponsor new distributors they create additional levels in

the structure but their downline distributors remain in the same down-

line network as their original sponsoring distributor

Sponsoring activities are not required of distributors and we do

not pay any commissions for sponsoring new distributors However

because of the financial incentives provided to those who succeed in

building and mentoring distributor network that resells and consumes

products many of our distributors attempt with varying degrees of

effort and success to sponsor additional distdbutors People often

become distributors after using our products as regular customers

Once person becomes distributor he or she is able to purchase

products directly from us at wholesale prices The distributor is also

entitled to sponsor
other distributors in order to build network of

distributors and product users potential distributor must enter into

standard distributor agreement which among other things obligates

the distributor to abide by our policies and procedures

Global Compensation Plan One of our competitive advantages

is our global sales compensation plan Under our global compensa

tion plan distributor is paid consolidated monthly commissions in

the distributors home country in local currency
for the distributors

own product sales and for product sales in that distributors downline

distributor network across all geographic markets Because of restric

tions on direct selling in China our sales employees and contractual

sales promoters there do not participate in the global compensation

plan but are instead compensated according to compensation

model established for that market

Commissions on the sale of an individual Nu Skin or Pharmanex

product can exceed 50% of the wholesale price except in limited

number of markets where commissions are limited bylaw The actual

commission payout percentage however varies depending on the

number of distributors at each payout level within our global com

pensation plan Historically our distributor compensation plan has

paid out to distributors approximately 42% of commissionable sales

We believe that our commission payout as percentage of total sales

is among the most generous paid by major direct selling companies

From time to time we make modifications and enhancements

to our global compensation plan to help motivate distributors In

2008 and 2009 we implemented modifications to our compensation

plan to improve commission payments early in the distributor ifecy

cle The results from these modifications have been positive We

continue to evaluate further changes to our compensation plan to

help increase distributor productivity and earnings potential In addi

tion we evaluate limited number of distributor requests on

North Asia

Greater China

Americas

South
Asia/Pacific

Europe

Total

As of December 31 2009 As of December 31 2010

Active Executive Active Executive

319000 14144 329000 14687

106000 6938 18000 8015

171000 5522 161000 5305

71000 2950 84000 3930

94000 3385 107000 3739

761000 32939 799000 35676



monthly basis for exceptions to the terms and conditions of the glob

al compensation plan including volume requirements While our

general policy is to discourage exceptions we believe that the flexibil

ity to grant exceptions is critical in retaining distributor loyalty and

dedication and we make exceptions in limited cases as necessary

High Level of Distributor Incentives Based upon manage

ments knowledge of our compOtitors distributor compensation

plans we believe our global compensation plan is among the most

financially rewarding plans offered by leading direct selling compa

nies There are two fundamental ways in which our distributors can

earn money

through retail markups on sales of products purchased by dis

tributors at wholesale and

through series of commissions on product sales

Each of our products narries specified number of sales volume

points Commissions are based on total personal and
group

sales vol

ume points per month Sales volume points are generally based upon

products wholesale cost net of
any point-of-sale taxes As dis

tributors business expands to successfully sponsoring other distribu

tors into the business who in turn expand their own businesses

distributor receives higher percentage
of commissions An execu

tives commissions can increase substantially as multiple downline

distributors achieve executive status In determining commissions

the number of levels of downline distributors included in an execu

tives commissionable group increases as the number of executive

distributorships directly below the executive increases

Distributor Support We are committed to providing high-level

support services tailored to the needs of our distributors in each mar

ket We attempt to meet the needs and build the loyalty of distribu

tors by providing personaIied distributor services and by maintaining

generous product return policy Because the majority of our dis

tributors are part time and have only limited number of hours each

week to concentrate on their business we believe that maximizing

distributors efforts by providing effective distributor support has

been and will continue to be important to our success

Through training meetings distributor conventions web-based

messages distributor focus groups regular telephone conference

calls and other personal contacts with distributors we seek to under

stand and satisfy the needs of our distributors We provide walk-in

telephonic and Web-based product fulfillment and tracking services

that result in user-friendly timely product distribution Several of our

walk-in retail centers maintain meeting rooms which our distributors

may utilize for trpining and sponsoring activities Because of our effi

cient distribution system we believe that most of our distributors do

not maintain significant inventory of our products

Payments Distributors generally pay fr products prior to shipment

Accordingly we carry minimal accounts receivable from distributors

Distributors typically pay for products in cash by wire transfer or by

credit card

Product Returns In order to provide high level of consumer-

protection we offer generous return policy While our operations

and applicable regulations vary somewhat from country to country

we generally follow uniform procedure for product returns For 30

days from the date of purchase our product return policy generally

allows retail customer to return any
Nu Skin or Pharmanex product

to us directly or to the distributor through whom the product was

purchased for full refund After 30 days from the date of purchase

the end users return privilege is at the discretion of the distributor

Our distributors can generally return unused products directly to us

for 90% refund for one year Through 2010 our experience with ac

tual product returns averaged less than 5% of annual revenue

Rules Affecting Distributors We monitor regulations and dis

tributor activity in each market to ensure our distributors comply with

local laws Our published distributor policies and procedures estab

lish the rules that distributors must follow in each market We also

monitor distributor activity to maintain level playing field for our

distributors ensuring that some are not disadvantaged by the activi

ties of others We require our distributors to present products and

business opportunities ethically and professionally Distributors fur

ther agree that their presentations to customers must be consistent

with and limited to the product claims and representations made in

our literature

Distributors must represent to us that their receipt of commis

sions is based on retail sales and substantial personal sales efforts We

must also monitor sales aids used by distributors to help ensure they

comply with applicable laws and regulations Distributors may not

use any form of media advertising to promote products Products

may be promoted only by petsonal contact or by literature that we

produce or approve

Our products may not be sold and our business opportunities

may not be promoted in traditional retail environments We have

made an exception to this rule by allowing some of our Pharmanex

products to be sold in independently owned pharmacies and drug

stores meeting spdcified requirements Distributors who own or are

employed by service-related business such as doctors office hair

salon or health club may make products available to regular custom

ers as long as products are not displayed visibly to the general public

10



in manner to attract the general public into the establishment to

purchase products

In order to qualify for commission bonuses our distributors gen

erally must satisfy specific requirements including achieving at least

100 points which is approximately $100 in personal sales volume per

month In addition individual markets may have requirements spe

cific to that
country based on regulatory factors For example in the

United States distributors must also

document retail sales or customer connections to established

numbers of retail customers and

sell and/or consume at least 80% of personal sales volume

We systematically review reports of alleged distributor misbehav

ior Ifwe determine one of our distributors has violated any of our policies

or procedures we may terminate the distributors rights completely

Alternatively we may impose santions such as warnings probation

withdrawal or denial of an award suspension of privileges of distributor

ship fines and/or withholding of commissions until specified conditions

are satisfied or other appropriate injunctive relief

OUR CU LTU RE

From our inception over 26 years ago Nu Skin Enterprises mission

has been to improve peoples livesthrough our quality products our

rewarding business opportunities and by promoting an uplifting and

enriching culture Our mission statement encourages people to be

forcefor good in the world around them Our culture unites our

distributors customers and employees in innovative humanitarian ef

forts the most significant of which are our Nourish the Children initia

tive that provides our distributors the
ability to donate meals to starv

ing children and our Force for Good Foundation that supports many

charitable causes that benefit children In short we believe that peo

ple are attracted to organizations that focus on more than just finan

cial incentives We encourage our distributors and our employees to

live each day with an understanding that together we havethe op

portunity to make the world better place

Nourish the Children In 2002 we introduced an innovative hu

manitarian initiative Nourish the Children which applies the power of

our distribution network to help address the problem of hunger and

malnutrition We sell highly nutritious meal replacement product

under the brand VftaNAeaI and encourage our distributors cus

tomers and employees to purchase VitaMeal and donate their pur

chase to charitable organizations that specialize in distributing food

to alleviate famine and
poverty Distributors earn commissions on

sales of Vitameal to distributors in their downline and their ustom

ers For every eight packages of VitaMeal purchased and donated

we donate an additional package Since 2002 our distributors cus

tomers and employees have joined together to donate more than 210

million meals to malnourished children in various locations through

out the world

Force Good Foundation The original Force for Good can

paign was introduced in conjunction with the Nu Skin Epoch product

line in 1996 This unique brand of skin and hair care products was de

veloped in partnership with the worlds leading ethnobotanists

donation of 25 cents from the sale of each Epoch product was di

rected to preserve the environments languages lifestyles and tradi

tions of indigenous people around the world Today the Force for

Good Foundation provides support for charitable efforts throughout

the globe with special emphasis on addressing the humanitarian

needs of children Charitable projects supported by the Force for

Good Foundation us our employees and our distributors include

helping to provide crucial heart surgeries for children in Southeast

Asia and China supporting schools for children in need helping

farmers in Malawi be trained to grow more crops to better support

the needs of their families and other projects

COMPETITION

Direct Selling Companies We compete with other direct selling or

ganizations some of which have longer operating history and higher

visibility name recognition and financial resources than we do The

leading direct selling companies in our existing markets are Avon

Alticor Amway and Herbalife We compete for new distributors on

the strength of our multiple business opportunities product offerings

global compensation plan management and our international oper

ations In order to successfully compete in this market and attract and

retain distributors we must maintain the attractiveness of our busi

ness opportunities to our distributors

Nu Skin and Pharmanex Products The markets for our Nu Skin

and Pharmanex products are highly competitive Our competitors

include manufacturers and marketers of personal care and nutritional

products pharmaceutical companies and other direct selling organiza

tions many of which have longer operating histories and greater name

recognition and financial resources than we do We compete in these

markets by emphasizing the innovation value and premium quality of

our products and the convenience of our distribution system

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Direct selling activities Direct selling activities are regulated by vari

ous federal state and local governmental agencies in the United

States and foreign countries Laws and regulations in Japan South

Korea and China are particularly restrictive and difficult These laws

and regulations are generally intended to prevent fraudulent or de

ceptive schemes often referred to as pyramid schemes that com

pensate participants for recruiting additional participants irrespective

of product sales use high-pressure recruiting methods and/or do not
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involve legitimate products The laws and regulations in our current

markets often

impose cancellation/product return inventory buy-backs and

cooling-off rights for consumers and distributors

require us or our distributors to register with governmental

agencies

impose caps on the amount of commission we can pay

impose reporting requirements and

impose upon us requirements such as requiring distributors to

maintain levels of retail sales to qualify to receive commissions

to ensure that distributors are being compensated for sales of

products and not for
recruiting new distributors

The laws and regulations governing direct selling are modified

from time to time and like other direct selling companies we are sub

ject from time to time to government investigations in our various

markets related to our direct selling activities This can require us to

make changes to our business model and
aspects of our global com

pensation plan in the markets impacted by such changes and investi

gations

We continue to experience heightened regulatory and media

scrutiny of the direct selling industry in Japan Several direct sellers in

Japan have been penalized for actions of distributors that violated

applicable regulations including one prominent international direct

selling company that was suspended from sponsoring activities for

three months in 2008 and another large Japanese direct selling

company that was suspended from sponsoring activities for six

months in 2009 In addition some Japanese lawmakers have experi

enced increased political pressure to discontinue supporting the di

rect selling industry

We also continue to experience high level of general inquiries

regarding our business and complaints to consumer protection cen

ters in Japan and have taken steps to try to resolve these issues in

cluding providing additional training to distributors and restructuring

our compliance group in Japan We have seen improvements in

some prefectures but not in others We have received warnings from

consumer centers in certain prefectures raising concerns about our

distributor training and number of general inquiries and complaints

Although we are implementing additional steps to reinforce our dis

tributor education and training in Japan to help address these con

cerns we cannot be sure that such steps will be successful If con

sumer complaints and inquiries escalate to government review or if

the current level of complaints and inquiries does not improve there

is an increased likelihood that regulators could take action against us

including suspension of our sponsoring activities or we could re

ceive negative media attention either of which could harm our busi

ness In 2009 Japan implemented ntional organization of con

sumer protection centers which appears to have resulted in further

increase in the scrutiny of our business and industry

As result of restrictions in China on direct selling activities we

have implemented retail store model utilizing an employed sales

force and contractual sales
promoters and we are currently integrat

ing direct selling in our business model in this market pursuant to ap

plicable direct selling regulations The regulatory environment in

China remains complex Chinas direct selling and anti-pyramiding

regulations are restrictive and contain various limitations including

restriction on the
ability to pay multi-level compensation Our opera

tions in China have attracted significant regulatory and media scru

tiny since we expanded our operations there in January 2003 Regu

lations are subject to discretionary interpretation by municipal and

provincial level regulators as well as local customs and practices In

terpretations of what constitutes permissible activities by regulators

can varyfrom province to province and can hange from time to time

because of the lack of clarity in the rules regarding direct selling ac

tivities and differences in customs and practices in each location

Because of the Chinese governments significant concerns

about direct selling activities it scrutinizes very closely activities of

direct selling companies At times investigations and related actions

by government regulators have impeded our ability to conduct busi

ness in certain locations and have resulted in few cases where we

have paid substantial fines In each of these cases we have been al

lowed to recommence operations after the governments investiga

tion and no material changes to our business model were required in

connection with these fines and impediments Please refer to Risk

Factors for more information on the regulatory risks associated with

our business in China

The regulatory environment with respect to direct selling in

China remains fluid and the process for obtaining the necessary gov

ernmental approvals to conduct direct selling continues to evolve

The regulations and processes in some circumstances have been in

terpreted differently by different governmental authorities In order

to expand our direct selling model into additional provinces we cur

rently must obtain series of approvals fromthe Departments of

Commerce in such provinces the Shanghai Department of Com
merce our supervisory authority as well as the Departments of

Commerce in each city and district in which we plan to operate We

also are required to obtain the approval of the State Ministry ofCom

merce which is the national governmental authority overseeing di

rect selling In addition regulators are acting cautiously as they monitor

the roll-out of direct selling which has made the approval process
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take longer than we anticipated Please refer to Risk Factors for

more information on the risks associated with our planned expansion

of direct selling in China

Regulation of Our Products Our Nu Skin and Pharmanex prod

ucts and related promotional and marketing activities are subject to

extensive governmental regulation by numerous domestic and foreign

governmental agencies and authorities including the Food and Drug

Administration the FDA the Federal Trade Commission the FTC
the Consumer Product Safety Commission the Department of

Agriculture State Attorneys General and other state regulatory agen

cies in the United States and the Ministry of Health Labor and Wel

fare in Japan and similar government agencies in each market in which

we operate

Our personal care products are subject to various laws and reg

ulations that regulate cosmetic products and set forth regulations for

determining whether product can be marketed as cosmetic or

requires further approval as an over-the-counter drug In the United

States regulation of cosmetics are under the jurisdiction of the FDA
The Food Drug and Cosmetic Act defines cosmetics bytheir in

tended use as articles intended to be rubbed poured sprinkled or

sprayed on introduced into or otherwise applied to the human body

for cleansing beautifying promoting attractiveness or altering the

appearance Among the products included in this definition are skin

moisturizers perfumes Iipsticks fingernail polishes eye
and facial

makeup preparations shampoos permanent waves hair colors tooth-

pastes and deodorants as well as any material intended for use as

component of cosmetic product Conversely product will not be

considered cosmetic but may be considered drug if it is intended

for use in the diagnosis cure mitigation treatment or prevention of

disease or is intended to affect the structure or any function of the

body products intended use can be inferred from marketing or

product claims The other markets in which we operate have similar

regulations In Japan the Ministry of Health Labor and Welfare reg

ulates the sale and distribution of cosmetics and requires us to have

an import business license and to register each personal care product

imported into Japan In Taiwan all medicated cosmetic products

require registration In China personal care products are placed into

one of two categories general and drug Products in both catego

ries require submission of formulas and other information with the health

authorities and drug products require human clinical studies The

product registration process in China for these products can take from

nine to more than 18 months or longer Such regulations in any given

market can limit our ability
to import products and can delay product

launches as we go through the registration and approval process for

those products The sale of cosmetic products is regulated in the Eu

ropean Union under the European Union Cosmetics Directive which

requires uniform application for foreign companies making personal

care product sales

Our Pharmanex products are subject to various regulations pro

mulgated by government agencies in the markets in which we operate

In the United States we generally market our nutritional products as

conventional foods or dietary supplements.The FDA has jurisdiction

over this regulatory area Because these products are regulated undr

the Dietary Supplement and Health Education Actwe are generally

not required to obtain regulatory approval prior to introducing prod

uct into the United States market None of this infringes however

upon the FDAs power to remove from the market any product it de

termines to be unsafe or an unapproved drug In our foreign markets

the products are generally regulated by similar government agencies

such as the Japan Ministry Of Health Labor and Welfare the South

Korea Food and Drug Administration and the Taiwan Department

of Health We typically market our Pharmanex products in interna

tional markets as foods or health foods under applicable regulatory

regimes In the event product or an ingredient in product is clas

sified as drug or pharmaceutical product in any market we will gen

erally not be able to distribute that product in that market through our

distribution channel because of strict restrictions applicable to drug

and pharmaceutical products China has some of the most restrictive

nutritional supplement product regulations Products marketed as

health foods are subject to extensive laboratory and clinical analysis

by governmental authorities and the product registration process for

these products can take from nine to more than 18 months or longer

We market both health foods and general foods in China Our

flagship product LifePak is currently marketed as general food as

only two of the three main capsules have received health food clas

sification Currently general foods is not an approved category
for

direct selling therefore we will only market LifePak through our retail

stores until final health food classification for LifePak is obtained for

the other capsule Additionally there is some risk associated with the

common practice in China of marketing product as general food

while seeking health food classification If government officials feel

our categorization of our products is inconsistent with product claims

ingredients or function this could end or limit our ability to market such

products in China in their current form

The markets in which we operate all have varied regulations that

distinguish foods and nutritional health supplements from drugs or

pharmaceutical products Because of the varied regulations some

products or ingredients that are recognized as food in certain mar

kets may be treated as pharmaceutical in other markets In Japan

for example if specified ingredient is not listed as food by the

Ministry of Health and Welfare we must either modifythe product to

eliminate or substitute that ingredient or petition the government to

treat such ingredient as food We experience similar issues in our

other markets This is particularly problem in Europe where the

regulations differ from country to country As result we must often

modify the ingredients and/or the levels of ingredients in our products

for certain markets In some circumstances the regulations in foreign
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markets may require us to obtain regulatory approval prior to introduc

tion of new product or limit our uses of certain ingredients alto

gether Because of negative publicity associated with some supplements

there has been an increased movement in the United States and

other markets to expand the regulation of dietary supplements which

could impose additional restrictions or requirements in the future In

general the regulatory environment is becoming more complex with

increasingly strict regulations each year

Effective June 2008 the FDA established regulations to require

current good manufacturing practices cGM for dietary supplements

The regulations ensure that dietary supplements are produced in

quality manner do not contain contaminants or impurities and are

accurately labeled The regulations include requirements for establish

ing quality control procedures for us and our vendors and suppliers

designing and constructing manufacturing plants and testing ingre

dients and finished products The regulations also include requirements

for record keeping and handling consumer product complaints If dietary

supplements contain cotaminants or do not contain the type or quan

tity of dietary ingredient they are represented to contain the FDA

would consider those products to be adulterated or misbranded Our

business is subject to additional FDA regulations such as those imple

menting an adverse event reporting system CAERs effective De

cember 2007 which requires us to document and track adverse vents

and report serious adverse events which are events involving hospi

talization or death associated with consumers use of our products

Compliance with these regulations has increased and may further

increase the cost of manufacturing and selling certain of our products

as we work with our vendors to assure they are in compliance

Most of our major markets also regulate advertising and product

claims regarding the efficacy of products Accordingly these regula

tions can limit our ability to inform consumers of the full benefits of

our products For example in the United States we are unable to claim

that
any

of our nutritional supplements will diagnose cure mitigate

treat or prevent disease In most of our foreign markets we are not

able to make any medicinal claims with respect to our Pharmanex

products In the United States the Dietary Supplement Health and

Education Act however permits substantiated truthful and non-

misleading statements of nutritional support to be made in labeling

such as statements describing general well-being resulting from con

sumption of dietary ingredient or the role of nutrient or dietary

ingredient in affecting or maintaining structure or function of the

body Most of the other markets in which we operate have not ad

opted similar legislation and we may be subject to more restrictive

limitations on the claims we can make about our products in these

markets For example in Japan our nutritional supplements are mar

keted as food products which significantly limits our ability to make

any claims regarding these products

To date we have not experienced any difficulty maintaining our

import licenses However due to the varied regulations governing
the

manufacture and sale of nutritional products in the various markets

we have found it necessary to reformulate many of our products or

develop new products in order to comply with such local requirements

In the United States we are also subject to consent decree with the

FTC and various state regulatory agencies arising out of investigations

that occurred in the early 1990s of certain alleged unsubstantiated

product and earnings claims made by our distributors The consent

decree requires us to among other things supplement our procedures

to enforce our policies not allow our distributors to make earnings

representations without making certain average earnings disclosures

and not allow our distributors to make unsubstantiated product claims

Compliance with the anti terrorism regulations of the United States

has caused some delays in customs but these situations have been

resolved by working with the United States customs officials and train

ing our vendors and market staff in the guidelines Effective December

2009 the FTC approved revisions to its Guides Concerning the

Use of Endorsements and Testimonials in Advertising or Guides that

restrict marketing to those results obtained by typical consumer

and require disclosure of any material connections between an en

dorser and the company or products they are endorsing

Our P/iarmanex BioPhotonic Scanner and our Galvanic Spa System

are technologically advanced business tools designed to help our dis

tributors effectively market our Nu Skin and Pharmanex products

These tools are subject to the regulations of various health consumer

protection and other governmental authorities around the world These

regulations vary from market to market and affect whether our business

tools are required to be registered as medical devices the claims that

can be made with respect to these tools who can use them and where

they can be used We have been subject to regulatory inquiries in the

United States Japan and other countries with
respect to the status

of the PliarmanexBioPhotonicScanneras non-medical device Any

determination that medical device clearance is required for one of our

products in market where we currently market and sell such product

as cosmetic or non-medical device could require us to expend sig

nificant time and resources in order to meet the additional stringent

standards imposed on medical device companies or prevent us from

marketing the product For example in Indonesia Thailand Taiwan

and Colombia we are not able to market the Galvanic Spa System

without registering it as medical device We are also subject to

regulatory constraints on the claims that can be made with respect to

the use of our business tools

Other Regulatory Issues As United States entity operating

through subsidiaries in foreign jurisdictions we are subject td foreign

exchange control transfer pricing and customs laws that regulate the

flow of funds between us and our subsidiaries and for product pur
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chases management services and contractual obligations such as

the payment of distributor commissions

As is the case with most companies that operate in our product

categories we receive from time to time inquiries from government

regulatory authorities regarding the nature of our business and other

issues such as compliance with local direct selling transfer pricing

customs taxation foreign exchange control securities and other laws

Negative publicity resulting from inquiries into our operations by the

United States and state government agencies in the early 1990s

stemming in part from alleged inappropriate product and earnings

claims by distributors and in the late 1990s resulting from adverse

media attention in South Korea harmed our business

EMPLOYEES

As of December 312010 we had approximately 3400 full- and part-

time employees worldwide This does not include approximately

1654 individuals who were employed as sales representatives in our

China operations None of our employees are represented by union

or other collective bargaining group except in China and small

number of employees ip Japan We believe that our relationship with

our employees is good and we do not foresee shortage in qualified

personnel necessary to operate our business

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our Internet address is www.nuskinenterprises.com We make avail

able free of charge on or through our internet website our annual re

ports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-0 current reports

on Form 8-K and amendments to those
reports filed or furnished

pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file

such material with or furnish it to the Securities and Exchange Com
mission the SEC The public may read and copy any materials we

file with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100

Street NE Washington DC 20549 The public may obtain informa

tion on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the

SEC at 1800SEC0330 The SEC maintains an internet website

at http//www.sec.gov that contains reports proxy
and information

statements and other information regarding issuers that file elec

tronically with the SEC

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our executive officers as of February 12011 are as follows

Chairman of the Board

President and Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Scientific Officer and Executive

Vice President Product Development

Dan Chard 46 President Global Sales and

Operations

Scott Schwerdt 53 President Americas Europe and

South Pacific

Matthew Dorny 47 General Counsel and Secretary

Set forth below is the business background of each of our execu

tive officers

Blake Roney founded our company in 1984 and served as its

president through 1996 Mr Roney currently serves as the Chairman

of the Board position he has held since our company became pub

lic in 1996 Mr Roney is also trustee of the Force for Good Founda

tion charitable organization that was established in 1996 by Mr

Roney and the other founders of our company to help encourage

and drive the philanthropic efforts of our company its employees its

distributors and its customers to enrich the lives of others He re

ceived B.S degree from Brigham Young University

Truman Hunt has served as our President since January 2003

and our Chief Executive Officer since May 2003 He has also served

asa director of our company since May 2003 Mr Hunt joined our

company in 1994 and has served in various positions including Vice

President and General Counsel from 1996 to January 2003 and Ex

ecutive Vice President from January 2001 until January 2003 He

received B.S degree from Brigham Young University and J.D

degree from the University of Utah

Ritch Wood has served as our Chief Financial Officer since

November 2002 Prior to this appointment Mr Wood served as

Vice President Finance from July 2002 to November2002 and Vice

President New Market Development from June 2001 to July 2002

Mr Wood joined our company in 1993 and has served in various

capacities Prior to joining us he worked for the accounting firm of

Grant Thornton LLP Mr Wood earned B.S and Master of

Accountancy degrees from Brigham Young University

Joe Chang has served as Chief Scientific Officer and Executive

Vice President of Product Development since February 2006 Dr

Chang served as President of our Pharmanex division from April

NAME

Blake Roney

Truman Hunt

Ritch Wood

Joe Chang

AGE POSITION

52

51

45

58

15



2000 to February 2006 Dr Chang served as Vice President of Clin

ical Studies and Pharmacology of Pharmanex from 1997 until April

2000 Dr Chang has nearly 20 years of pharmaceutical experience

He received B.S degree from Portsmouth University and Ph.D

degree from the University of London

Daniel Chard has served as President of Global Sales and

Operations since May 2009 Prior to serving in this position Mr

Chard served as Executive Vice President of Distributor Success

from February 2006 to May 2009 and President of Nu Skin Europe

from April 2004 to February 2006 Mr Chard also served as Vice

President of Marketing and Product Management of Big Planet our

technology products and services division from May 2003 to April

2004 and as Senior Director of Marketing and Product Develop

mentat Pharmanex Prior to joining us in 1998 Mr Chard worked in

variety of strategic marketing positions in the consumOr products in

dustry Mr Chard holds B.A degree in Economics from Brigham

Young University and an M.B.A from the University of Minnesota

Scott Schwerdt has served as President Americas Europe and

South Pacific since February 2006 Mr Schwerdt served as Regional

Vice President of North America and President of Nu Skin Enterprises

United States Inc from May 2004 to February 2006 Mr Schwerdt

previously served as the General Manager of our U.S operations from

May2001 to May 2004 Mr Schwerdtjoined our company in 1988 and

has held various positions including Vice President of North America

South Pacific Operations and Vice President of Europe Mr Schwerdt

received B.A degree in International Relations from Brigham Young

University

MatthewDorny has served as our General Counsel and Secretary

since January 2003 Mr Dorny previously served as Assistant General

Counsel from May1998 to January 2003 Prior to joining us Mr Dorny

was securities and business attorney in private practice in Salt Lake

City Utah Mr Dorny received B.A M.B.A and J.D degrees from the

University of Utah

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

We face number of substantial risks Our business financial condition

or results of operations could be harmed by any of these risks The trading

price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks and

they should be considered in connection with the other information con

tainedin thisAnnual Report on Form 10-K These risk facto rs should be

read together with the other items in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

including Item Business and Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Difficult economic conditions could harm our business

Global economic conditions continue to be challenging

Although the economy appears to be recovering in some countries

it is not possible for us to predict the extent and timing of any im

provement in global economic conditions Even with continued

growth in many of our markets during this period the economic

downturn could adversely impact our business in the future by caus

ing decline in demand for our products particularly if the economic

conditions are prolonged or worsen In addition such economic con

ditions may adversely impact access to capital for us and our suppliers

may decrease our distributors
ability to obtain or maintain credit

cards and may otherwise adversely impact our operations and overall

financial condition

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could impact our financial results

In 2010 approximately 86% of our sales occurred in markets out

side of the United States in each markets respective local
currency

We purchase inventory primarily in the United States in U.S dollars

In preparing our financial statements we translate revenue and ex

penses in our markets outside the United States from their local cur

rencies into U.S dollars using weighted average exchange rates If the

U.S dollar strengthens relative to local currencies particularly the

Japanese yen which accounted for approximately 31% of our 2010

revenue our reported revenue gross profit and net income will
likely

be reduced Foreign currency fluctuations particularly with respect

to the Japanese yen given the amount of yen denominated debt on

our balance sheet can also result in losses and gains resulting from

translation of foreign currency denominated balances on our balance

sheet Given the complex global political and economic dynamics

that affect exchange rate fluctuations it is difficult to predict future

fluctuations and the effect these fluctuations may have upon future

reported results or our overall financial conditioh

Because our Japanese operations account for significant part

of our business continued weakness in our business operations in

Japan could harm our business

Approximately 31% of our 2010 revenue was generated in Japan

We have experienced local currency revenue declines in Japan over

the last several years and continue to face challenges in this market

16



These declines could continue or increase Factors that could impact

our results in the market include

continued or increased levels of regulatory and media scrutiny

and any regulatory actions taken by regulators or any adoption

of more restrictive regulations in response to such scrutiny

significant weakening of the Japanese yen

increased regulatory constraints with respect to the claims we

can make regarding the efficacy of products and tools which

could limit our ability to effectively market them

risks that the initiatives we have implemented in Japan which

are patterned after successful initiatives implemented in other

markets will not have the same level of success in Japan may

not generate renewed growth or increased productivity among

our distributors and may cost more or require more time to

implement than we have anticipated

inappropriate activities by our distributors and any resulting

regulatory actions agaihst us or our distributors

improper practices of other direct selling companies or their

distributors that increase regulatory and media scrutiny of our

industry

any weakness in the economy or consumer confidence and

increased competitive pressures from other direct selling com

panies and their distributors who actively seek to solicit our

distributors to join their businesses

Heightened regulatory scrutiny of the direct selling industry in

Japan could harm our business if we are not able to successfully

limit the number of general inquiries and complaints regarding

our business received by consumer protection centers

We continue to experience heightened regulatory scrutiny of the

direct selling industry in Japan Several direct sellers in Japan have

been penalized for actions of distributors that violated applicable

regulations including one prominent international direct selling com

pany that was suspended from sponsoring activities for three months

in 2008 and another large Japanese direct selling company that was

suspended from sponsoring activities for six months in 2009 In addi

tion some Japanese lawmakers have experienced increased
political

pressure to djscontinue suporting the direct selling industry

We also continue to experience high level of general inquiries and

complaints to consumer protection centers in Japan and have taker

steps to try to resolve these issues including providing additional training

to distributors and restructuring our compliance group in Japan We

have seen improvements in some prefectures but not in others We

have received warnings from consumer centers in certain prefectures

raising concerns about our distributor framing and number of general

inquiries and complaints Although we are implementing additional stes

to reinforce our distributor education and training in Japan to help ad

dress these concerns we cannot be sure that such steps will be successful

If consumer complaints and inquiries escalate to government review

or if the current level of complaints and inquiries does not improve there

is an increased likelihood that regulators could take action against us

including suspension of our sponsoring activities or we could receive

negative media attention either of which could harm our business In

2009Japan implemented national organization of consumer protec

tion enters which appears to have resulted in further increase in the

scrutiny of our business and industry

If we are unable to retain our existing distributors and recruit

additional distributors our revenue will not increase and may

even decline

We distribute almost all of our products through our distributors

and we depend on them to generate virtually all of our revenue Our

distributors may terminate their services at any time and like most

direct selling companies we experience high turnover among distrib

utors from year to year Distributors who join to purchase our products

for personal consumption or for short-term income goals frequently

only stay with us for short time Executive distributors who have

committed time and effort to build sales organization will generally

stay
for longer periods Distributors have highly variable levels of train

ing skills and capabilities As result in order to maintain sales and

increase sales in the future we need to increase our retention of exist

ing distributors and continue to successfully recruit additional distribu

tors Io increase our revenue we must increase the number of and/or

the productivity of our distributors

We have experienced periodic declines in both active distributors

and executive distributors in the past and could experience such de

clines again in the future For example over the last several months we

have experienced some softness in our active and executive distributor

numbers in the United States If our initiatives for 2011 do not drive

growth in our distributor numbers particularly in the United States and

Japan where our distributors numbers have been down our operating

results could be harmed While we take many steps to help train moti

vate and retain distributors we cannot accurately predict how the

number and productivity of distributors may fluctuate because we rely

primarily upon our distributor leaders to recruit train and motivate new

distributors Our operating results could be harmed if we and our dis

tributor leaders do not generate sufficient interest in our business to

retain existing distributors and attract new distributors
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The number and productivity of our distributors could be

harmed by several additional factors including

any adverse publicity regarding us our products our distribu

tion channel or our competitors

lack of interest in or the technical failure existing or new

products

lack of compelling sponsoring story that generates interest

for potential new distributors and effectively draws them into

the business

any negative public perception of our products and their ingre

dients

any negative public perception of our distributors and direct

selling businesses in general

our actions to enforce our policies and procedures

any regulatory actions or charges against us or others in our

industry

general economic and business conditions and

potential saturation or maturity levels in given country or

market which could negatively impact our ability to attract and

retain distributors in such market

Although our distributors are independent contractors improper

distributor actions that violate laws or regulations could harm

our business

Distributor activities that violate applicable laws or regulations

could result in government or third party actions against us which

could harm our business Except in China our distributors are not em

ployees and act independently of us We implement strict policies and

procedures to ensure Our distributors will comply with legal require

ments However given the size of our distributor force we experience

problems with distributors from time to time For example product

claims made by some of our distributors in 1990 and 1991 led to an

investigation by the Federal Trade Commission FTC in the Unit

ed States which resulted in our entering into consent decree with

the FTC In addition rulings by the South Korean Federal Trade Com

mission and by judicial authorities against us and other companies in

South Korea indicate that vicarious liability maybe imposed on us for

the criminal activity of our distributors In addition we have seen an

increase in sales aids and promotional material being produced by

distributors and distributor groups in some markets which places an

increased burden on us to monitor compliance of such materials and

increases the risk of materials that violate our policies and applicable

regulations As we expand internationally our distributors often attempt

to anticipate which markets we will open in the future and begin mar

keting and sponsoring activities in markets where we are not qualified

to conduct business If we are unable to adequately address these

issues we could face fines or other legal action

Laws and regulation may prohibit or severely restrict our direct

sales efforts and cause our revenue and profitability to decline and

regulators could adopt new regulations that harm our business

Various government agencies throughout the world regulate

direct sales practices Laws and regulations in Japan South Korea and

China are particularly restrictive and difficult These laws and regulations

are generally intended to prevent fraudulent or deceptive schemes

often referred to as pyramid schemes that compensate participants

for recruiting additional participants irrespective of product sales use

high pressure recruiting methods and/or do not involve legitimate prod

ucts The laws and regulations in our current markets often

impose order cancellations product returns inventory buy-

backs and cooling-off rights for consumers and distributors

require us or our distributors to register with government

agencies

impose caps on the amount of commissions we can pay

and/or

require us to ensure that distributors are not being compen

sated based upon the recruitment of new distributors

Complying with these widely varying and sometimes inconsis

tent rules and regulations can be difficult and may require the devo

tion of significant resources on our part If we are unable to continue

business in existing markets or commence operations in new markets

because of these laws our revenue and profitability may decline In

addition countries where we currently do business could change

their laws or regulations to negatively affect or completely prohibit

direct sales efforts

Challenges to the form of our network marketing system or other

regulatory compliance issues could harm our business

We may be subject to challenges by government regulators re

garding the form of our network marketing system or elements of our

business including marketing and product claims made by us or our

distributors Legal and regulatory requirements concerning our in

dustry involve high level of subjectivity and are inherently fact

based and subject to interpretation which provides regulators with

more discretion in their application of these laws and regulations We

have seen an increase in government scrutiny of our industry in van-
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markets including Japan South Korea China Europe and the

United Kingdom From time to time we receive formal and informal

inquiries from various government regulatory authorities about our

business and our compliance with local laws and regulations For ex

ample in 2009 we received notice from Belgium authorities alleging

that we have vio.lated the anti-pyramid regulations in that market and

an inquiry from the Consumer Protection Agency in Hungary re

garding various marketing claims In the early 1990s we entered into

voluntary consent agreements with the FTC and few state regula

tory agencies relating to investigations of our distributors product

claims and practices Pursuant to the consent decrees we agreed

among other things to supplement our procedures to enforce our

policies to not allow distributors to make earnings representations

without making additional disclosures relating to average earnings

and to not make or allow our distributors to make product claims that

were not substantiated As result of the previous investigations the

FTC makes inquiries from time to time regarding our compliance

with applicable laws and regulations and our consent decree lfwe are

not able to resolve existing regulatory reviews to the satisfaction of

the applicable governmental agencies or there are any new regula

tory challenges regarding our business or others in our industry our

business could be harmed if such actions result in the imposition of

any fines or damages on our business create adverse publicity in

crease scrutiny of our industry detrimentally affect our efforts to re

cruit or motivate distributors and attract customers or interpret laws

in manner inconsistent with our current business practices

Challenges by third parties to the form of our business model or the

actions of our company or distributors could harm our business

There have been private actions filed against some of our com

petitors in our industry in recent years bytheirdistributors challenging

the legality of their form of business One of our largest competitors

recently settled class-action lawsuit requiring it to pay large cash

settlement There is risk that such challenges and settlements could

provide incentives for similar ations by distributors against us and

other direct selling companies Any challenges regarding us or others

in our industry could harm our business if such challenges result in the

imposition of any fines or damages on our business create adverse

publicity increase scrutiny of our industry detrimentally affect our ef

forts to recruit or motivate distributors and attract customers or in

terpret
laws in manner inconsistent with our current business prac

tices Because legal and regulatory requirements concerning our

industry involve high level of subjectivity and are inherently fact-based

and subject to judicial interpretation we can provide no assurance that

we would not be harmed by the application or interpretation of statutes

or regulations governing network marketing in any civil challenge by

current or former distributor

Government regulations relating to the marketing and advertising

of our products and services may restrict inhibit or delay our ability

to sell these products and harm our business

Our products and our related mrketihg and advertising efforts

are subject to numerous domestic and foreign government agencie

and authorities laws and extensive regulations which
govern

the ingre

dients and products that may be marketed without pre-market ap

proval and/or registration as drug and the claims that may be made

regarding such products Many of these laws and regulations involve

high level of subjectivity are inherently fact-based and subject to inter

pretation and vary significantly from market to market These laws and

regulations can limit the claims we can make regarding our products

and often restrict our ability to introduce products or ingredients into

one or more markets In Europe for example we are unable to market

supplements that contain ingredients that were not marketed prior to

May1997 in Europe novel foods without going through an extensive

registration and pre-market approval process In addition there has

been increased regulatory scrutiny of nutritional supplements and mar

keting claims under existing and new regulations At times these laws

and regulations may prevent us from launching product in market

require us to reformulate product or limit the claims made regarding

product For example as we prepare for the global launch of our new

ageLOC nutritional product we face regulatory issues that may force

us to reformulate the product for some markets and may limit our abil

ity to revise the product formulations without delaying necessary reg

istrations If these laws and regulations restrict inhibit or delay our abil

ity to introduce or market our products or limit the claims we are able

to make regarding our products our business may be harmed

During recent years authorities enforcement activity and interpre

tation of these regulations suggest greater
allowance for scientific-based

and substantiated claims when not involving specific drug or disease

claims As result as companies have developed new and innovative

products there hat been trend towards more aggressive claims and

the inclusion of greater science regarding the marketing of cosmetic and

nutritional products We believe in order to remain competitive we need

to have similarly compelling claims Because there is degree ofsubjec

tivity
in determining whether marketing materials or statements consti

tute product claims and whether they involve improper drug claims our

claims and our interpretation of applicable regulations maybe challenged

which could harm our business This is particular risk with respect to

our ageLOC line of products based on our novel approach to these

products and our focus on genes and sources of aging in both our sci

entific explanation for support of our products as well as our marketing

claims If regulators take more restrictive stance regarding such claims

alter their enforcement priorities or determine that any of our claims

violate applicable regulations we could be fined or forced to modify our

claims or stop selling product
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New regulations governing the marketing and sale of nutritional

supplements could harm our business

There has been an increasing movement in the United States and

other markets to increase the regulation of dietary supplements which

could impose additional restrictions or requirements in the future In

the United States for example some legislators and industry critics

continue to push for increased regulatory authority by the FDA over

nutritional supplements Our business could be harmed if more restric

tive legislation is successfully introduced and adopted in the future In

particular the adoption of legislation requiring FDA approval of sup

plements or ingredients could delay or inhibit our ability to introduce

new supplements We face similar
pressures in our other markets in

cluding Europe which is expected to adopt additional regulations

setting new limits on acceptable maximum levels of vitamins and

minerals In the United States effective December 12009 the FTC

approved revisions to its Guides Concerning the Use of Endorsements

and Testimonials in Advertising or Guides that require disclosure of

material connections between an endorser and the company they are

endorsing and do not allow marketing using atypical results The re

quirements and restrictions of the revised Guides may diminish the

impact of our marketing efforts and negatively impact our sales results

If we or our distributors fail to comply with these Guides the FTC

could bring an enforcement action against us and we could be fined

and/or forced to alter our operations Our operations also could be

harmed if new laws or regulations are enacted that restrict our ability

to market or distribute nutritional supplements or impose additional

burdens or requirements on nutritional supplement companies or re

quire us to reformulate our products

Regulations governing the production and marketing of our per

sonal care products could harm our business

Our personal care products are subject to various domestic and

foreign laws and regulations that regulate cosmetic products and set

forth regulations for determining whether product can be marketed

as cosmetic or requires further approval as an over-the-counter

drug determination that our cosmetic products impact the struc

ture or function of the human body or improper marketing claims by

our distributors may lead to determination that such products re

quire pre-market approval as drug Such regulations in any given

market can limit our ability to import products and can delay product

launches as we go through the registration and approval process for

those products Furthermore if we fail to comply with these regula

tions we could face enforcement action against us and we could be

finedforced to alter or stop selling our products and/or required to

adjust our operations Our operations also could be harmed if new

laws or regulations are enacted that restrict our ability to market or

distribute our personal care products or impose additional burdens or

requirements on the contents of our personal care products or re

quire us to reformulate our products

If we are found not to be in compliance with Good Manufacturing

Practices our operations could be harmed

FDA regulations on Good Manufacturing Practices and Ad

verse Event Reporting requirements fo the nutritional supplement

industry have recently gone into effect and require good manufac

turing processes for us and our vendors including stringent vendor

qualifications ingredient identification manufacturing controls and

record keeping The ingredient identification requirement which re

quires us to confirm the levels identity and potency of ingredients

listed on our product labels within narrow range
is particularly bur

densome and difficult for us with respect to product like LifePak

which contains 46 different ingredients We are also now required to

report serious adverse events associated with consumer use of our

products Our operations could be harmed if regulatory authorities

make determinations that we or our vendors are not in compliance

with the new regulations finding of noncompliance may result in

administrative warnings penalties or actions impacting our ability to

continue selling certain of our products In addition cbmpliance with

these regulations has increased and may further increase the cost of

manufacturing certain of our products we work with our vendors to

assure they are qualified and in compliance

Our operations in China are subject to significant government scru

tiny and may be harmed by the results of such scrutiny

Because of the governments significant concerns about direct

selling activities government regulators in China closely scrutinize

activities of direct selling companies or activities that resemble direct

selling The regulatory environment in China with regards to direct

selling is evolving and officials in multiple national and local levels in

the Chinese
government

often exercise broad discretion in deciding

how to interpret apply and enforce applicable regulations We can

not be certain that our operations will continue to be deemed by na

tional and local rogulatory authorities to be in compliance with such

regulations In the past the government has taken significant actions

against companies that the government found were engaging in di

rect selling activities in violation of applicable law including shutting

down their businesses and imposing substantial fines

Our operations in China are subject to significant regulatory

scrutiny and we have experienced challenges in the past including

interruption of sales activities at certain stores and fines being paid in

some cases Although we have now obtained direct selling licenses in

limited number of provinces we continue to operate hybrid mod

el that utilizes sales employees contractual sales promoters and di

rect sellers to market our products Government regulators continue

to scrutinize our activities and the activities of our sales employees

contractual sales promoters and direct sellers to monitor our compli

ance with applicable regulations We continue to be subject to gov

ernment reviews and investigations At times complaints made by

our sales representatives to the government have resulted in in-
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creased scrutiny by the government Any determination that our op

erations or activities or the activities of our sales employees contrac

tual sales promoters or direct sellers are not in compliance with

applicable regulations could result in substantial fines extended inter

ruptions of business termination of
necessary licenses and permits

including our direct selling licenses or restrictions on our ability to

open new stores obtain approvals for service centers or expand into

new locations all of which could harm our business

If regulations in China are interpreted or enforced by government

authorities in manner that negatively impacts our retail business

model or our hybrid business model there our business in China

could be harmed

The Chinese
government

has adopted anti-pyramiding and di

rect selling regulations that contain significant restrictions and limita

tions including restriction on multi-level compensation for inde

pendent distributors selling away
from fixed location The

regulations also impose various requirements that are more burden

some than in our other markets and which could negatively impact

the willingness of some people to sign up to become direct sellers

There continues to be uncertainty as to the interpretation and en

forcement of the regulations and their scope and the specific types

of restrictions and requirements imposed under them and national

and local regulatory authorities exercise broad discretion in interpret

ing applying and enforcing these direct selling regulations Our busi

ness and growth prospects would be harmed if the anti-pyramiding

regulations or direct selling regulations are interpreted in such man

ner that our current method of conducting business through the use

of sales employees contractual sales promoters and direct sellers is

deemed to violate these regulations In particular our business would

be harmed by any determination that our current method of com

pensating our sales employees and contractual sales promoters in

cluding our use of the sales productivity of an individual and the

group of individuals whom he or she trains and supervises as one of

the factors in establishing salary and compensation violates the re

striction on multi-level compensation under the rules Our business

could also be harmed if regulators inhibit our ability to operate our

hybrid business model which includes retail stores sales employees

contractual sales promoters and direct sellers

If we are unable to obtain additional necessary national and local

government approvals in China as quickly as we would like our

ability to expand our direct selling business and grow our business

there could be negatively impacted

We have completed the required national and local licensing

process
and commenced direct selling activities in Beijing Shanghai

Shenzhen and four cities intheGuangdong province In order to expand

our direct selling model into additional provinces we currently must

obtain series of approvals from district city provincial and national

government agencies with respect to each province in which we wish

to expand The process for obtaining the necessary government ap

provals to conduct direct sellihg continues to evolve As we are being

required to work with such large ninber of provincial city district

and national government authorities we have found that it is takirg

more time than anticipated to work through the approval process with

these authorities The complexity of the approval process as well as

the governments continued cautious approach as direct selling de

velops in China makes it difficult to predict the timeline for obtaining

these approvals If the results of the governments evaluation of our

direct selling activities result in further delays in obtaining licenses

elsewhere or if the current processes
for obtaining approvals are delayed

further for any reason or are changed or are interpreted differently than

currently understood our ability to expand direct selling in China and

our growth prospects in this market could be negatively impacted

Our compensation plan and business model for our sales force in

China differs from other markets and could harm our ability to grow

our business in China

The direct selling regulations in China impose various limitations

and requirements including prohibition on multi-level compensa

tion and required examination prior to becoming distributor The

regulations also impose other restrictions on direct selling activities

that differ from the regulations in our other markets As result our

direct selling compensation plan and business model for the direct

sales component of our business differs from the model we use in

other markets There can be no assurance that these restrictions will

not negatively impact our ability to provide an attractive business op

portunity to distributors in this market and limit our ability to grow our

business in this market In addition the regulations do not allow the

sale of general foods through direct selling business model Be

cause some of our supplements including LifePak are currently mar

keted ds genetal foods pending approval as health foods these prod

ucts cannot currently be approved for sale through our direct selling

channel Failure of these products to receive health food status or

direct selling product approval in timely manner could have nega

tive impact on our direct selling business

The loss of suppliers or shortages in ingredients could harm our

business

We acquire ingredients and products from two suppliers that

each currently manufactures significant portion of our Nu Skin per

sonal care products In addition we currently rely on two suppliers for

majority of Pharmanex nutritional supplement products In the

event we were to lose
any

of these suppliers and experience any dif

ficulties in finding or transitioning to alternative suppliers this could

harm our business In addition we obtain some of our products from

sole suppliers that own or control the product formulations ingredi

ents or other intellectual
property rights associated with such prod-
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ucts These products include our Galvanic Spa System and True

Face Essence Ultra products two of our better selling products We

also license the right to distribute some of our products from third

parties In the event we are unable to renew these contracts we may

need to discontinue some products or develop substitute products

which could harm our revenue In addition if we experience supply

shortages or regulatory impediments with respect to the raw materi

als and ingredients we use in our products we may need to seek al

ternative supplies or suppliers and may experience difficulties in find

ing ingredients that are comparable in quality and price Some of our

nutritional products including g3 juice incorporate natural products

that are only harvested once year and may heve limited supplies If

demand exceeds forecasts we may have difficulties in obtaining ad

ditional supplies to meet the excess demand until the next growing

season If we are unable to successfully respond to such issues our

business could be harmed

Product diversion to certain markets including China may have

negative impact on our business

From time to time we see our product being sold through online

or other distribution channels in certain markets Although we have

taken steps to try to control this activity for products sold in China

this issue continues to be significant challenge Product diversion

causes confusion regarding our distribution channels and negatively

impacts our distributors ability to retail our products It also creates

negative impression regarding the viability of the business opportu

nity for our distributors and sales representatives which can harm our

ability to recruit new distributors and sales representatives In addi

tion in some cases product diversion schemes may also involve ille

gal importation investment or other activities If we are unable to ef

fectively address this issue orif diversion increases our business could

be harmed

Intellectual property rights are difficult to enforce in China

Chinese commercial law is relatively undeveloped compared to

most of our other major markets and as result we may have limited

legal recourse in the event we encounter significant difficulties with

patent or trademark infringement or theft of trade secrets Limited

protection of intellectual property is available under Chinese law and

the local manufacturing of our products may subject us to an in

creased risk that unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or other

wise obtain or use our product formulations As result we cannot

assure that we will be able to adequately protect our intellectual

property and product formulations

If our Galvanic Spa System or Pharmanex BioPhotonic Scanner are

determined to be medical device in particular geographic

market or if our distributors use it for medical purposes our ability

to continue to market and distribute such tools could be harmed

One of our strategies is to market unique and innovative prod

ucts and tools that allow our distributors to distinguish our products

including the Galvanic Spa System and the Pharmanex BioPhotonic

Scanner We do not believe these products are medical devices

However we have faced regulatory inquiries in Japan South Korea

Indonesia Taiwan Singapore Thailand and the United States re

garding our Pharmanex BioPhotonic Scanner and/or our Galvanic

Spa System While we have successfully worked with regulators to

resolve these matters in some markets we have not been able to

market the Galvanic Spa System as cosmetic device in Taiwan In

donesia Thailand and Colombia due to similar regulatory restric

tions that have required us to register the Galvanic Spa System as

medical device There have also been legislative proposals in Singa

pore and Malaysia relating to the regulation of medical devices that

could affect the way we market the Galvanic Spa System and the

Pharmanex BioPhotonic Scanner in these countries Any determina

tion in additional markets that the Galvanic Spa System or the Phar

manex BioPhotonic Scanner are medical devices or that distributors

are using them to make medical claims or perform medical diagnoses

or other activities limited to licensed professionals or approved med

ical devices could negatively impact our ability to use these products

in market Regulatory scrutiny of product could also dampen dis

tributor enthusiasm and hinder the
ability

of distributors to effectively

utilize such product

Where
necessary obtaining medical device registrations could

require us to provide documentation concerning product manufac

turing and clinical
utility

and to make design specification and manu

facturing process modifications to meet stringent standards imposed

on medical device companies We have registered or are currently in

the
process

of reg.istering the Galvanic Spa System as medical de

vice in Taiwan Indonesia Thailand and Colombia Any difficulty de

lay or inability to comply with regulatory requirements including ob

taining or maintaining any required registrations in these markets

may harm our business In an effort to allow registration of the Gal

vanic Spa System in Taiwan and to update the registration in Indone

sia we are working with our vendor to obtain certification of its facili

ties for medical device manufacturing There can be no assurance we

will be able to provide the required medical device documentation

prove clinical
utility

in manner sufficient to obtain medical device

approval or make such changes promptly or in manner that is satis

factory to regulatory authorities If we obtain such medical device ap

proval in order to sell product in one market such approval may be

used as precedent to claim that similar approval should be required

in another market Such additional requirements could negatively im
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pact the cost associated with manufacturing the Galvanic Spa Sys

tem andsale of the Galvanic Spa System as non-medical device in

those markets

Changes to our distributor compensation arrangements
could be

viewed negatively by some distributors could fail to achieve desired

long-term results and have negative impact on revenue

Our distributor compensation plan includes some components

that differ from market to market We modify components of our

compensation plan from time to time in an attempt to keep our com

pensation plan competitive and attractive to existing and potential

distributors to address changing market dynamics to provide incen

tives to distributors that we believe will help grow our business to

conform to local regulations and to address other business needs

Because of the size of our distributor force and the complexity of our

compensation plans it is difficult to predict how such changes will be

viewed by distributors and whether such changes will achieve their

desired results For example certain changes we made to our com

pensation plan in 2005 which had been successful in several markets

did not achieve anticipated results in Japan China and certain mar

kets in Southeast Asia and negatively impacted our business

Our ability to conduct business particularly in international markets

may be affected by political legal tax and regulatory risks

Our ability to capitalize on growth in new international markets

and to maintain the current level of operations in our existing interna

tional markets is exposed to risks associated with our international

operations including

the possibility that foreign government might ban or severely

restrict our business method of direct selling or that local civil

unrest political instability or changes in diplomatic or trade

relationships might disrupt our operations in an international

market

the lack of well-established or reliable legal systems in certain

areas where we operate

the
presence

of high inflation in the economies of international

markets in which we operate

the possibility that government authority might impose legal

tax or other financial burdens on us or our distributors due for

example to the structure of our operations in various markets

and

the possibility that government authority might challenge the

status of our distributors as independent contractors or impose

employment or social taxes on our distributors

Another risk associated with our international operations is the

possibility that foreign government may impose currency remit

tance restrictions Due to the possibility of government restrictions

on transfers of cash out of the country and control of exchange rates

we may not be able to immediately repatriate cash at the official ex

change rate or if the official exchange rate devalues it may have

material adverse effect on our business results of operations and fi

nancial condition

Our international operations may also expose us to the risk that

we violate the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act FCPA or related

U.S and foreign laws Any determination that our operations or ac

tivities are not in compliance with existing laws or regulations could

result in the imposition of substantial fines civil and criminal penalties

equitable remedies including disgorgement injunctive relief and

other sanctions against us or our personnel In addition other coun

tries in which we do business may initiate their own investigations and

impose similar sanctions Should this be the case there can be no

assurance as to how the resulting consequences if any may impact

our internal controls business reputation results of operations or fi

nancial condition One of our competitors has announced that it is

investigating claims that its employees violated the FCPA in China

and other markets If this investigation causes adverse publicity or in

creased scrutiny of our industry our business could be harmed

We are also subject to the interpretation and enforcement by

governmental agencies of other foreign laws rules regulations or

policies including any changes thereto such as restrictions on trade

import and
export

license requirements privacy and data protection

laws and tariffs and taxes which may require us to adjust our opera

tions in certain markets where we do business In addition we face

legal and regulatory risks in the United Statesand in particular can

not predict with certainty the outcome of various contingencies or

the impact that pending or future legislative and regulatory changes

may have on our business in the future

If we are unable to successfully expand and grow operations within

developing markets we may have difficulty achieving our long-term

objectives

significant percentage of our revenue growth over the past

decade has been attributable to our expansion into new markets Our

growth over the next several years depends in part on our ability to

successfully introduce products and tools and to successfully imple

ment initiatives in developing markets that will help generate growth
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in addition to the regulatory difficulties we may face in introducing

our products and initiatives in these markets we could face difficulties

in achieving acceptance of our premium-priced products in develop

ing
markets In the past we have struggled to operate profitably in

developing markets We may experience similar difficulty in our cur

rent and future new markets If we are unable to successfully expand

our operations within these developing markets our opportunities to

grow our business may be limited and as result we may not be able

to achieve our long-term objectives

Adverse publicity concerning our business marketing plan or prod

ucts could harm our business and reputation

The size of our distribution force and the results of our opera

tions can be particularly impacted by adverse publicity regarding us

the nature of our distributor network our products or the actions of

our distributors Specifically we are susceptible to adverse publicity

concerning

suspicions about the legality and ethics of network marketing

the safety or effectiveness of ingredients in our or our com

petitors products

regulatory investigations of us our competitors and our re

spective products

the actions of our current or former distributors and

public perceptions
of the direct selling industry or the nutri

tional or personal care industry generally

For example in 2010 we received 60-day notice from con

sumer group in California of its intent to file citizen enforcement

action under California Proposition 65 alleging that we failed to warn

consumers of
exposure to lead in four of our products We are aware

that number of other nutritional companies have received similar

notices and withdrawals from the same group In 2010 we also re

ceived letter from the California Attorney General alleging that

one of our products contained lead in excess of the level allowed un

der California Proposition 65 If one or more of these products is

found to be in violation of California Proposition 65 we may be re

quired to reformulate the product label the product in compliance

with California Proposition 65 or at our election discontinue selling

the product in California We may also be required to pay civil fines

Although we believe we are in compliance with the requirements of

California Proposition 65 any negative media attention or other ad

verse publicity created by these allegations or any new or additional

allegations could negatively impact consumer and distributor per

ceptions of our products and harm our business

In addition in the past we have experienced negative publicity

that has harmed our business in connection with regulatory investiga

tions and inquiries Crtics of our industry and other individuals who

want to pursue an agenda have in the past and may in the future

utilize the internet the press and other means to publish criticisms of

the industry our company and our competitors or make allegations

regarding our business and operations or the business and opera

tions of our competitors We or others in our industry may receive

similar negative publicity or allegations in the future and it may harm

our business and reputation

Any failure of our internal controls over financial reporting or our

compliance efforts could harm our financial and operating results or

result in fines or penalties if our employees or distributors violate

any material laws or regulations

We have implemented internal controls to help ensure the ac

curacy of our financial reporting and have implemented compliance

policies and programs to help ensure that our employees and dis

tributors comply with applicable laws and regulations Our internal

audit team regularly audits our internaLcontrols and various aspects

of our business and we regularly assess the effectiveness of our inter

nal controls In addition our independent external auditor audits our

controls and provides its opinion regarding the effectiveness of our

controls There can be no assurance however that these internal or

external assessments and audits will identify all significant or material

weaknesses in our internal controls If we fail to identify material

weakness or if we fail to correct any noted weakness there would be

risk that we may have to restate financial statements if the material

weakness resulted in material misstatement in our financial results

From time to time we initiate further investigations into our

business operations based on the results of these audits or com

plaints questions or allegations made by employees or other parties

regarding our business practices and operations In addition our

business and operations may be investigated by applicable govern

ment authorities In the event any of these investigations identify ma

terial violations of applicable laws by our employees or distributors

we could be subject to adverse publicity fines penalties or loss of li

censes or permits

Inability of new products and other initiatives to gain distributor and

market acceptance could harm our business

Our ability to retain key and executivelevel distributors or to

sponsor new executive distributors is critical to our success Because

our products are distributed exclusively through our distributors and

we compete with other direct selling companies in attracting distrib

utors our operating results could be adversely affected if our existing

and new business opportunities and incentives products and other

initiatives do not generate sufficient enthusiasm and economic incen

tive to retain our existing distributors or to sponsor new distributors
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on sustained basis Factors that could affect our ability to continue

to introduce new products include among others government regu

lations the inability to attract and retain qualified research and devel

opment staff the termination of third-party research and collabora

tive arrangements proprietary protections of competitors that may

limit our ability to offer comparable products and the difficulties in

anticipating changes in consumer tastes and buying preferences In

addition in our more mature markets one of the challenges we face

is keeping distributor leaders with established businesses and high

income levels motivated and actively engaged in business building

activities and in developing new distributor leaders There can be no

assurance that our initiatives will continue to generate excitement

among our distributors in the long-term or that planned initiatives will

be successful in maintaining distributor activity and productivity or in

motivating distributor leaders to remain engaged in business building

and developing new distributor leaders Some initiatives may have

unanticipated negative impacts on our distributors particularly

changes to our compensation plan The introduction of new prod

uct or key initiative can-also negatively impact other product lines to

the extent our distributor leaders focus their efforts on the new prod

uct or initiative In addition if

any
of our products fail to gain distribu

tor acceptance we could see an increase in returns

The loss of key high-level distributors could negatively impact our

distributor growth and our revenue

As of December 31 2010 we had global network of approxi

mately 800000 active distributors Approximately 36000 of our

distributors were executive distributors Approximately 480 distribu

tors occupied the-highest distributor level under our global compen

sation plan as of that date These distributors together with their ex

tensive networks of downline distributors generate substantially all of

our revenue As result the loss of high-level distributor or group

of leading distributors in the distributors network of downline dis

tributors whether by their own choice or through disciplinary actions

by us for violations of our policies and procedures could negatively

impact our distributor growth and our revenue

We are currently involved in disputes regarding customs assess

ments in Japan and any adverse rulings in these matters could re

quire us to take charges to our earnings

We are currently involved in two separate disputes with the cus

toms authorities in Japan with respect to duty assessments on sev

eral of our Pharmanex nutritional products totaling approximately 5.3

billion Japanese yen as of December 31 2010 approximately $65.3

million net of
any recovery

of consumption taxes We also recently

were notified that we are likely to receive an additional assessment of

0.6 billion Japanese yen approximately $7.7 million related to the

second dispute

The first dispute relates to additional customs assessments made

by Yokohama Customs for the period of October 2002 through July

2005 The aggregate amount of these additional assessments is 2.7

billion Japanese yen approximately $33.2 million as of December 31

2010 net of
any recovery

of consumption taxes The final hearing on

this matter was held on February 2011 and the court indicated it

would issue decision on this case on March 25201 Either party has

the right to appeal this decision If we receive an adverse decision in

this case we may be required to record an expense
for the full amount

of the disputed assessments or $33.2 million

The second dispute relates to additional customs assessments

made by Yokohama Customs for the period of October 2006

through November 2008 in connection with an audit in 2009 as well

as the disputed portion of our current import duty rate we have been

required to pay or hold in bond and have paid under protest since

October of 2009 The
aggregate amount of these addiional assess

ments and disputed duties is 2.6 billion Japanese yen as of Decem

ber 31 2010 approximately $32.1 million net of any recovery of con

sumption taxes We were also recently notified that we are likely
to be

assessed an additional 0.6 billion Japanese yen as of December 31

2010 approximately $7.7 million net of any recovery of consumption

taxes based on an audit of the period of November 2008 through

September 2009 With this assessment we have been required to

pay or hold in bond amounts for all periods from October 2006 to

resent and we believe that additional assessments related to any

prior period would be barred by applicable statutes of limitations To

the extent that we are unsuccessful in recovering the amounts as

sessed and paid or held in bond we will likely be required to record an

expense for the full amount of the disputed assessments or $32.1 mil

lion as of December 312010

Government authorities may question our tax positions or transfer

pricing policies or change their laws in manner that could increase

our effective tax rate or otherwise harm our business

As U.S company doing business in international markets

through subsidiaries we are subject to various tax and intercompany

pricing laws including those relating to the flow of funds between our

company and our subsidiaries From time to time we are audited by

tax regulators in the United States and in our foreign markets If regu

lators challenge our tax positions corporate structure transfer pricing

mechanisms or intercompany transfers we may be subject to fines

and payment of back taxes our effective tax rate may increase and

our operations may be harmed Tax rates vary
from country to coun
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try and if regulators determine that our profits in one jurisdiction may

need to be increased we may not be able to fully utilize all foreign tax

credits that are generated which will increase our effective tax rate

For example our corporate income tax rate in the United States is

35% If our profitability in higher tax jurisdiction such as Japan where

the corporate tax rate is currently set at 45% increases disproportion

ately to the rest of our business our effective tax rate may increase

The various customs exchange control and transfer pricing laws are

continually changing and are subject to the interpretation of govern

meht agencies Despite our efforts to be aware of and comply with

such laws and changes to and interpretations thereof there is risk

that we may not continue to operate in compliance with such laws

We may need to adjust our operating procedures in
response to such

changes and as result our business may suffer

In addition due to the international nature of our business we

are subject from time to time to reviews and audits by the foreign

taxing authorities of other jurisdictions in which we conduct business

throughout the world

We may be held responsible for certain taxes or assessments relat

ing to the activities of our distributors which could harm our finan

cial condition and operating results

Our distributors are subject to taxation and in some instances

legislation or governmental agencies impose an obligation on us to

collect taxes such as value added taxes and to maintain appropriate

records In addition we are subject to the risk in some jurisdictions of

being responsible for social security and similar taxes with respect to

our distributors In the event that local laws and regulations or the

interpretation of local laws and regulations change to require us to

treat our independent distributors as employees or that our distrib

utors are deemed by local regulatory authorities in one or more of

the jurisdictions in which we operate to be our employees rather

than independent contractors under existing laws and interpreta

tions we may be held responsible for social security and related

taxes in those jurisdictions plus any related assessments and penal

ties which could harm our financial condition and operating results

If our distributors were deemed to be employees rather than inde

pendent contractors we would also face the threat of increased vi

carious liability for their actions

Production difficulties and quality control problems could harm our

business

Production difficulties and quality control problems and our re

liance on third party suppliers to deliver quality products in timely

manner could harm our business Occasionally we have experienced

production difficulties with respect to our products including the

import or export
of ingredients and delivery of products that do not

meet our specifications and quality control standards These quality

problems have resulted in the past and could result in the future in

stock outages or shortages in our markets with respect to such prod

ucts harming our sales and creating inventory write-offs for unus

able products

Beginning with the 2009 launch of our ageLOC Transformation

skin care system we have launched new products globally on con

densed schedule which has increased
pressure on our sJpply chain If

we are not able to accurately forecast sales levels on market by mar

ket basis or are unable to produce sufficient supply to meet such

demand globally we may incur higher expedited shipping costs and

we may experience stockouts which coLld negatively impact the en

thusiasm of our distributors However if we over forecast demand for

global product launch we could incur increased write-offs

The loss of or disruption in our manufacturing and distribution

operations could adversely affect our business

As of December 312010 our principal properties consist of dis

tribution centers where offices are located and where finished mer

chandise is packed and shipped to distributors in fulfillment of their

orders our worldwide headquarters three research and development

facilities and 40 retail stores and manufacturing facilities in mainland

China Additionally we also use third party manufacturers to manu

facture certain of our products As company engaged in manufac

turing distribution and research and development on global scale

we are subject to the risks inherent in such activities including indus

trial accidents environmental events fires strikes and other labor or

industrial disputes disruptions in logistics or information systems loss

or impairment of key manufacturing or distribution sites product

quality control safety licensing requirements and other regulatory or

government issues as well as natural disasters pandemics border

disputes acts of terrorism and other external factors over which we

have no control These risks may be exacerbated by our efforts to in

crease facility consolidation covering our manufacturing distribution

and supply footprints or ifwe are unable to successfully enhance our

disaster recovery planning The loss of or damage to any of our fa

cilities or centers or that of our third party manufacturers could have

material adverse effect on our business results of operations and

financial condition

Disruptions to transportation channels that we use to distribute our

products to international warehouses may adversely affect our mar

gins and profitability in those markets

We may experience disruptions to the transportation channels

used to distribute our products including increased airport and ship

ping port congestion lack of transportation capacity increased fuel

expenses and shortage of manpower Disruptions in our container

shipments may result in increased costs including the additional use

of airfreight to meet demand Although we have not recently experi

enced significant shipping disruptions we continue to watch for signs

of upcoming congestion Congestion to ports can affect previously
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negotiated contracts with shipping companies resulting in unexpect

ed increases in shipping costs and reduction in our net sales

We depend on our key personnel and the loss of the services pro

vided by any of our executive officers or other key employees could

harm our business and results of operations

Our success depends to significant degree upon the contin

ued contributions of our senior management many of whom would

be difficult to replace In addition expatriates serve in key manage

ment positions in several of our foreign markets including Japan and

China These employees may voluntarily terminate their employ

ment with us at any time We may not beable to successfully retain

existing personnel or identify hire and
integrate new personnel We

do not carry key person insurance for
any of our personnel Although

we have signed offer letters or written agreements summarizing the

compensation terms for some of our senior executives we have gen

erally not entered into formal employment agreements
with our ex

ecutive officers If we lose the services of our executive officers or key

employees for
any reason our business financial condition and re

sults of operations could be harmed

Our markets are intensely competitive and market conditions and

the strengths of competitors may harm our business

The markets for our products are intensely competitive Our re

sults of operations maybe harmed by market conditions and competi

tion in the future Many competitors have much greater name recog

nition and financial resources than we have which may give them

competitive advantage For example our Nu Skin products compete

directlywith branded premium retail products We also compete with

other direct selling organizations Some of the leading direct selling

companies in our existing markets are Herbalife Mary Kay Oriflame

Melaleuca Avon and Amway Because of regulatory restrictions con

cerning claims about the efficacy of personal care products and di

etary supplements we may have difficulty differentiating our products

from our competitors products and competing products entering the

personal care and nutritional market could harm our revenue

We also compete with other network marketing companies for

distributors Some of these competitors have longer operating his

tory and greater visibility name recognition and financial resources

than we do Some of our competitors have also adopted and could

continue to adopt some of our.successful business strategies includ

ing our global compensation plan for distributors Consequently to

successfully compete in this market and attract and retain distribu

tors we must ensure that our business opportunities and compensa

tion plans are financially rewarding We are beginning our27th year in

this industry and believe we have significant competitive advantages

but we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully compete

in every endeavor in this market

Any future acquisitions may expose us to additional risks

From time to time we review acquisition prospects that would

complement our current product offerings increase the size and

geographic scope of our operations or otherwise offer growth and

operating efficiency opportunities The financing for any of these ac

quisitions could dilute the interests of our stockholders result in an

increase in our indebtedness or both Acquisitions may entail numer

ous risks including

difficulties in assimilating acquired operations orproducts in

cluding the loss of key employees from acquired businqsses

and disruption to our direct selling channel

diversion of managements attention from our core business

adverse effects on existing
business relationships with suppliers

and customers and

risks of entering markets in which we have limited or no prior

experience

Our failure to successfully complete the integration of any ac

quired business could have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition and operating results In addition there can be no

assurance that we will be able to identify suitable acquisition candi

dates or consummate acquisitions on favorable terms

Product
liability

claims could harm our business

We may be required to pay
for losses or injuries purportedly or

actually caused by our products Although historically we have had

very limited number and relatively low financial exposure from product

claims we have experienced difficulty
in finding insurers that are willing

to provide product liability coverage at reasonable rates due to insur

ance industry trends and the
rising

cost of insurance generally As re

sult we have elected to self-insure our product liability risks for our

product lines Until we elect and are able at reasonable rates to obtain

product liability insurance if any of our products are found to cause any

injury or damage we will be subject to the full amount of liability associ

ated with any injuries or damages This
liability

could be substantial and

may exceed our reserves We cannot predict if and when product liabil

ity
insurance will be available to us on reasonable terms

We are involved and may become involved in the future in legal

proceedings that if adversely adjudicated or settled could adverse

ly affect our financial results

We are and may in the future become party to litigation In gen

eral litigation claims can be expensive and time consuming to bring

or defend against and could result in settlements or damages that

could significantly affect financial results We are currently vigorously

contesting certain of these
litigation

claims However it is not possi
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ble to predict the final resolution of the
litigation to which we cur

rently are or may in the future become party to and the impact of

certain of these matters on our business results of operations and fi

nancial condition could be material

Our intellectual property may infringe on the rights of others

resulting in costly litigation In recent years
there has been significant

litigation in the United States involving patents and other intellectual

property rights In particular there has been an increase in the
filing

of

suits alleging infringement of intellectual
property rights which

pres

sure defendants into entering settlement arrangements quickly to

dispose of such suits regardless of their merit Other companies or

individuals may allege that we our customers licensees or other par

ties indemnified by us infringe on their intellectual property rights

Even if we believe that such claims are without merit defending such

intellectual property litigation can be costly distract managements

attention and resources and the outcome is inherently uncertain

Claims of intellectual property infringement also might require us to

redesign affected products enter into costly settlement Or license

agreements pay costly damage awards or face temporary or per

manent injunction prohibiting us from marketing or selling certain of

our products Any of these results may adversely affect our financial

condition

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights our abil

ity to compete could be negatively impacted

The market for our products depends to significant extent

upon the value associated with our product nnovations and our brand

equity We
rely upon patent copyright trademark and trade secret

laws in the United States and similar laws in other countries and non

disclosure confidentiality and other types of agreements with our em

ployees customers suppliers and other parties to establish maintain

and enforce our intellectual property rights Despite these measures

any of our intellectual property rights could be challenged invalidated

circumvented or misappropriated or such intellectual property rights

may not be sufficient to permit us to provide competitive advantages

which could result in costly product redesign efforts discontinuance of

certain product offerings or other competitive harm In addition the

laws of certain foreign countries including many emerging markets

may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as

the laws of the United States The costs required to protect our pat

ents and trademarks may be substantial We have filed patent applica

tions to protect our intellectual property rights in our new technolo

gies however there can be no assurance that our patent applications

will be approved that any patents issued will adequately protect our

intellectual property or that such patents
will not be challenged by

third parties or found by judicial authority to be invalid or unenforce

able Moreover many of our products rely on technologies developed

or licensed by third parties and we may not be able to obtain or con-

tinue to obtain licenses and technologies from these third parties at all

or on reasonable terms

In order to protect or enforce and protect our intellectual prop

erty rights we may initiate litigation against third parties such as pat

ent infringement suits or interference proceedings Any lawsuits that

we initiate could be expensive take significant time and divert man

agements attention from other business concerns Litigation also

puts our patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrowly

and our patent applications at risk of not issuing Additionally we may

provoke third parties to assert claims against us We may not prevail

in any lawsuits that we initiate and the damages or other remedies

awarded if any may not be commercially valuable The occurrence of

any of these events may adversely affect our financial condition

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality of our proprietary in

formation and know-how the value of our products could be ad

versely affected

In addition to patented technology we rely on our unpatented

proprietary technology trade secrets processes and know-how De

spite these measures any of our intellectual property rights could

however be challenged invalidated circumvented or misappropriat

ed We generally seek to protect this information by confidentiality

non-disclosure and assignment of invention agreements with our

employees consultants scientific advisors and third parties Our em

ployees may leave to work for competitors These agreements may

be breached and we may not have adequate remedies for any
such

breach In addition our trade secrets may be disclosed to or other

wise become known or be independently developed by competitors

To the extent that our current or former employees consultants or

contractors use intellectual property
owned by others in their work

for us disputes may arise as to the rights in related or resulting know-

how and inventions If for any of the above reasons our intellectual

property is disclosed or misappropriated it would harm our ability to

protect our rights and adversely affect our financial condition

We may be subject to claims that our employees or we have inadver

tently or otherwise used or disclosed alleged trade secrets or other

proprietary information of former employers of our employees

We employ individuals who were previously employed at other

personal care product or nutritional supplement companies includ

ing our competitors or potential competitors To the extent that our

employees are involved in research areas that are similar to those in

which they were involved with their former employers we may be

subject to claims that such employees have inadvertently or other

wise used or disclosed the alleged trade secrets or other proprietary

information of the former employers Litigation may be necessary to

defend against such claims
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System failures could harm our business

Because of our diverse geographic operations and our complex

distributor compensation plan our business is highly dependent on

efficiently functioning information technology systems These sys

tems and operations are vulnerable to damage or interruption from

fires earthquakes telecommunications failures and other events

They are also subject to break-ins sabotage intentional acts of van

dalism and similar misconduct We have adopted and implemented

Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan Our primary data sets

are archived and stored at third-party secure sites We have set up

recovery site for certain critical data and operations related to our dis

tributors and we are currently setting up recovery site for certain

other critical data and operations Despite these precautions the bc

currence of natural disaster or other unanticipated problems could

result in interruptions in services and reduce our revenue and profits

Epidemics and other global health risks could negatively impact our

business

Our revenue was negatively impacted in 2003 by the SARS

epidemic that hit Asia during that
year

It is difficult to predict the

impact on our business if any of recurrence of SARS or the emer

gence
of new epidemics such as avian flu or H1N1 flu Although such

events could generate increased sales of health and immune supple

ments and certain personal care products our direct selling and retail

activities and results of operations could be harmed if the fear of any

communicable and rapidly spreading disease results in travel restric

tions or causes people to avoid group meetings or gatherings or in

teraction with other people In addition most of our Pharmanex nu

tritional supplement revenue is generated from products that are

encapsulated in bovine- and/or porcine-sourced gel capsules If we

experience production difficulties quality control problems or short

ages in supply in connection with bovine or porcine related health

concerns this could result in additional risk of product shortages or

write-offs of inventory that no longer can be used We may be unable

to introduce our products in some markets if we are unable to obtain

the necessary regulatory approvals or if any product ingredients are

prohibited which could harm our business

The market price of our Class common stock is subject to sig

nificant fluctuations due to number of factors that are beyond

our control

Our Class common stock closed at $9.64 per share on Febru

ary 22009 and closed at $31.21 per share on February 12011 During

this two-year period our Class common stock traded as low as

$7.90 per share and as high as $33.99 per share Many factors could

cause the market price of our Class common stock to fall Some of

these factors include

fluctuations in our quarterly operating results

the sale of shares of Class common stock by our original or

significant stockholders

general trends in the market for our products

acquisitions by us or our competitors

economic and/or currency exchange issues in markets in which

we operate

changes in estimates of our operating performance or changes

in recommendations by securities analysts and

general business and
political conditions

Broad market fluctuations could also lower the market price of

our Class common stock regardless of our actual operating perfor

mance

If our stockholders sell substantial number of shares of our Class

common stock in the public market the market price of our Class

common stock could fall

Several of our principal stockholders hold large number of

shares of the outstanding Class common stock Some of the origi

nal stockholders have actively sold shares during the last year Addi

tional sales by these stockholders or decision by any of the other

principal stockholders to aggressively sell shares could depress the

market price of our Class common stock As of December 31

2010 we had approximately 62.1 million shares of Class common

stock outstanding

ITEM lB

None

ITEM

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

PROPERTIES

Our principal properties consist of the following

Operational Facilities These facilities include administrative of

fices walk-in centers and warehouse/distribution centers Our oper

ational facilities measu.ring 30000 square feet or more include the

following

our worldwide headquarters in Provo Utah

our worldwide distribution center/warehouse in Provo Utah and

our distribution center in Tokyo Japan
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Manufacturing Facilities Each of our manufacturing facilities

measure 30000 square feet or more and include the following

our nutritional supplement manufacturing facility in Zhejiang

Province China

our personal care manufacturing facility in Shanghai China

our Vitameal manufacturing facility in Jixi Heilongjiang Province

our herbal extraction facility in Zhejiang Province

Retail Stores As of December 31 2010 we operated 40 stores

throughout China

Research and Development Centers We operate three re

search and development centers one in Provo Utah one in Shanghai

China and one in Beijing China We are currently in the design

phase of building state-of-the-art innovation center adjacent to our

corporate headquarters We believe this facility
will cost approxi

mately $85 million and will take roughly two years to complete

We own our corporate headquarters buildings distribution center

and research and development center located in Provo Utah We

also own our nutritional supplement plant in China and few other

minor facilities We currently lease the other properties described

above We believe that our existing and planned facilities are ade

quate for our current operations in each of our existing markets

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Due to the international nature of our business we are subject from

time to time to reviews and audits by the foreign taxing authorities of

the various jurisdictions in which we conduct business throughout the

world We are currently involved in two separate disputes with the cus

toms authorities in Japan with respect to duty assessments on several

of our Pharmanex nutritional products totaling approximately 5.3 billion

Japanese yen as of December 31 2010 approximately $65.3 million

net of
any recovery of consumption taxes We also recently were notified

that we are likely to receive an additional assessment of 0.6 billion Jap

anese yen approximately $7.7 million related to the second dispute

The first dispute relates to additional customs assessments made

by Yokohama Customs for the period of October 2002 through July

2005 The aggregate amount of these additional assessments is 2.7

billion Japanese yen approximately $33.2 million as of December 31

2010 net of any recovery of consumption taxes Thu dispute relates to

whether we used the proper valuation methbd for these products in

determining the applicable customs duties The primary legal issue in

the case is whether the relevant import transaction is sale between

our third party
manufacturers and our Japan subsidiary or sale between

our US subsidiary and our Japan subsidiary In 1999 we worked with the

Yokohama Customs authorities to restructure the form of the relevant

transactions in order to have the import tansaction be sale between

our third party
manufacturers and our Japan subsidiary and thus have

the duties assessed on the price paid to our third party manufacturers

With the input and guidance of the Yokohama Customs authorities we

restructured the form of the transaction and the agreements between

the relevant parties based on these discussions so that our US subsidiary

would be acting on behalf of our Japan subsidiary with respect to the

purchase of these products rather than as buyer/seller Our Japan

subsidiary entered into Memorandum of Understanding with each of

our third party manufacturers of the relevant products which provided

that our Japan subsidiary was the purchaser of the products and that

our US subsidiary was acting for and on behalf of our Japan subsidiary

with respect to these products Our Japan subsidiary also entered into

Memorandum of Understanding with our US subsidiary document

ing the same agency relationship We believe that these legal documents

establish that our US subsidiary was acting as an agent and not buyer

and seller of the relevant products The additional assessment of duties

by Yokohama Customs was based on its re-characterization of the

transaction as sale between our US subsidiary and our Japan subsid

iary for custom law purposes despite the legal form of the transaction

We do not believe the legal documentation supports the re-character

ization of these transactions Yokohama Customs has raised several

issues to support itsre-characterization including the fact that have

treated the relevant transaction as sale between our US subsidiary

and Japan subsidiary for income tax purposes However we believe that

the relevant income tax and transfer pricing
rules and regulations apply

different standards and are not relevant to the customs issue Because

we believe that the legal documentation for these transactions support

our position we filed complaint in the Tokyo District Court Civil Ac

tion Section in December 2006 to have the Ministry of Finances af

firmation of the additional assessments reversed The final hearing on

this matter was held on February 12011 and the court indicated it would

issue decisin on this case on March 252011 Either party has the right

to appeal this decision lfwe receive an adverse decision in this case we

may be required to record an expense
for the full amount of the dis

puted assessments or $33.2 million

The second dispute relates to additional customs assessments made

by Yokohama Customs for the period of October 2006 through No

vember 2008 in connection with an audit in 2009 as well as the dis

puted portion of our current import duty rate we have been required to

pay or hold in bond and have paid under protest since October of 2009

The
aggregate amount of these additional assessments and disputed

duties is 2.6 billion Japanese yen as of December 31 2010 approxi

mately $32.1 million net of any recovery of consumption taxes We were

also recently notified that we are likely to be assessed an additional 0.6

billion Japanese yen approximately $7.7 million net of any recovery of
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consumption taxes based on an audit of the period of November 2008

through September 2009 With this assessment we have been required

to pay or hold in bond amounts for all periods from October 2006 to

present and we believe that additional assessments related to any prior

period would be barred by applicable statutes of limitations In July

2005 we changed our operating structure in Japan and believed that

these changes would eliminate further valuation disputes with Yoko

hama Customs as the new structure eliminated the issues that were the

basis of the litigation in the first dispute i.e whether our US subsidiary

was acting as an agent
for our Japan subsidiary or was acting as the

seller However in October 2009 we received notice from Yokohama

Customs authorities that they were assessing additional duties penal

ties and interest for the period of October 2006 through November

2008 based on their view that we were not utilizing
the

proper
valuation

method The basis for such additional assessment is different from the

issues that are being litigated
in the first dispute The issue in this second

case is whether US entity utilizing
commissionaire agent in Japan

to import its products can use the manufacturers invoice or must use

another valuation method and if an alternative method must be used

what the allowable deductions would be in determining the proper

valuation Following our review of the assessments and after consulting

with our legal and customs advisors we believe that the additional as

sessments are improper and are not supported by applicable customs

laws We filed letters of protest with Yokohama Customs which were

rejected We have appealed the matter to the Ministry of Financ in

Japan In addition we are currently being required to post bond or

make deposit equal to the difference between our declared duties and

the amount the customs authorities have determined we should be

paying on all current imports Because we believe that the higher rate

determined by the customs authorities is an improper application of the

regulations we are currently expensing the portion of the duties we

believe is supported under applicable customs law and recording the

additional deposit or
payment

as receivable within long-term assets

in our consolidated financial statements To the extent that we are unsuc

cessful in recovering the amounts assessed and paid or held in bond

we will
likely

be required to record an expense for the full amount of the

disputed assessments or $32 million as of December 31 2010

ITEM AND RESERVED

PART II

MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS

COMMON EQUITY RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY

SECURITI ES

Our Class common stock is listed on the New York Stock Ex

change NYSE and trades under the symbol NUS The follow

ing tabe is based upon the information available to us and sets forth

the range of the high and low sales prices for our Class common

stock for the quarterly periods during 2009 and 2010 based upon

quotations on the NYSE

_______________ _____ High Low

11.56 7.90

15.70 1005

September 302009 18.80

December 312009 28.78

The market price of our Class common stock is subject to

significant fluctuations in response to variations in our quarterly oper

ating results general trends in the market for our products and prod

uct candidates economic and
currency exchange issues in the for

eign markets in which we operate
and other factors many of which

are not within our control In addition broad market fluctuations as

well as general economic business regulatory and
political

condi

tions may adversely affect the market for our Class common stock

regardless of our actual or projected performance

The closing price of our Class common stock on February

2011 was $31.21 The approximate number of holders of record of our

Class common stock as of February 12011 was 626 This number of

holders of record does not represent the actual number of beneficial

owners of shares of our Class common stock because shares are

frequently held in street name by securities dealers and others for the

benefit of individual owners who have the right to vote their shares

DIVIDENDS

We declared and paid $0115 per
share dividend for Class com

mon stock in March June September and December of 2009 and

$0125 per share quarterly dividend for Class common stock in March

June September and December of 2010 The board of directors has

approved an increased quarterly cash dividend of $0135 per share of

Class common stock to be paid on March 162011 to stockholders of

record on February 252011 Annually this would increase the dividend

to $0.54 from $0.50 in the prior year Management believes that cash

flows from operations will be sufficient to fund this and future dividend

payments if

any

ITEM

Quarter Ended

March 312009

June 30 2009

Quarter Ended

March 312010

June 302010

September 302010

14.69

18.23

High Low

30.23 22.86

33.99 23.12

29.87 23.55

28.24December 31 2010 32.72
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We expect to continue to pay dividends on our common stock However the declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of our board

of directors and will depend upon various factors including our net earnings financial condition cash requirements future prospects and other fac

tors deemed relevant by our board of directors

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

Approximate Dollar Value

Total Number of Shares of Shares that may yet be

Total Number Purchased as Part of Purchased Under the

of Shares Average Price Publicly Announced Plans or Programs

Period Purchased Paid per Share Plans or Programs in millions1

October 1312010 12649 29.21 10500 160.8

November 30 2010 105000 30.80 105000 157.6

December 31 2010 157446 31.29 146000 153.6

Total 2750952 31.01 261500

In August1998 our board of directors approved plan to repurchase $10.0 million of our Class common stock on the open market or in private
transactions Our board has

from time to time increased the amount authorized under the plan including
$150.0 million increase in June 2010 and total amount of approximately $485.0 million is currentJy

authorized As of December 31 2b10 we had repurchased approximately $331.4 million of shares under the plan There has been no termination or expiration
of the plan since

the initial date of approval

12 We have authorized the repurchase of shares acquired by our employees and distributors in certain foreign markets because of regulatory and other issues that make it difficult

or costly for these persons to sell such shares in the open market These shares were awarded or acquired in connection with our initial public offering in 1996 Of the shares listed

in this column 2149 shares in October at an average price per
share of $31.79 and 11446 shares in December at an average price per

share of $31.61 relate to repurchases from

such employees and distributors
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Set forth below is line graph comparing the cumulative total stockholder return stock price appreciation pius dividends on the Class

Common Stock with the cumulative total return of the SP 500 Index market-weighted index of publicly traded peers Peer Group for

the period from December 31 2005 through December 31 2010 The graph assumes that $100 is invested in each of the Class Common

Stock the SP 500 Index and each of the indexes of publicly traded peers on December 312005 and that all dividends were reinvested Th

Peer Group consists of all of the following companies which compete in our industry and product categories Avon Products Inc Estee

Lauder Tupperware Corporation Herbalife LTD USANA Health Sciences Inc and Alberto Culver Co
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Measured Period Company SP 500 Index

December 312005

December 312006

December 312007

December 31 2008

December 312009

December 312010

100.00

106.04

98.02

64.16

170.40

195.34

100.00

115.80

122.16

76.96

97.33

111.99

100.00

120.23

140.08

94.79

138.61

169.10

Peer Group Index
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data as of and for the
years

ended December 312006200720082009 and 2010 have been

derived from the audited consolidated financial statements

Year Ended December 31

Supplemental Operating Data at end of period

Approximate number of active distributors

Number of executive distributors1

Active distributors include preFerred customers and distributors purchasing products directly from us during the three months ended as of the date indicated An executive

distributor is an active distributor who has achieved required personal and group sales volumes

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

U.S dollars in thousands escept per share data and cash dividends

1157667 1247646 1331058 1537259

209283 228597 243648 272431

948384 1019049 1087410 1264828

499095 533151 559605 646348

358601 360470 369368 401418

19775 10724

877471 893621 939697 1047766

70913 125428 147713 217062

2435 24775 6589 9449

68478 100653 141124 207613

24606 35306 51279 71562

43872 65347 89845 136051

Income Statement Data

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Selling expenses

General and administrative expenses

Restructuring charges

Impairment of assets and other

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other income expense net

Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income

Net income per share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 000s

Basic

Diluted

Balance Sheet Data at end of period

Cash and cash equivalents and current investments

Working capital

Total assets

Current portion of long-term debt

Long-term debt

Stockholders equity

Cash dividends declared

1115409

195203

920206

482931

350617

11115

20840

865503

54703

2027

52676

19859

32817

69418

70506

121353

109418

664849

26652

136173

318980

0.40

761000

29756

63510

64132

63333

64296

62370

64547

0.47 0.68 1.03 1.42 2.18

0.47 0.67 1.02 1.40 2.11

64783

65584

92552

95175

683243

31441

169229

275009

0.42

755000

30002

114586

124036

709772

30196

158760

316180

0.44

761000

30588

58
152731

748449

35400

121119

375687

0.46

761000

32939

230337

206078

892224

27865

133013

471249

0.50

799000

35676
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of op

eration should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial

Statements and related Notes thereto which are included in this An

nual Report on Form 10-K

OVERVIEW

We are leading global direct selling company with operations

in over 51 markets worldwide We develop and distribute innovative

premium-quality anti-aging personal care products and nutritional

supplements under our Nu Skin and Pharmanex brands respectively

We strive to secure competitive advantage in four key areas our

people our products the culture we promote and the business op

portunities we offer In 2010 we posted record revenue of $1.5 billion

Revenue in 2010 grew 15% based on the success of strong product

launches and distributor initiatives As of December 312010 we had

global network of approximately 800000 active independent dis

tributors Approximately 36000 of our distributors were qualified

sales leaders we refer to as executive distributors Our executive

distributors play critical eadership role in the growth and develop

ment of our business Approximately 86% of our 2010 revenue came

from markets outside the United States While we have become

more geographically diverse over the past decade Japan our largest

revenue market accounted for approximately 31% of our 2010 total

revenue Due to the size of our foreign operations our results are of

ten impacted by foreign currency fluctuations particularly fluctua

tions in the Japanese yen In addition our results are generally im

pacted by global economic political demographic and business

conditions

Our revenue depends on the number and productivity of our

active distributors and executive distributor leaders We have been

successful in attracting and motivating distributors by

developing and marketing innovative technologically and sci

entifically advanced products

providing compelling initiatives and strong distributor support

and

offering attractive incentives that motivate distributors to build

sales organizations

Our distributors market and sell our products and recruit new

distributors based on the distinguishing benefits and innovative char

acteristics of our products As result it is vital to our business that

we continuously leverage our research and development resources to

develop and introduce innovative products and provide our distribU

tors with an attractive portfolio of products Over the last two years

we have successfully introduced suite of innovative ageLOC anti-

aging products including the a9eLOC Transformation daily skin caro

system a9eLOC Edition Ga/vanicSpaSystem I/and ageLOC Vitality

nutritional supplement and we are currently developing additional

ageLOC anti-aging products for the future These products are de

signed to positively influence the expression of
genes

that we believe

play critical role in the aging process We also offer unique initia

tives products and business tools such as our Galvanic Spa System

and Pharmanex BioP/iotonic Scanner to help distributors effectively

differentiate our earnings opportunity and product offering Any de

lays or difficulties in introducing compelling products or attractive

initiatives or tools into our markets may have negative impact on

our revenue and distributor recruiting

We have developed global distributor compensation plan and

other incentives designed to motivate our distributors to market and

sell our products and to build sales organizations around the world and

across product lines In 2008 and 2009 we implemented modifica

tions to our compensation plan to improve commission payments

early in the distributor lifecycle The results from these modifications

have been positive We continue to evaluate further changes to our

compensation plan to help increase distributor productivity and earn

ings potential However there are always risks associated with making

changes to our compensation plan as there is degree of uncertainty

as to how distributors will react to such changes and whether such

changes will impact distributor activity in unanticipated ways

With the launch of ageLOC Transformation we implemented

product launch process that has been refined in our South Korea mar

ket that has cofltributed to our growth in revenue in 2010 This
process

generally involves introducing the product in market through an ini

tial limited offering that is often tied to distributor event The limited

offering typically generates significant distributor activity and high

level of distributor purchasing This generally result in higher than

normal increase in revenue during the quarter of the limited offering

We typically launch the product for general sales few months follow

ing the limited offering Information regarding product launches be

low refers to the launch of the product for general sales and not to the

limited offering used to introduce the product Reference to introduc

tion of product refers to the limited offering

Our extensive global distributor network helps us to rapidly in

troduce products and penetrate our markets with little up-front pro

motional expense Similar to other companies in our industry we ex

perience high level of turnover among our distributors As result

it is important that we regularly introduce innovative and compelling

products and initiatives in order to maintain compelling business
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opportunity that will attract new distributors We have also devel

oped and continue to promote in many of our markets product sub

scription and loyalty programs
that provide incentives for customers

to commit to purchase specific atnount of products on monthly

basis We believe these subscription programs
have improved cus

tomer retention have had stabilizing impact on revenue and have

helped generate recurring sales for our distributors Subscription or

ders represented 54% of our revenue in 2010

Global economic conditions continue to be challenging in many

of our markets Although the economy appears to be recovering it is

not possible for us to predict the extent and timing of any improve

ment in global economic conditions Despite difficult economic con

ditions we experienced healthy growth in 2010 We believe we have

benefited from the nature of our distribution model and strong exe

cution around demonstrative product/opportunity initiative which

has helped offset to some degree the impact of weaker consumer

spending As direct selling company we offer direct selling op

portunity that allows an individual to supplement his/her income by

selling our products and building sales organization to market and

sell ou products As the economy and the labor market decline we

find that there can be an increase in the number of people interested

in becoming distributors in order to supplement their income We

believe that this increase in interest in our direct selling opportunity

coupled with the strong marketing position of our new ageLOC anti-

aging products and our other products and tools have helped us to

continue growing our business in these difficult economic conditions

However if the economic problems are prolonged or worsen we ex

pect that we could see negative impact on our business as distribu

tors may have more difficult time selling products and finding new

customers

Our business is subject to various laws and regulations globally

particularly wlth respect to network marketing activities cosmetics

and nutritional supplements Accordingly we face certain risks in

cluding any improper claims or activities of our distributors or any in

ability to obtain or maintain
necessary product registrations For ex

ample we continue to experience heightened regulatory and media

scrutiny of the direct selling industry in Japan Several direct sellers in

Japan have been penalized for actions of distributors that violated

applicable regulations We could face similar penalties if we are un

able to effectively manage the activities of our distributors

INCOME STATEMENT PRESENTATION

We recognize revenue in five geographic regions and we translate

revenue from each markets local currency into U.S dollars using

weighted-average exchange rates The following table sets forth rev

enue information by region for the periods indicated This table

should be reviewed in connection with the tables presented under

Results of Operations which disclose selling expenses and other

costs associated with generating the aggregate revenue presented

REVENUE BY REGION

US dollars in millions

North Asia

Greater China

Americas

South Asia/Pacific

Europe

Year Ended December 31

Cost of sales primarily consists of

cost of products purchased from third-party vendors gener

ally
in U.S dollars

costs of self-manufactured products

cost of sales materials which we sell to distributors at or near

cost

amortization expenses associated with certain products and

services such as the Pharmanex BioPhotonic Scanners that are

leased to distributors

freight cost of shipping products to distributors and import

duties for the products and

royalties and related expenses for licensed technologies

We source the majority of our products from third-party manu

facturers located in the United States Due to Chinese government

2008 2009 2010

594.5 48% 606.1 45% 686.1 45%

210.0 17 210.4 16 268.2 17

223.9 18 260.9 20 250.0 16

107.6 120.1 182.8 12

111.6 133.6 10 150.2 10

1247.6 100% 1331.1 100% 1537.3 100%
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restrictions on the importation of finished goods applicable to the

current scope
of our business in China we are required to manufac

ture the bulk of our own products for distribution in China Cost of

sales and gross profit may fluctuate as result of changes in the ratio

between self-manufactured products and products sourced from

third-party suppliers In addition because we purchase significant

majority of our goods in U.S dollars and recognize revenue in local

currencies we are subject to exchange rate risks in our gross margins

Because our gross margins vary
from product to product and are

higher in some markets such as Japan changes in product mix and

geographic revenue mix can impact our gross margins

Selling expenses are our most significant expense and are classi

fied as operating expenses Selling expenses include distributor com

missions costs for incentive
trips

and other rewards as well as wages

benefits bonuses and other labor and unemployment expenses we

pay to sales employees in China Our global compensation plan

which we employ in all of our markets except China is an important

factor in our ability to attract and retain distributors We pay monthly

commissions to several levels of distributors on each product sale

based upon distributors personal and group product volumes as

well as the group product volumes of up to six levels of executive

distributors in such distributors downline sales organization
We do

not pay commissions on sales materials which are sold to distributors

at or near cost Small fluctuations occur in the amount of commis

sions paid as the retwork of distributors actively purchasing products

changes from month to month However due to the size of our dis

tributor force of approximately 800000 active distributors the fluc

tuation in the overall payout is relatively small The overall payout has

typically averaged between 41% and 44% of global product sales

From time to time we make modifications and enhancements to our

global compensation plan in an effort to help motivate distributors

and develop leadership characteristics which can have an impact on

selling expenses

Distributors also have the opportunity to make retail profits by

purchasing products from us at wholesale and selling them to cus

tomers with retail mark-up We do not account for nor pay addi

tional commissions on these retail mark-ups received by distributors

In many markets we also allow individuals who are not distributors

whom we refer to as preferred customers to buy products directly

from us at wholesale or discounted prices We pay commissions on

preferred customer purchases to the referring distributors

General and administrative expenses include

wages and benefits

rents and utilities

depreciation and amortization

promotion and advertising

professional fees

travel

research and development and

other operating expens4s

Labor expenses are the most significant portion of our general

and administrative expenses Promotion and advertising expenses

include costs of distributor conventions held in various markets

worldwide which we expense in the period in which they are incurred

Because our various distributor conventions are not always held dur

ing each fiscal year or in the same period each year their impact on

our general and administrative expenses may vary from year to year

and from quarter to quarter
For example we held our global distribu

tor convention in October2009 and will have another global conven

tion in the fall of 2011 as we currently plan to hold global convention

every
other

year
In addition we hold regional conventions and con

ventions in our major markets at different times during the year

These conventions have significant expenses
associated with them

Because we have not incurred
expenses

for these conventions during

every
fiscal

year or in comparable interim periods year-over-year

comparisons have been impacted accordingly

Provision for income taxes depends on the statutory tax rates in

each of the jurisdictions in which we operate For example statutory

tax rates in 2010 were approximately 16.5% in Hong Kong 20% in Tai

wan 22% in South Korea 45% in Japan and 25% in China We are

subject to taxation in the United States at the statutory corporate

federal tax rate of 35% and we pay taxes in multiple states within the

United States at various tax rates Our overall effective tax rate was

34.5% for the year ended December 312010

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following critical accounting policies and estimates should be

read in conjunction with our audited Consolidated Financial State

ments and related Notes thereto Management considers our critical

accounting policies to be the recognition of revenue accounting
for

income taxes accounting for intangible assets and accounting for

stock-based compensation In each of these areas management

makes estimates based on historical results current trends and future

projections

Revenue We recognize revenue when products are shipped

which is when title and risk of loss pass to our distributors With some
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exceptions in various countries we offer return policy whereby dis

tributors can return unopened and unused product for up to 12

months subject to 10% restocking fee Reported revenue is net of

returns which have historically been less than 5% of annual revenue

reserve for product returns is accrued based on historical experi

ence We classify selling discounts as reduction of revenue Our

selling expenses are computed pursuant to our global compensation

plan for our distributors which is focused on remunerating distribu

tors based primarily upon the selling efforts of the distributors and

the volume of products purchased by their downlines and not their

personal purchases

Income Thxes We account for income taxes in accordance with

the Income Taxes Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Cod

ification These standards establish financial accounting and report

ing standards for the effects of income taxes that result from an en

terprises activities during the current and preceding years
We take

an asset and
liability approach for financial accounting and reporting

of income taxes We
pay income taxes in many foreign jurisdictions

based on the profits realized in those jurisdictions which can be sig

nificantl impacted by terms of intercompany transactions among

our affiliates around the world Deferred tax assets and liabilifies are

created in this
process

As of December 312010 we had net deferred

tax assets of $59.9 million These net deferred tax assets assume suf

ficient future earnings will exist for their realization as well as the con

tinued application of current tax rates In certain foreign jurisdictions

valuation allowances have been recorded against the deferred tax

assets specifically related to use of net operating losses When we

determine that there is sufficient taxable income to utilize the net op

erating losses the valuation allowances will be released In the event

we were to determine that we would not be able to realize all or part

of our net deferred tax assets in the future an adjustment to the de

ferred tax assets would be charged to earnings in the period such

determination was made

We file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and in

various state and foreign jurisdictions We are currently under exami

nation by the United States Internal Revenue Service the IRS for

the 20052006 2007 and 2008 tax years With few exceptions we

are no longer subject to U.S federal state and local income tax ex

amination by tax authorities for years before 2005 Beginning with

the tax year 2009 we entered into voluntary program
with the IRS

called Compliance Assurance Process CAP The objective of

CAP is to contemporaneously work with the IRS to achieve federal

tax compliance and resolve all or most of the issues prior to filing
of

the tax return We have elected to participate in the CAP program

for tax years 2009 through 2011 and may elect to continue participat

ing in CAP for future tax years
We are allowed to withdraw from the

program at any time In
major foreign jurisdictions we are no longer

subject to income tax examinations for years before 2004 Along

with the IRS examination we are currently under examination in cer

tain foreign jurisdictions however the outcomes of these reviews are

not yet determinable

At December 312010 we had $14.8 million in unrecognized tax

benefits of which $2.4 million if recognized would affect the effective

tax rate In comparison at December 312009 we had $28.3 million in

unrecognized tax benefits of which $4.4 million if recognized would

affect the effective tax rate During each of the
years

ended Decem

ber 312010 and 2009 we recognized approximately $1.7 million and

$0.1 million and $0.5 million in interest and penalties expenses/ben

efits respectively We had approximately $1.6 million $3.3 million

and $3.2 million of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain

tax positions at December 3120102009 and 2008 respectively In

terest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recognized

as component of income tax expense

We are subject to regular audits by federal state and foreign tax

authorities These audits may result in additional tax liabilities We ac

count for such contingent liabilities in accordance with relevant ac

counting standards and believe we have appropriately provided for

income taxes for all years Several factors drive the calculation of our

tax reserves Some of these factors include the expiration of vari

ous statutes of limitations ii changes in tax law and regulations iii

issuance of tax rulings and iv settlements with tax authorities

Changes in any of these factors may result in adjustments to our re

serves which would impact our reported financial results

Intangible Assets Acquired intangible assets may represent in

definite-lived assets determinable-lived intangibles or goodwill Of

these only the costs of determinable-lived intangibles are amortized

to expense over their estimated life The value of indefinite-lived in

tangible assets and residual goodwill is not amortized but is tested at

least annually for impairment Our impairment testing
for goodwill is

performed separately from our impairment testing of indefinite-lived

intangibles We test goodwill for impairment at least annually by re

viewing the book value compared to the fair value at the reportable

unit level We test individual indefinite-lived intangibles at least annu

ally by reviewing the individual book values compared to the fair val

ue Considerable management judgment is necessary to measure

fair value We did not recognize any impairment charges for goodwill

or intangible assets during the periods presented

Stock-Based Compensation All share-based payments to em

ployees are recognized in the financial statements based on their fair

values usihg an option-pricing model at the date of
grant

We use

BIack-ScholesMerton option-pricing model to calculate the fair

value of options Stock based compensation expense
is recognized

net of
any

estimated forfeitures on straight-line basis over the req

uisite service period of the award
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth oor operating results as percentage of revenue for the periods indicated

Year Ended December 31

Gross profit 81.7 81.7 82.3

Operating expenses

Operating income

Other income expense net

Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

41.4

28.4

0.8

70.6

10.6

3.8

Net income 5.2% 6.8% 8.9%

OVERVIEW

Revenue in 2010 increased 15% to $1.54 billion from $1.33 billion in

2009 Our revenue growth in 2010 was driven by the global launch of

our ageLOC anti-aging products including our ageLOC Transformation

skin care system which has generated sales of approximately $220

million since its introduction in the fourth quarter of 2009 We also

introduced ageLOC Vitality our first ageLOC nutritional product

designed to address the internal sources of aging in Japan the United

States Canada and certain of our markets in Europe and Latin

America during the second half of 2010 Eoreign currency exchange

fluctuations had 5% positive impact on revenue.in 2010 compared

to 2009 Our revenue growth rates were the highest in Mainland

China South Korea and the South Asia/Pacific region We also saw

improving trends in Japan as the rate of local currency revenue decline

in that market decreased compared to the prior year

Earnings per share in 2010 increased to $2.11 compared to $1.40

in 2009 on diluted basis The increase in earnings is largely the result

of increased revenue as discussed above coupled with improved

margins and controlled expenses Earnings per share comparisons

were also impacted by restructuring charges in 2009 totaling $6.8

million net of taxes of $3.9 million or $11 per share primarily related

to transformation efforts to streamline our operations in Japan

REVENUE

NorthAsia The following table sets forth revenue for the North Asia

region and its principal markets U.S dollars in millions

2009 2010 Change

Japan 461.9 471.4 2%

South Korea
___________ ___________

North Asia total
_____________

Foreign currency fluctuations positively impacted revenue by 8%

in this region compared to the prior-year period Currency fluctuations

positively impacted revenue in Japan by 6% and in South Korea by

13% in 2010 Our active and executive distributor counts decreased

4% and 3% respectively in Japan in 2010 compared to 2009 In South

Korea our active and executive distributor counts increased 17% and

19% respectively comparing 2010 to 2009

Local currency revenue in Japan decreased 4% in 2010

compared to 2009 We continue to experience some weakness in

Japan as evidenced by the declines in both our active and executive

distributors The direct selling industry and most direct selling com

panies in Japan have been in decline for several years in this challeng

ing market Increased regulatory and media scrutiny of the industry

continues to negatively impact the industry and our business As

result of this increased scrutiny we continue to focus on distributor

compliance and have also been more cautious in both our corporate

Revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of sales

2008 2009 2010

18.3 18.3 17.7

Selling expenses

General and administrative expenses

Restructuring charges

Total operating expenses

42.4

29.2

71.6

10.1

42.1

26.1

68.2

14.111.1

8.1

2.9

2.0 0.5 0.6

13.5

2010 COMPARED TO 2009

4.6

144.2 214.7

606.1 686.1

49%

13%
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and our distributors marketing activities These challenges were par

tially
offset by distributor and product initiatives including the launch

of the full ageLOC Transformation skin care system in the second

quarter of 2010 and the limited offering of our ageLOC Vitality in the

second half of 201 Local currency revenue in Japan decreased 8%

year-over-year in the fourth quarter primarily due to difficult com

parison with the strong
introduction of ageLOC Transformation in the

fourth quarter of 2009 We believe that we may continue to see mod

est local currency revenue declines during 2011 based on continued

weakness in distributor numbers the promotional nature of some of

the revenue generated in connection with the launch of our ageLOC

product platform and our anticipation that difficult regulatory condi

tions will continue throughout 2011

South Korea posted strong year-over-year ocal currency revenue

growth of 36% This growth was driven by the introduction of our

ageLOC Transformation skin care system which generated approxi

mately $20 million in sales during limited offering in the first quarter

of 2010 and continued excftement and sponsoring activities surrounding

ageLOC Transformation throughout the remainder of the year This

excitement contributed to the healthy growth in active and executive

distributors in this market

Greater China The following table sets forth revenue for the

Greater China region and its principal markets U.S dollars in millions

2009 2010 Change

Taiwan 91.7 107.1 17%

China 71.1 91.4 29%

Hong Kong 47.6 69.7 46%

Greater China total 210.4 268.2 27%

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations positively impacted

revenue in the Greater China region by3% in 2010 Revenue growth in

the region was driven by the introduction of ageL.OC Transformation

during the second quarter of 2010 generating approximately $20

million in sales during limited offering of this product in connection

with our Greater China Regional Convention

Local currency revenue in Taiwan was up 11% in 2010 compared

to 2009 As discussed above the growth was driven by the launch of

ageLOC Transformation which led to healthy growth in the number

of active and executive distributors as well as revenue Active dis

tributors in Taiwan increased 5% and executive distributors increased

1% compared to the prior-year period

On local
currency basis revenue in Mainland China increased

27% in 2010 compared to 2009 Mainland China reported 28% and

38% increase in our preferred customers and number of sales represen

tatives respectively compared to the prior-year period Revenue and

sdes force growth in Mainland China were primarily the result of

successful sales initiatives and excitement surrounding our ageLOC

Transformation skin care system which we introduced at the regional

convention in the second quarter of 2010 nd fully launched in Mainland

China in the fourth quarter of 2010 Strong sales of the ageLOC Edition

Galvanic Spa System II also contributed to growth in this market We

continue to focus our efforts on managing our sales force to ensure

compliance with our policies and local regulations in this market

Hong Kong local currency revenue was up 47% in 2010 com

pared to 2009 primarily as result of the introduction of our ageLOC

Transformation skin care system at the regional convention in the

second quarter Approximately $17 million of revenue was generated

from convention sales to distributors from outside of Hong Kong

Executive and active distributors in Hong Kong were down 2% and

5% respectively compared to 2009

Americas The following table sets forth revenue for the Americas

region and its principal markets U.S dollars in millions

2009 2010 Change

United States 218.6 212.1 3%

Canada 23.5

Latin America
_____________ _____________

Americas total
___________ ___________

Revenue in the United States declined 3% in 2010 compared to

2009 In the fourth quarter of 201 U.S revenue declined 23% com

pared to the same prior-year period Approximately $17 million in

sales at our global distributor convention held in the U.S during

the fourth quarter of 2009 and the introduction of our a9eLOC

Transformation skin care system in connection with the global con

vention created .a difficult comparison for the fourth quarter of 2010

Excluding the impact of $11 million of 2009 global convention sales to

non-U.S based distributors revenue in the U.S would have been

down 5% for the fourth quarter of 2010 and up 3% for the year com

pared to the same prior-year periods Our recent growth initiatives

have had less of an impact on distributor productivity and active

distributor growth in the U.S than in many of our other markets We

currently expect continued softness in the U.S for the first half of

2011 offset by growth in the second half of the year in connection

with our global convention in October Active distributors in the U.S

decreased 4% in 2010 and executive distribufors increased 1% com

pared to the prior-year period

On local currency basis revenue decreased by 7% in Canada

and by 19% in Latin America in 2010 compared to 2009 respectively

Revenue declines in these markets were primarily result of de

creased distributor activity

23.9

18.8 14.0

260.9 250.0

2%

26%

4%
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South Asia/Pacific The following table sets forth revenue

for the South Asia/Pacific region and its principal markets U.S dollars

in millions

Singapore/Malaysia

2009 2010 _ç_
Brunei 49.2 76.8 56%

Thailand 38.8 56.7 46%

Australia/New Zealand 14.2 21.7 53%

Indonesia 10.7 15.5 45%

Philippines 7.2 12.1 68%

South Asia/Pacific total 120.1 182.8 52%

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations positively impacted

revenue in South Asia/Pacific by 13% in 2010 compared to the same

prior-year period Revenue growth was driven largely by strong sales

and sponsoring activity in connection with the general launch of our

ageLOC Transformation skin care system Continued interest in our

IRA weight management products and ageLOC Edition GalvanicSpa

System II also contributed to strong growth in this region Executive

distributors in the region increased 33% while active distributors increased

18% compared to the prior year

Europe The following table sets forth revenue for our Europe

region U.S dollars in millions

Europe

2009 2010 Change

133.6 150.2 12%

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations negatively impacted

revenue in Europe by 4% in 2010 compared to the prioryear On local

currency basis revenue in Europe grew by 16% in 2010 compared to

2009 Growth in Europe was driven by sustained interest in our ageLOC

anti-aging products and LifePak nutrition supplements We also began

initial marketing activities in Ukraine during the fourth quarter of 2010 Our

active and executive distributor counts in our Europe region increased

by 14% and 11% respectively in 2010 compared to 2009

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit as percentage of revenue in 2010 increased to

82.3% compared to 81.7% in 2009 The increase is result of strong

sales of our higher margin ageLOC products and foreign currency

benefits in 2010 We anticipate that our gross profit as percentage

of revenue will remain at this level in 2011

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses remained relatively level as percentage
of

revenue at 42.1% in 2010 compared to 42.0% in 2009

As part of our compensation plan improvements we increased

our focus on distributor recognition Accordingly during 2010 the

costs of certain incentive trips and other rewards earned by distribu

tors previously recorded as general and administrative expenses

have been reclassified as selling expenses
In order to provide

meaningful comparison we have made this reclassification for both

the current and prior-year periods

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses decreased as percentage

of revenue to 26.1% in 2010 from 27.8% in 2009 primarily as result of

increased revenue and controlled expenses

RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During 2009 we recorded restructuring charges of $10.7 million

primarily related to transformation efforts in Japan designed to im

prove operational efficiencies and ulign organizationally in Japan with

how we are organized globally in our other markets There were no

similar charges in 2010

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE NET

Other income expense net was $9.4 million of expense in 2010

compared to $6.6 million of
expense

in 2009 The increase in expense

is due primarily to the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange

rates Because it is impossible to predict foreign currency fluctuations

we cannot estimate the degree to which our other income expense will

be impacted in the future Other income expense net also includes

approximately $5.8 million and $6.9 million in interest expense during

2010 and 2009 respectively

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

Provision for income taxes increased to $71.6 million in 2010 from $51.3

million in 2009.The effective tax ratedecreased to 34.5% in 2010 from

36.3% of pre-tax income in 2009 The lower income tax rate was due to

an increased benefit relating to the expiration of the statute of limitations

in 2010 compared to 2009 We anticipate our tax rate will return to ap

proximately 36.5% in 2011

NET INCOME

As result of the foregoing factors net income increased to $136.1

million in 2010 from $89.8 million in 2009

2009 COMPARED TO 2008

OVERVIEW

Revenue in 2009 increased 6% to $1.33 billion from $1.25 billion

in 2008 The introduction of our ageLOC Transformation skin care

system at our global distributor convention held in Los Angeles during

the fourth quarter of 2009 contributed to revenue growth during this

period Foreign currency exchange fluctuations did not materially
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impact revenue in 2009 compared to 2008 Revenue in 2009 was

positively impacted by growth in all of our regions driven largely by

strong
sales of our personal care products including the Galvanic Spa

System II with ageLOC Galvanic Spa Ge/s and our new ageLOC

Trans formation skin care system as well as successful promotions of

other key products Despite improving trends in Japan we continued

to see declinesin our local
currency revenue in that market

Earnings per share in 2009 increased to $1.40 compared to $1.02

in 2008 on diluted basis The increase in earnings was largely the

result of increased revenue as discussed above and transformation

initiatives we executed over the previous sevral years to transform

and align our business and opeate more efficiently Earnings per share

in 2009 and 2008 were also impacted by

foreign currency transaction losses in 2008 of approximately

$11.9 million net of taxes of $6.5 million or $19 per share as

foreign currencies shifted dramatically during the year aid

restructuring charges in 2009 totaling $6.8 million net of taxes

of $3.9 millionor $11 per share relating to further transformation

initiatives to reduce overhead primarily in Japan

REVENUE

North Asia The following table sets forth revenue for the North Asia

region and its principal markets U.S dollars in millions

2008 2009 Change

Japan 443.7 461.9 4%

South Korea 150.8 144.2

North Asia total 594.5 606.1

Foreign currency fluctuations positively impacted revenue by

3% in this region compared to the prior-year period Currency fluc

tuations positively impacted revenue in Japan by 10% and negatively

impacted revenue in South Korea by 16% in 2009 Our active and

executive distributor counts decreased 10% and 5% respectively in

Japan in 2009 compared to 2008 In South Korea our active and

executive distributor counts increased 18% and 20% respectively

comparing 2009 to 2008

Local currency revenue in Japan declined 6% in 2009 compared

to 2008 The revenue decline was largely due to the difficult industry

and regulatory conditions in this market as previously discussed

which contributed to our decline in active and executive distributors

We believe that most direct selling companies also saw their busi

nesses contract in this market in 2009 As result of industry and

regulatory challenges in this market we focused on distributor com

pliance and were also more cautious in both our corporate and our

distributors marketing activities Local currency revenue in Japan

decreased 1% year-over-year in the fourth quarter of 2009

In
response to this regulatory environment and as result of in

creases in the number of complaints to consumer centers regarding

the activities of some of our distributors we increased our focus on

distributor compliance and training Some of the actions we took to

address activities of distributor
groups

that were having higher levels

of complaints contributed to the declines in our revenue We also

engaged in less aggressive product promotions in 2008 than we had

in 2007

South Korea posted strong year-over-year local currency reve

nue growth of 12% This growth was fueled by strong distributor

alignment behind our product and distributor initiatives maintaining

vibrant sponsoring environment for our distributors and spurring

significant growth in our active and executive distributors This reve

nue growth was more than offset by weakening of the South Korean

wonduring 2009

Greater China The following table sets forth revenue for

the Greater China region and its principal markets U.S dollars

in millions

2008 2009 Change

Taiwan 92.3 91.7 1%

China 65.3 71.1 9%

Hong Kong 52.4 47.6 9%

GreaterChinatotal 210.0 210.4

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations positively impacted

revenue in the Greater China region by 1% in 2009 Local
currency

revenue in Taiwan was up 4% in 2009 compared to 2008 The execu

tive distributor count in Taiwan was up 9% compared to the prior-year

period while the number of active distributors was up 12% when com

pared to the prior-year period In Taiwan due to regulatory restrictions

we were unable to market the GalvanicSpaSystem II which had been

primary growth initiative in our other markets

On local
currency basis revenue in Mainland China increased

7% in 2009 compared to 2008 Mainland China reported 27% decline

in our preferred customers compared to the prior-year period and

9% increase in the number of sales representatives The
year-over-year

increase in revenue in Mainland China was the result of
strong

sales

of the Ga/vanicSpa System II which we fully
launched in the first quar

ter of 2009 successful sales initiatives and the adoption of our revised

business model

Hong Kong local currency revenue was down 9% in 2009 compared

to 2008 primarily as result of reduction in sales of products to sales

4%

2%
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employees in Mainland China who had been purchasing products in

2008 from Hong Kong that were notavailable in Mainland China such

as our Galvanic Spa System II Executive distributors in Hong Kong

were up 15% and the active distributors in Hong Kong were down 4%

compared to 2008

Americas The following table sets forth revenue for the Americas

region and its principal markets U.S dollars in millions

2008 2009 Change

United States 192.1 218.6 14%

Canada 16.2

Latin America

Americas total

In 2009 we continued to experience strong growth in the Unit

ed States driven particularly by our highly demonstrable personal

care products including our Galvanic Spa System II with ageLOC

Galvanic Spa Ge/s and our new ageLOC Transformation skin care

system and ageLOC Edition Galvanic Spa System II Revenue in

2009 was positively impacted by approximately $11.0 million as re

sult of product sales and convention fee revenue from foreign dis

tributors attending our biannual global conyention in Los Angeles

Active distributors in the United States decreased 3% and executive

distributors increased 12% compared to the prior-year period

Revenue increased by 45% in Canada and by 21% in Latin America

in 2009 compared to 2008 respectively Revenue continued to be

driven primarily by the success of our Galvanic Spa System 1/ and

ageLOC Galvanic Spa Ge/s in these markets Our growth in Latin

America is also attributed to our expansion into Colombia during the

second quarter of 2009

South Asia/Pacific The following table sets forth revenue

for the South Asia/Pacific region and its principal markets U.S dollars

in millions

43.8 49.2

34.6 38.8

13.3 14.2

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations negatively impacted

revenue in South Asia/Pacific by 5% in 2009 compared to the same

prior-year period All of the markets in this region experienced growth

The growth was driven largely by continued strong sales of our TRA

family of weight loss products and our Galvanic Spa System 1/ as well

as successful distributor leadership initiatives We also successfully launched

enhancements to our sales compensation plan in these markets which

we believe helped contribute to inceased distributor productivity

Executive distributors in the region ncreased 16% while active distrib

tors increased 9% compared to the prior year

Europe The following table sets forth revenue for our Europe

region U.S dollars in millions

2008 2009 Change

Europe 111.6 133.6 20%

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations negatively impacted

revenue in Europe by 6% in 2009 compared to the prioryear On local

currency basis revenue in Europe grew by 26% in 2009 compared to

2008 The
strong growth in Europe was driven by strong sales force

leadership and sustained interest in our GalvanicSpa System//and our

products supported by the Pharmanex BioP/iotonic Scanner particu

larlyin Eastern Europe where we had recently expanded our business

as well as growth in Russia and South Africa We also began initial mar

keting activities in Turkey during the second quarter of 2009 Our active

and executive distributor counts in our Europe region increased by 12%

and 16% respectively in 2009 compared to 2008

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit as percdntage of revenue in 2009 remained level

with 2008 at 81.7%.

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses decreased as percentage
of revenue to 42.0% in

2009 from 42.7% in 2008 The decrease as percentage
of revenue was

due primarily to modifications to our compensation plan to improve the

alignment of our compensation plan incentives around more productive

distributor activity

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses decreased as percent

age of revenue to 27.8% in 2009 from 28.9% in 2008 primarily as

result of increased revenue and our transformation to better leverage

our overhead costs as we grow our revenue General and administra

tive expenses were also positively impacted by our transformation

efforts to reduce our overhead and general and administration ex

penses in Japan

23.5

15.6 18.8

223.9 260.9

45%

21%

17%

Singapore/Malaysia/

Brunei

Thailand

Australia/New Zealand

Indonesia

PhiJippines

South Asia/Pacific total

For both 2008 and 2009 the costs of certain incentive
trips

and

2008 2009 Change
other rewards earned by distributors previously recorded as general and

administrative expenses have been reclassified as selling expenses

8.9

7.0

107.6

12%

12%

7%

20%

3%

12%

10.7

7.2

120.1

43



RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During 2009 we recorded restructuring charges of $10.7 million

primarily related to transformation efforts in Japan designed to im

prove operational efficiencies and align organizationally in Japan with

how we are organized globally in our other markets

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE NET

Other income expense net was $6.6 million of
expense

in

2009 compared to $24.8 million of expense in 2008 Of this 2008

amount approximately $18.4 million relates to foreign currency trans

action losses related to our yen-denominated debt as the Japanese

yen strengthened from 111.45 at December 31 2007 to 90.73 at De

cember 312008 Other income expense net also includes approxi

mately $6.9 million and $7.8 million in interest expense during 2009

and 2008 respectively

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

Provision for income taxes increased to $51.3 million in 2009

from $35.3 million in 2008The effective tax rate increasedto 36.3%

in 2009 from 35.1% of pre-tax income in 2008 The higher income tax

rate was due to reduced benefit relating to the expiration of the

statute of limitations in 2009 compared to 2008

NET INCOME

As result of the foregoing factors net income increased to

$89.8 million in 2009 from $65.3 million in 2008

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Historically ourprincipal uses of cash have included operating

expenses particularly selling expenses and working capital princi

pally inventory purchases as well as capital expenditures stock re

purchases dividends debt repayment and the development of op

erations in new markets We have generally relied on cash flow from

operations to fund operating activities and we have at times

incurred long-term debt in order to fund strategic transactions and

stock repurchases

We typically generate positive cash flow from operations due to

favorable
margins We generated $187.9 million in cash from opera

tions in 2010 compared to $133.9 million in 2009 This increase in cash

generated from operations is primarily due to the increase in revenue

in 2010 as well as increased profitability from our restructuring efforts

As of December 31 2010 working capital was $206.1 million

compared to $152.7 million as of December 31 2009 Our working

capital increased primarily due to an increase in cash and cash equiva

lents Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2010 were $230.3

million compared to $158.0 million at December 31 2009 The in

crease in cash was primarily the result of the increase in our cash gen

erated from operations in 2010

Capital expenditures in 2010 totaled $53.8 million and we an

ticipate capital expenditures of approximately $65 million for 2011

These capital expenditures in 2011 are primarily related to

purchases of computer systems and software including

equipment and development costs

the build-out and upgrade of leasehold improvements in our

various markets including retail stores in China

the building of new warehouse in South Korea

real estate acquisitions and initial development work related

to the building of new innovation center on our Provo Utah

campus and

acquisition of our previously leased corporate headquarters build

ings and distribution center in Provo Utah
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We currently have debt pursuant to various credit facilities and other borrowings

ments as of December 312010

The following table summarizes these debt
arrange-

Facility or

Arrangement1

2003 $205.0 million multi-

currency uncommitted

shelf facility

US dollar denominated

Original

Principal

Amount

Balance as of

December 31 Interest

201 02 Rate

3.1 billion yen 1.8 billion
yen

$22.0 million as of

December 31 2010

2.3 billion yen 2.3 billion
yen

$27.9 million as of

December 31 2010

2.2 billion yen 2.2 billion
yen

$26.7 million as of

December 312010

6.2% Notes due January 2017 with

annual principal payments that

began in January2011

1.7% Notes due April 2014 with

annual principal payments that

began in April 2008

2.6% Notes due September 2017 with

annual principal payments

beginning September 2011

3.3% Notes due January 2017 with

annual principal payments that

began in January 2011

2010 committed loan

$30.0 million Variable

30 day

1.26%

Amortizes at $1.5 million

per quarter

2004 $25.0 million revolving N/A None N/A

credit
facility

2009 $100.0 million uncommitted N/A None N/A

multi-currency shelf
facility

Each of the credit facilities and arrangements listed in the table are secured by guarantees issued by our material domestic subsidiaries and by pledges of 65% of the Out

standing stock of our material foreign subsidiaries The 2010 committed loan is also secured by deeds of trust with respect to our orporate headquarters and distribution

center in Provo Utah

17 The current portion of our ong-term debt i.e becoming due in the next 12 months includes $13.3 million of the balance of our Japanese yen-denominated debt under the 2003

multi-currency uncommitted shelf facility $8.6 million of the balance on our U.S dollar denominated debt under the 2003 multi-currency uncommitted shelf facility and $6.0

million of our 2010 committed loan

Our board of directors has approved stock repurchase program

authorizing us to repurchase our outstanding shares of Class com

mon stock on the open market or in private transactions The repur

chases are used primarily to offset dilution from our equity incentive

plans and for strategic initiatives During the
year

ended December

31 2010 we repurchased approximately 2.2 mifion shares of Class

common stock under this
program

for approximately $58.5 million In

June 2010 our board of directors authorized an increase of $150.0

million in the amount available under our ongoing stock repurchase

program At December 31 2010 $153.6 million was available for re

purchases under the stock repurchase program

During each quarter of 2010 our board of directors declared cash

dividends on our Class common stock of $0125 per
share These

quarterly cash dividends totaled approximately $31.2 million and were

paid during 2010 to stockholders of record in 2010 The board ofdirec

Repayment terms

$40.0 million $34.3 million

$20.0 million $20.0 million

Japanese yen denominated

6.2% Notes due July 2016 with annual

principal payments that began in

July 2010

U.S dollar denominated $30.0 million
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tors has approved an increased quarterly cash dividend of $0135 per

share of Class common stock to be paid on March16 2011 to stock

holders of record on February 252011 Annually this would increase

the dividend to $0.54 from $0.50 in the prior year Currently we an

ticipate that our board of directors will continue to declare quarterly

cash dividends and that the cash flows from operations will be sufficient

to fund our future dividend payments However the continued dec

laration of dividends is subject to the discretion of our board of direc

tors and will depend upon various factors including our net earnings

financial condition cash requirements future
prospects

and other

factors deemed relevant by our board of directors

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

We believe we have sufficient liquidity to be able to meet our

obligations on both short- and long-term basis We currently believe

that existing cash balances future cash flows from operations and ex

isting lines of credit will be adequate to fund our cash needs on both

short- and long-term basis The majority of our historical expenses

have been variable in nature and as such potential reduction in the

level of revenue would reduce our cash flow needs In the event that

our current cash balances future cash flow from operations and current

lines of credit are not sufficient to meet our obligations or strategic

needs we would consider raising additional funds in the debt or eq

uity markets or restructuring our current debt obligations Addition

ally we would consider realigning our strategic plans including reduc

tion in capital spending stock repurchases or dividend payments

The following table sets forth payments due by period for fixed contractual obligations as of December 31 2010 U.S dollars in thousands

Long-term debt obligations

Operating lease obligations

Purchase obligations

Related party payable

Other long-term liabilities reflected

on the balance sheet1

Total

Total 2011

160878 27865

61931 15073

111942 68351

16995 16995

20122013 20142015 Thereafter

67730 38242 27041

26069 20631 158

22319 20161 1111

Other long-term liabilities reflected on the balance sheetof $71.5 million
primarilyconsisting

of long-term tax related balances in which the
timing

of the commitments is uncertain

Due to the international nature of our business we are subject

from time to time to reviews and audits by the foreign taxing authori

ties of the various jurisdictions in which we conduct business through

out the world We are currently involved in two separate disputes

with the customs authorities in Japan with respect to duty assess

ments on several of our Pharmanex nutritional products totaling ap

proximately 5.3 billion Japanese yen as of December 31 2010 ap

proximately $65.3 million net of any recovery of consumption taxes

We also recently were notified that we are likely to receive an addi

tional assessment of 0.6 billion Japanese yen approximately $7.7 mil

lion related to the second dispute

The fiHt dispute relates to additional customs assessments

made by Yokohama Customs for the period of October 2002

through July 2005 The aggregate amount of these additional as

sessments is 2.7 billion Japanese yen approximately $33.2 million as

of December 31 2010 net of any recovery of consumption taxes

The dispute relates to whether we used the proper
valuation method

for these products in determining the applicable customs duties The

primary legal issue in the case is whether the relevant import transac

tion is sale between our third party
manufacturers and our Japan

subsidiary or sale between our US subsidiary and our Japan sub-

sidiary In 1999 we worked with the Yokohama Customs authorities

to restructure the form of the relevant transactions in oder to have

the import transaction be sale between ourthird party manufactur

ers and our Japan subsidiary and thus have the duties assessed on

the price paid to our third party manufacturers With the.input and

guidance of the Yokohama Customs authorities we restructured the

form of the transaction and the agreements between the relevant

parties based on these discussions so that our US subsidiary would

be acting on behalf of our Japan subsidiary with respect to the pur

chase of these products rather than as buyer/seller Our Japan sub

sidiary entered into Memorandum of Understanding with each of

our third party manufacturers of the relevant products which pro

vided that our Japan subsidiary was the purchaser of the products

and that our US subsidiary was acting for and on behalf of our Japan

subsidiary with respect to these products Our Japan subsidiary also

entered into Memorandum of Understanding with our US subsid

iary documenting the same agency relationship We believe that

these legal documents establish that our US subsidiary was acting as

an agent and not buyer and seller of the relevant products The ad

ditional assessment of duties by Yokohama Customs was based on

its re-characterization of the transaction as sale between our US

subsidiary and our Japan subsidiary for custom law purposes despite

351746 128284 116118 79034 28310
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the legal form of the transaction We do not believe the legal docu

mentation supports the re-characterization of these transactions

Yokohama Customs has raised several issues to support its re-char

acterization including the fact that we have treated the relevant

transaction as sale between our US subsidiary and Japan subsidiary

for income tax purposes However we believe that the relevant in

come tax and transfer pricing rules and regulations apply different

standards and are not relevant to the customs issue Because we be

lieve that the legal documentation for these transactions support our

position we filed complaint in the Tokyo District Court Civil Action

Section in December 2006 to have the Ministry of Finances affirma

tion of the additional assessments reversed The final hearing on this

matter was held on February 12011 and the court indicated it would

issue decision on this case on March 25 2011 Either party has the

right to appeal this decision If we receive an adverse decision in this

case we may be required to record an expense for the full amount of

the disputed assessments or $33.2 million

The second dispute relates to additional customs assessments

made by Yokohama Customs for the period of October 2006

through November 2008 in connection with an audit in 2009 as well

as the disputed portion of our current import duty rate we have been

required to pay or hold in bond and have paid under protest since

October of 2009 The
aggregate amount of these additional assess

ments and disputed duties is 2.6 billion Japanese yen as of Decem

ber 312010 approximately $32.1 million net of any recovery of con

sumption taxes We werealso recently notified that we are likely to be

assessed an additional 0.6 billion Japanese yen approximately $7.7

million net of any recovery of consumption taxes based on an audit

of the period of November 2008 through September 2009 With this

assessment we have been required to pay or hold in bond amounts

additional assessments for all periods from October 2006 to present

and we believe that additional assessments related to any prior peri

od would be barred by applicable statutes of limitations In July 2005

we changed our operating structure in Japan and believed that these

changes would eliminate further valuation disputes with Yokohama

Customs as the new structure eliminated the issues that were the

basis of the
litigation

in the first dispute i.e whether our US subsid

iary was acting as an agent for our Japan subsidiary or was acting as

the seller However in October 2009 we received notice from Yoko

hama Customs authorities that they sere assessing additional duties

penalties and interest for the period of October 2006 through No

vember 2008 based on their view that we were not
utilizing

the prop-

er valuation method The basis for such additional assessment is dif

ferent from the issues that are being litigated in the first dispute The

issue in this second case is whether US entity utilizing
commis

sionaire agent in Japan to import its products can use the manufac

turers invoice or must use another valuation method and if an alter

native method must be used what the allowable deductions would

be in determining the proper valuation Following our review of the

assessments and after consulting with our legal and customs advi

sors we believe that the additional assessments are improper and are

not supported by applicable customs laws We filed letters of protest

with Yokohama Customs which were rejected We have appealed

the matter to the Ministry of Finance in Japan In addition we are

currently being required to post bond or make deposit equal to

the difference between our declared duties and the amount the cus

toms authorities have determined we should be paying on all current

imports Because we believe that the higher rate determined by the

customs authorities is an improper application of the regulations we

are currently expensing the portion of the duties we believe is sup

ported under applicable customs law and recording the additional

deposit or payment as receivable within long-term assets in our

consolidated financial statements To the extent that we are unsuc

cessful in recovering the amounts assessed and paid or held in bond

we will likely be required to record an expense for the full amount of

the disputed assessments or $32.1 million as of December 312010

SEASONALITY AND CYCLICALITY

In addition to general economic factors we are impacted by sea

sonal factors and trends such as major cultural events and vacation patterns

For example most Asian markets celebrate their respective local New Year

in the first quarter which generally has negative impact on that quarter

We believe that direct
selling in Japan the United States and Europe is

also generally negatively impacted during the third quarter when many

individuals including our distributors traditionally take vacations

We have experienced rapid revenue growth in certain new markets

following commencement of operations This initial rapid growth has often

been followed by short period of stable or declining revenue then followed

by renewed growth fueled by product introductions an increase in the

number of active distributors and increased distributor productivity The

contraction following initial rapid growth has been more pronounced in

certain new markets due to other factors such as business or economic

conditions or distributor distractions outside the market
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Net income per share

Basic

Diluted

0.19 0.35

0.19 0.35

0.41 0.48

0.40 0.47

0.50 0.51 0.57

0.48 0.50

060

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued

guidance to amend the disclosure requirements related to recurring

and nonrecurring fair value measurements The guidance requires new

disclosures on the transfers of assets and liabilities between Level

quoted prices in active market foi identical assets or liabilities and

Level significant other observable inputs of the fair value measure

ment hierarchy including the reasons and the timing of the transfers

Additionally the guidance requires roll forward of activities on pur

chases sales issuance and settlements of the assets and liabilities

measured using significant unobservable inputs Level fair value

measurements The guidance became effective for our reporting

period beginning January 32010 except for the disclosure on the roll

forward activities for Level fair value measurements which will become

effective our reporting period beginning January 2011 Adoption of

this new guidance will not have material impact on our unaudited

condensed consolidated financial statements

During the firstquarter of 2010 we adopted new accounting guidance

issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB related to

transfers of financial assets This guidance modifies the requirements for

derecognizing financial assets from transferors balance sheet and requires

additional disclosures about transfers of financial assets and any continu

ing involvement by the transferor The new guidance did not have sig

nificant impact on our operating results financial condition or disclosures

In October 2009 the FASB issued amendments to the criteria

for
separating consideration in multiple-deliverable arrangements

These amendments will establish selling price hierarchy for determin

ing the selling price of deliverable The amendments will require that

vendor determine its best estimate of selling price in manner that

is consistent with that used to determine the price to sell the deliverable

ona standalone basis These amendments will eliminate the residual

method of allocation and require that
arrangement

consideration be

allocated at the inception of the
arrangement to all deliverables using

the relative selling price method These amendments will expand dis

As of December 31 2008

Active

326000

115000

As of December 31 2009

Executive

13937

6323

4876171000

Active

319000

106000

As of December 31 2010

Executive

14144

66000

83000

761000

Active

329000

1180006938

DISTRIBUTOR IN FORMATION

The following table provides information concerning the number of active and executive distributors as of the dates indicated Active

distributors are those distributors and preferred customers who were resident in the countries in which we operated and purchased products

for resale or personal consumption directly from us during the three months ended as of the date indicated ExecUtive distributors are active

distributors who have achieved required monthly personal and
group

sales volumes es well as sales representatives in China who have com

pleted qualification process

North Asia

Greater China

Americas

South Asia/Pacific

Europe

Total

QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following table sets forth selected unaudfted quarterly data for the periods shown U.S dollars in millions except per share amounts

2009 2010

1st 2nd 3rd 4th 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Revenue 296.2 322.6 334.2 378.1 364.1 388.4 383.6 401.2

Gross profit 242.4 261.9 272.1 311.0 299.3 320.4 314.8 330.3

Operating income 34.4 40.9 52.2 46.1 59.2 52.9 58.9

Net income 32.4 35.3 37.3

2541

2911

30588

Executive

14687

8015

171000

71000

94000

761000

5522

2950

3385

32939

161000

84000

107000

799000

5305

3930

3739

35676

20.2

11.8 22.1 25.6 30.3 31.0

0.55 0.58
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closures related to vendors multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements

These amendments will be effective for our fiscal 20 year end.We

are currently evaluating the impact these amendments will have on

our consolidated financial statements and disclosures

In June 2009 the FASB amended the consolidation accounting

guidance Effective January 2010 we are required to qualitatively

assess the determination of our being the primary beneficiary con
solidator of variable interest entity VIE on whether we have

the power to direct matters that most significantly impact the activities

of the VIE and have the obligation to absorb losses or the right to

receive benefits of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the

VIE It also requires an ongoing reconsideration of the primary ben

eficiary and amends events that trigger reassessment of whether an

entity is VIE The new model is applicable to all new and existing

VIEs The adoption of this nw guidance on January 12010 had no

impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operation

In June 2009 the FASB amended the accounting guidance for

determining whether transfer of financial asset qualifies for sale

accounting The amended guidance also provided four broad disclo

sure objectives desined to provide users of the financial statements

with an understanding of

the transferors continuing involvement with the transferred

assets

the nature of any restrictions on the transferors assets that relate

to transferred financial asset including the carrying amount

of those assets

how servicing assets and servicing liabilities are reported by the

transferor and

how transfer of financial assets affects the companys balance

sheet earnings and cash flows

The prospective adoption of this guidance to new transfers of

financial assets beginning January 12010 had no impact on our con

solidated financial position or results of operation

CURRENCY RISK AND EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION

majority of our revenue and many of our expenses are recognized

outside of the United States except for inventory purchases which are

primarily transacted in U.S dollars from vendors in the United States

The local currency of each of our Subsidiaries primary markets is con

sidered the functional currency All revenue and expenses are trans

lated at weighted-average exchange rates for the periods reported

Therefore our reported revenue and earnings will be positively im

pacted by weakening of the U.S dollar and will be negatively im

pacted by strengthening of the U.S dollar Given the large portion

of our business derived from Japan any weakening of the yen nega

tively impacts reported revenue and profits whereas strengthening

of the yen positively impacts our reported revenue and profits Given

the uncertainty of exchange rate fluctuations it is difficult to predict the

effect of these fluctuations on our future business product pricing
and

results of operation or financial condition However based on current

exchange rate levels we currently anticipate that foreign currency
fluc

tuations will have positive impact on reported revenue in 2011

We may seek to reduce our exposure to fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates through the use of foreign currency exchange

contracts through intercompany loans of foreign currency and through

our Japanese yen-denominated debt We do not use derivative fi

nancial instruments for trading or speculative purposes
We regularly

monitor our foreign currency risks and periodically take measures to

reduce the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on our operating

results At December 31 2010 we held forward contracts designated

as foreign currency cash flow hedges with notional amounts totaling

approximately $22.2 million to cash flow hedges for forecasted foreign-

currency-denominated intercompany transactions At December31

2009 we held forward contracts designated as foreign currency cash

flow hedges with notional amounts totaling approximately $3.0 million

to hedge forecasted foreign-currency-denominated intercompany

transactions Beause of our foreign exchange contracts at December

31 2010 the impact of 10% appreciation or 10% depreciation of the

U.S dollar against the Japanese yen
would not represent material

potential loss in fair value earnings or cash flows against these contracts

This potential loss does not consider the underlying foreign currency

transaction or translation
exposures to which we are subject
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Following are the weighted-average currency exchange rates of U.S $1 into local
currency

for each of our international or foreign markets

in which revenue exceeded U.S $5.0 million for at least one of the quarters listed

2009 2010

1st 2nd 3rd 4th 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Japan 93.6 97.3 93.5 89.9 90.6 92.0 85.7 82.6

Taiwan 34.0 33.1 32.8 32.3 31.9 31.9 303

Hong Kong 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8

South Korea 1418.4 1282.8 1237.3 1167.4 1142.0 1163.2 1182.3 1133.5

Malaysia
3.6 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.4 3.2 3.2 3.1

Thailand 35.3 34.7 34.0 33.3 32.9 32.4 31.6 30.0

China 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.7

Singapore
1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3

Canada 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

As of February 2O1 the exchange rate of U.S $1 into the Japanese yen was approximately 81.35

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The infbrmation required by Item 7A of Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference from the information contained in Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation Currency Risk and Exchange Rate Information and Note 15 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Financial Statements Set forth below is the index to the Financial Statements included in this Item

Paqe

Consolidatd Balance Sheets at December 31 2009 and 2010 51

Consolidated Statements of Income for the
years

ended 52

December 31 20082009 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income for the
years

ended 53

December 3120082009 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended 54

December 3120082009 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 55

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 77

Financial Statement Schedules Financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not required or are not

applicable or because the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto
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NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

Consolidated Balance Sheets

U.S dollars in thousands

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Inventories net

Prepaid expenses and other

Property and equipment net

Goodwill

Other intangible assets net

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt

Related party payable

Long-term debt

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies Notes 913 and 19

Stockholders equity

Class common stock500 million shares aijthorized

$001 par value 90.6 million shares issued

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury stock at cost27.8 and 28.5 million shares

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Retained earnings

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

December 31

2009 2010

158045 230337

22513 25701

105661 114475

51724 52013

337943 422526

79356 33722

112446 112446

81968 78270

136736 145260

748449 892224

25292 25480

124520 146108

35400 27865

16995

185212 216448

121119 133013

66431 71514

372762 420975

91 91

232219 256505

433567 476748

68134 58539

645078 749940

375687 471249

748449 892224

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

Consolidated Statements of Income

U.S dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Selling expenses

General and administrative expenses

Restructuring charges

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other income expense net Note 22

Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 000s

Basic

Diluted

Year Ended December 31

20092008

1247646 1331058

228597 243648

1019049 1087410

533151

360470

2010

1537259

272431

1264828

646348

401418

1047766

559605

369368

10724

939697893621

125428

24775

100653

35306

65347

147713

6589

217062

9449

Net income per share

Basic

Diluted

141124

51279

89845

207613

71562

136051

1.03 1.42 2.18

1.02 1.40 2.11

63510 63333 62370

64132 64296 64547

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements
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NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income

U.S dollars in thousands

Balance at January 12008

Comprehensive income

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive income

Repurchase of Class common stock Nofe 10

Exercise of employee stock options 401000 shares

Excess tax benefit from equity awards

Stock-based compensation

Cash dividends

Balance at December 312008

Comprehensive income

Net income

Foreign currency
translation adjustment

Net unrealized gains on foreign curreny cash

flow hedges

Total comprehensive income

Repurchase of Class common stock Note 10

Exercise of employee stock options 614000 shares

vesting of stock awards

Excess tax benefit from equity awards

Stock-based compensation

Cash dividends

Balance at December 31 2009

Comprehensive income

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Net unrealized gains on foreign currency cash

flow hedges

Less reclassification adjustment for realized

gains in current earnings

Total comprehensive income

Repurchase of Class common stock Note 10

Reclassification of treasury shares held by subsidiary

Exercise of employee stock options 1.5 million shares/

vesting of stock awards

Excess tax benefit from equity awards

Stock-based compensation

Cash dividends

Balance at December 31 2010

65347 65347

2302

63045

6093 6093

3052 3824

1062

7273

27940 27940

417017 70061 584239 316180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Accumulated

lass Other

Common Additional Comprehen- Retained

Stock Paid-in Capital Treasury Stock sive Loss Earnings Total

91 209821 41 3976 67759 546832 275009

2302

772

1062

7273

91 218928

1633

1669

9989

89845 89845

1830 1830

97 97

91772

21144

6227

1669

9989

29006 29006

681 34 645078 375687

136051 136051

9661 9661

60 60

21144

4594

91 232219 433567

58516

31 22

18457

126 126

145646

58516

3122

2724 21181

7605 7605

10835 10835

31189 31189

91 256505 476748 58539 749940 471249
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NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

U.S dollars in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Foreign currency gains/losses

Stock-based compensation

Deferred taxes

Changes in operating assets.and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Inventories net

Prepaid expenses
and other

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued
expenses

Other liabilities

________________________

Net cash provided by operating activities
_______________________ _______________________

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds on investment sales

Purchases of investments
_______________________ _______________________

Net cash used in investing activities
_______________________ _______________________

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of cash dividends

Repurchase of shares of common stock

Exercise of distributor and employee stock options

Income tax benefit of options exercised

Payments on long-term debt

Proceeds from long-term debt
______________________ _____________________

Net cash used in financing activities
________________________ ________________________

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
_______________________ _______________________

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period _______________________ _______________________

Cash and cash equivalents end of period
_______________________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2008

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010

65347 89845 136051

30393 28557 29616

18409 1966 3681

7273 9989 083

4078 12350 13735

7069 7043 6649

14910 9740 4293

4260 3850 3854

1699 18690 1631

6139 3602 568

3250 8598 13777

2766 2812 16945

103307

16007

19135

13910

10782

133944 187883

20215 53783

20215 53783

27940 29006 31189

6094 21144 58516

3824 6227 21181

227 1101 6908

32711 30188 37401

30000

62694 73010 69017

2572 2740 7209

27259 43459 72292

87327 114586 158045

114586 158045 230337
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NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

THE COMPANY

Nu Skin Enterprises inc the Company is leading global direct

selling company that develops and distributes premium-quality in

novative personal care products and nutritional supplements that are

sold worldwide under the Nu Skin and Pharmanex brands and small

number of other products and services The Company reports rev

enue from five geographic regions North Asia which consists of

Japan and South Korea Greater China which consists of Mainland

China Hong Kong Macau and Taiwan Americas which consists of

the United Sttes Canada and Latin America South Asia/Pacific

which consists of Australia Brunei Indonesia Malaysia New Zealand

the Philippines Singapore and Thailand and Europe which consists

of several markets in Europe as well as Israel Russia and South Africa

the Companys subsidiaries operating in these countries are collec

tively referred to as the Subsidiaries

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of

the Company and the Subsidiaries All significant intercompany

accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America required management to make estimates and assumptions

that affected the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclo

sure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial state

ments and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the

reporting period Actual results may differ from these estimates

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid instruments with

original maturities of 90 days or less

INVENTORIES

Inventories consist primarily of merchandise purchased for resale and

are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first-in first-out method

The Company had reserves for obsolete inventory totaling $6.4 million

and $10.5 million as of December 312009 and 2010 respectively

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and deprØci

ated using the straight-line method over the following estimated

useful lives

Furniture and fixtures years

Computers and equipment years

Scanners years

Vehicles years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense

as incurred When an asset is sold or otherwise disposed of the cost

and associated accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts

and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of income

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such

assets may not be recoverable An impairment loss is recognized if the

carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired intangible assets may represent indefinite-lived assets

determinable-lived intangibles or goodwill Of these only the costs

of determinable-lived intangibles are amortized to expense over-their

estimated life The value of indefinite-lived intangible assets and re

sidual goodwill is not amortized but is tested at least annually for im

pairment Our impairment testing for goodwill is performed sepa

rately from our impairment testing of indefinite-Iivd intangibles We

test goodwill for impairment at least annually by reviewing the book

value compared to the fair value at the reportable unit level We test

individual indefinite-lived intangibles at least annually by reviewing the

individual book values compared to the fair value Considerable man

agement judgment is necessary to measure fair value We did not

Inventories consist of the following U.S dollars in thousands

December 31

2009

Raw materials 31557

Finished goods 74104

105661

2010

31497

82978

114475

Buildings 39 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of estimated

useful life or lease term
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NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

recognize any impairment charges for goodwill or intangible assets

during the periods presented

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized when products are shipped which is when

title and risk of loss pass to independent distributors and preferred

customers who are the Companys customers reserve for product

returns is accrued based on historical experience totaling $2.9 million

and $3.3 million as of December 312009 and 2010 respectively The

Company generally requires cash or credit card payment at the point

of sale The Company has determined that no allowance for doubtful

accounts is necessary Amounts received prior to shipment and title

passage to distributors are recorded as deferred revenue The global

compensation plan for the Companys distributors generally does not

provide rebates or selling -discounts to distributors who purchase its

products and services The Company classifies selling discounts and

rebates if any as reduction of revenue

ADVERTISING EXPENSES

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred Advertising expense

incurred for the years ended December 3120082009 and 2010 totaled

approximately $1.7 million $2.0 million and $2.1 million respectively

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses are the Companys most significant expense and

are classified as operating expenses Selling expenses include distributor

commissions as well as wages benefits bonuses and other labor and

unemployment expenses the Company pays to sales employees in

China The Company pays monthly commissions to several levels of

distributors on each product sale based upon distributors personal

and
group productvolumes as well as the group productvolumes ofup

to six levels of executive distributors in such distributors downline sales

organization The Company does not pay commissions on sales materials

The Companys distributors may make retail profits by purchasing

the products from the Company at wholesale and selling them to

customers with retail mark-up The Company does not account for

nor pay additional commissions on these retail mark-ups received by

distributors In many markets the Company also allows individuals

who are not distributors referred to as preferred customers to buy

products directly from the Company at wholesale or discounted

prices The Company pays commissions on preferred customer pur

chases to the referring distributors

As part of the Companys compensation plan improvements the

Company increased its focus on distributor recognition Accordingly

during 2010 the costs of certain incentive
trips

and other rewards earned

by distributors previously recorded as general and administrative

expenses have been reclassified as selling expenses In order to provide

meaningful comparison the Company has made this reclassification

for both the current and prior-year periods

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Companys research and development activities are con

ducted primarily through its Pharmanex division Research and develop

ment costs are included in general and administrative expenses in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income and are expensed

as incurred and totaled $9.6 million $10.4 million and $12.4 million in

20082009 and 2010 respectively

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the

Income Taxes Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Codification

These standards establish financial
accounting and reporting standards

for the effects of income taxes that result from an enterprises activities

during the current and precedin years
The Company takes an asset

and
liability approach for financial accounting and

reporting of income

taxes The Company pays income taxes in many foreign jurisdictions

based on the profits realized in those jurisdictions which can be signifi

cantly impacted by terms of intercompany transactions between the

Company and its foreign affiliates Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

created in this process As of December 312010 the Company has net

deferred tax assets of $59.9 million The Company has netted these

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities by jurisdiction Valuation

allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets

to the amounts expected to be ultimately realized

UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The Companyfiles income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdic

tion and in various state and foreign jurisdictions The Company is cur

rently under examination by the United States Internal Revenue Service

the IRS for the 2005 2006 2007 and 2008 tax years. With few

exceptions the Company is no longer subject to U.S federal state and

local income tax examination by tax authorities for years before 2005

For the tax year 2009 the Company entered into voluntary program

with the IRS called Compliance Assurance Process CAPThe ob

jective of CAP is to contemporaneously work with the IRS to achieve

federal tax compliance and resolve all or most of the issues prior to filing
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NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

not yet determinable

Gross Balance at January 2008

Increases related to current year tax positions

Settlements

Gross Balance at January 12009

Increases related to current year tax positions

Settlements

Decreases due to lapse of statutes of limitations

Currency adjustments

Gross Balance at December 312009

Gross Balance at January 12010

Decreases related to prior year tax positions

Increases related to current year tax positions

Settlements

Decreases due to lapse of statutes of limitations

Currency adjustments

Gross Balance at December 312010

tion of various statutes of limitation it is reasonably possible that tFe

Companys gross unrecognized tax benefits net of foreign currency

adjustments may change within the next 12 months by range of ap

proximately $8 to $11 million

During each of the
years

ended December 31 2008 2009 and

2010 the Company recognized approximately $0.5 million $0.1 million

and $1.7 million respectively in interest and penalties expenses/ben

efits The Company had approximately $3.2 million $3.3 million and

$1.6 million of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax

positions at December 3120082009 and 2010 respectively Interest

and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recognized as

component of income tax expense

14 NET INCOME PER SHARE

Net income per share is computed based on the weighted-average

number of common shares outstanding during the periods presented

Additionally diluted earHings per share data gives effect to all poten

tially dilutive common shares that were outstanding during the periods

30915 presented Note 10

3618
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Most of the Companys business operations occur outside the

United States The local currency of each of the Companys subsid

iaries is considered its functional currency All assets and liabilities are

translated into U.S dollars at exchange rates existing at the balance

____________ sheet dates revenue and
expenses are translated at weighted-aver

age exchange rates and stockholders equity is recorded at historical

exchange rates The resulting foreign currency translation adjust

ments are recorded as separate component of stockholders equity

2236
in the consolidated balance sheets and transaction gains and losses

are included in other income and
expense in the consolidated finan

5395 cial statements

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying value of financial instruments including cash and

cash equivalents accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate

fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments The car

rying amount of long-term debt approximates fair value because the

applicable interest rates approximate current market rates Fair value

estimates are made at specific point in time based on relevant mar

ket information

The FASB Codification defines fair value as the price that would

be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
liability

in the principal

of the tax return The Company has elected to participate in the CAP

program
for 2010 and 2011 and may elect to continue participating in

CAP for future tax years
the Company may withdraw from the program

at any
time In major foreign jurisdictions the Company in no longer

subject to income tax examinations for years before 2003 Along with

the IRS examination the Company is currently under examination in

certain foreign jurisdictions however the outcomes of those reviews are

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrec

ognized tax benefits is as follows U.S dollars in thousands

31875

1494

Decreases due to lapse of statutes of limitations

Currency adjustments

Gross Balance at December 312008

5977

3537

30915

Increases related to prior year tax positions

946

4858

456

28275

28275

1206

911

14821

At December 31201 the Company had $14.8 million in unrecog

nized tax benefits of which $2.4 million if recognized would affect the

effective tax rate In comparison at December 31 2009 the Company

had $28.3 million in unrecognized tax benefits of which $4.4 million if

recognized would affect the effective tax rate The Companys unrec

ognized tax benefits relate to multiple foreign and domestic jurisdictions

Due to potential increases in unrecognized tax benefits from the mul

tiple jurisdictions in which the Company operates as well as the expira
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NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly trans

action between market participants at the measurement date On

quarterly basis the Company measures at fair value certain financial

assets including cash equivalents and available-for-sale securities Ac

counting standards specify hierarchy of valuation techniques based

on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or

unobservable Observable inputs reflect data obtained from indepen

dent sources while unobservable inputs reflect the Companys market

assumptions These two types of inputs have created the following fair-

value hierarchy

Level 1quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

Level 2inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets

that are observable either directly or indirectly

Level 3unobservable inputs based on the Companys own

assumptions

Accounting standards permit companies at their option to

choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other

items at fair value The Company has elected to not fairvalue existing

eligible items

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

All share-based payments including grants of stock options and

restricted stock units are required to be recognized in our financial

statements based upon their respective grant date fair values The

Black-Scholes option pricing model is used to estimate the fair value

of stock options The determination of the fair value of stock options

is affected by our stock price and number of assumptions including

expected volatility expected life risk-free interest rate and expected

dividends We use historical
volatility as the expected volatility as

sumption required in the Black-Scholes model The expected life of

the stock options is based on historical data trended into the future

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on observed interest

rates appropriate for the expected terms of our stock options The

fair value of our restricted stock units is bated on the closing market

price of our stock on the date of grant less our expected dividend

yield We recognize stock-based ompensation net of any estimated

forfeitures on straight-line basis over the requisite service period of

the award

The total compensation expense related to equity compensa

tion plans was approximately $7.3 million $10.0 million and $10.8 mil

lion for the years ended December 3120082009 and 2010 For the

years ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 all stock-based

compensation expense was recorded within general and administra

tive expenses

REPORTING COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of

business enterprise during period from transactions and other

events and circumstances from non-owner sources and it includes all

changes in equity during period except those resulting from invest

ments by owners and distributions to owners

ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company recognizes all derivatives as either assets or liabil

ities with the instruments measured at fair value

The Companys Subsidiaries enter into significant transactions

with each other and third parties that may not be denominated in the

respective Subsidiaries functional currencies The Company regularly

monitors its foreign currency risks and seeks to reduce its

exposure to

fluctuations in foreign exchange rates using foreign currency exchange

contracts and through certain intercompany loans of foreign currency

The Company hedges its exposure to future cash flows from

forecasted transactions over maximum period of 12 months Hedge

effectiveness is assessed at inception and throughout the life of the

hedge to ensure the hedge qualifies for hedge accounting treatment

Changes in fair value associated with hedge ineffectiveness if any are

recorded in the results of operations currently In the event that an an

ticipated transaction is no longer likely to occur the Company recog

nizes the change in fair value of the derivative in its results of opera

tions currently

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded in current

earnings or accumulated other comprehensive loss depending on the

intended use of the derivative and its resulting designation The gains

and losses in accumulated other comprehensive loss stemming from

these derivatives will be reclassified into earnings in the period during

which the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings The fair

value of the receivable and payable amounts related to these unreal

ized gains and losses is classified as other current assets and liabilities

The Company does not use such derivative financial instruments for

trading or speculative purposes Gains and losses on certain intercom

pany loans of foreign currency are recorded as other income and ex

pense in the consolidated statements of income
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

in January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board is

sued guidance to amend the disclosure requirements related to re

curring and nonrecurring fair value measurements The guidance re

quires new disclosures on the transfers of assets and liabilities

between Level quoted prices in active market for identical assets or

liabilities
and Level significant other observable inputs of the fair

value measurement hierarchy including the reasons and the timing of

the transfers Additionally the guidance requires roll forward of ac

tivities on purchases sales issuance and settlements of the assets

and liabilities measured using significant unobservable inputs Level

fair value measurements The guidance became effective for the

Company with the reporting period beginning January 2010 ex

cept for the disclosure on the roll forward activities for Level fair

value measurements which will become effective for the Company

with the reporting period beginning January 12011 Adoption of this

new guidance will not have material impact on the Companys un

audited cbndensed consolidated financial statements

During the first quarter of 2010 the Company adopted new ac

counting guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASBrelated to transfers of financial assets This guidance

modifies the requirements for derecognizing financial assets from

transferors balance sheet and requires additional disclosures about

transfers of finanoial assets and any continuing involvement by the

transferor The new guidance did not have significant impact on the

Companys operating results financial condition or disclosures

In October 2009 the FASB issued amendments to the criteria

for separating consideration in multiple-deliverable arrangements

These amendments will establish selling price hierarchy for deter

mining the selling price of deliverable The amendments will require

that vendor determine its best estimate of selling price in manner

that is consistent with that used to determine the price to sell the de

liverable on standalone basis These amendments will eliminate the

residual method of allocation and require that
arrangement consider

ation be allocated at the inception of the
arrangement to all deliver

ables using the relative selling price method These amendments will

expand disclosures related to vendors multiple-deliverable revenue

arrangements These amendments will be effective for the Compa

nys fiscal 2011 year
end The Company is currently evaluating the

impact these amendments will have on its consolidated financial

statements and disclosures

In June 2009 the FASB amended the consolidation accounting

guidance Effective January 2010 the Company is are required to

qualitatively assess the determination of its being the primary benefi

ciary consolidator of variable interest entity VIE on whether

it has the power to direct matters that most significantly impact

the activities of the VIE and has the obligation to absorb losses or

the right to receive benefits of the VIE that could potentially be sig

nificant to the VIE It also requires an ongoing reconsideration of the

primary beneficiary and amends events that trigger reassessment

of whether an entity is VIE The new model is applicable to all new

and existing VIEs The adoption of this new guidance on January

2010 had no impact on the Companys consolidated financial posi

tion or results of operation

In June 2009 the FASB amended the accounting guidance for

determining whether transfer of financial asset qualifies for sale

accounting The amended guidance also provided four broad disclo

sure objectives designed to provide users of the financial statements

with an understanding of

the transferors continuing involvement with the transferred as

sets

the nature of any restrictions on the transferors assets that re

late to transferred financial asset including the carrying

amount of those assets

how servicing assets and servicing liabilities are reported by the

transferor and

how transfer of financial assets affects the companys balance

sheet earnings and cash flows

The prospective adoption of this guidance to new transfers of

financial assets beginning January 2010 had no impact on the

Companys consolidated financial position or results of operation

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company leased corporate office end warehouse space

from two entities that are owned by certain officers and directors of

the Company Total lease payments to these two affiliated entities

were $3.8 million $3.9 million and $3.6 million for the
years

ended

December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 On December 30 2010 the

Company purchased the corporate office and warehouse space from
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these two affiliated entities for approximately $33.0 million Approximately $16.0 million was paid in cash and the
remaining $17.0 million see

related
party payable on the consolidated balance sheet was paid in January 2011

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are comprised of the following U.S dollars in thousands

December 31

Land

Buildings

Furniture and fixtures

Computers and equipment

Leasehold improvements

Scanners

Vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation

2009

54261

91481

68780

18784

1943

235249

155893

79356

2010

16480

41496

46799

87653

56393

9469

2222

260512

126790

133722

Depreciation of property and equipment totaled $24.4 million $21.8 million and $22.7 million for the years ended December 31 2008

2009 and 2010

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and other intangible assets consist of the following U.S dollars in thousands

Goodwill and indefinite life intahgible assets

Goodwill

Trademarks and trade names

Carrying Amount at

December 31

2009 2010

112446 112446

24599 24599

137045 137045

Finite life intangible assets

Scanner technology

Developed technology

Distributor network

Trademarks

Other

December 31 2009 December 31 2010

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

46482 5390 46482 18423

22500 12612 22500 13436

11598 8085 11598 8587

13316 8837 13323 9524

29755 21358 32989 23251

123651 66282 126892 73221

Weighted-average

Amortization Period

18 years

20 years

15 years

15 years

years

15 years
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Amortization of finite-life intangible assets totaled $6.0 million $6.8 million and $6.9 million for the
years

ended December 3120082009 arid

2010 respectively Annual estimated amortization expense is expected to approximate $6.0 million for each of the five succeeding fiscal
years

All of the Companys goodwill is based in the U.S Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are not amortized rather they are subject

to annual impairment tests Annual impairment tests were completed resulting in no impairment charges for any of the periods shown Finite

life intangibles are amortized over their useful lives unless circumstances occur that cause the Company to revise such lives or review such assets

for impairment

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following U.S dollars in thousands

December 31

Deferred taxes

Deposits for noncancelable operating leases

Deposit for customs assessment Note 19

Other

2009

49030

20713

46476

20517

136736

2010

45027

14261

65255

2071

145260

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued
expenses consist of the following U.S dollars in thousands

December 31

Accrued commissions and other payments to ditributors

Other taxes payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued payable to vendors

Accrued severance

Other accrued employee expenses

Other

2009 2010

50332 66335

5596 15948

12790 13063

12438 9744

2537 112

15800 19704

25027 21202

124520 146108
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LONG-TERM DEBT

The following tables summarize the Companys long-term debt arrangements as of December 312010

Facility or

Arrarigement1

2003 $205.0 million multi-currency

uncommitted shelf facility

US dollar denominated

1.8 billion
yen $22.0

million as of December

31 2010

2.3 billion yen $27.9

million as of December

31 2010

2.2 billion yen $26.7

million as of December

312010

Interest

Rate Repayment terms

6.2% Notes due July 2016 with annual

principal payments that began in

July 2010

6.2% Notes due January 2017 with annual

principal payments that began in

January 2011

1.7% Notes due April 2014 with annual

principal payments that began in

April 2008

2.6% Notes due September 2017 with

annual principal payments begin

ning September 2011

3.3% Notes due January 2017 with annual

principal payments that began in

January2011

2010 committed loan

U.S dollar denominated

2004 $25.0 million revolving credit

facility

2009 $100.0 million uncommitted

multi-currency shelf
facility

$30.0 million

N/A

N/A

Variable 30

day 1.26%

N/A

N/A

Amortizes $1.5 million per quarter

Each of the credit facilities and arrangements listed in the table are secured by guarantees issued by the Companys domestic subsidiaries and by pledges of 65% of the outstand

ing stock of its material foreign subsidiaries The 2010 committed loan is also secured by deeds of trust with
respect to the Companys corporate headquarters and distribution

center in Provo Utah

The current portion of the Companys long-term debt i.e becoming due in the next 12 months includes $13.3 million of the balance of its Japanese yen-denominated debt under

the 2003 multi-currency uncommitted shelf facility $8.6 million of the balance on its U.S dollar denominated debt under the 2003 multi-currency uncommitted shelf facility and

$6.0 million of its 2010 committed loan

Balance as of

December 31

201 02

Original Principal

Amount

$40.0 million $34.3 million

$20.0 million $20.0 million

Japanese yen denominated 3.1 billion yen

2.3 billion yen

2.2 billion yen

$30.0 million

None

None
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Interest expense relating to debt totaled $7.8 million $6.9 million and $5.8 million for the
years

ended December 3120082009 and 2010

respectively

The notes and shelf facility contain other terms and conditions and affirmative and negative financial covenants customary for credit fa

cilities of this type including requirement to maintain minimum cash balance of $65.0 million As of December 31 2010 the Company is

in compliance with all financial covenants under the notes and shelf
facility

Maturities of all long-term debt at December 312010 based on the year-end exchange rate are as follows U.S dollars in thousands

Year Ending December 31

2011 27865

2012 27865

2013 39865

2014 21865

2015 16377

Thereafter 27041

Total 160878

LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company leases office space and computer hardware under noncancelable long-term operating leases Most leases include renewal

options of at least three years Minimum future operating lease obligations at December 312010 are as follows U.S dollars in thousands

Year Ending December 31

2011 15073

2012 13598

2013 12471

2014 10497

2015 10134

Thereafter 158

Total 61931

Rental expense for operating leases totaled $33.5 million $33.8 million and $28.8 million for the years ended December 31 20082009

and 2010 respectively
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10 CAPITAL STOCK

The Companys authorized capital stock consists of 25 million shares of preferred stock par
value $001 per share 500 million shares of

Class common stock par
value $001 per share and 100 million shares of Class common stock par

value $001 per share The shares of

Class common stock and Class common stock are identical in all respects except for voting rights and certain conversion rights and

transfer restrictions as follows each share of Class common stock entitles the holder to one vote on matters submitted to vote of the

Companys stockholders and each share of Class common stock entitles the holder to ten votes on each such matter stock dhidends of

Class common stock may be paid only to holders pf Class common stock and stock dividends of Class common stock may be paid

only to holders of Class common stock if holder of Class common stock transfers such shares to person
other than permitted

transferee as defined in the Companys Certificate of Incorporation such shares will be converted automatically into shares of Class common

stock and Class common stock has no conversion rights however each share of Class common stock is convertible into one share of

Class common stock in whole or in part at any time at the option of the holder All outstanding Class shares have been converted to

Class shares As of December 312010 and 2009 there were no preferred or Class common shares outstanding

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING

The following is reconciliation of the weighted-average common shares outstanding for purposes of computing basic and diluted net

income per share in thousands

Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 63510 63333 62370

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock awards and options 622 963 2177

Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 64132 64296 64547

For the years ended December 31 20082009 and 2010 other

stock options totaling 5.0 million 4.8 million and 0.4 million respec

tively were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per

share because they were anti-dilutive

REPURCHASES OF COMMON STOCK

The board of directors has approved stock repurchase program

authorizing the Company to repurchase the Companys outstanding

shares of Class common stock on the open market or in private trans

actions The repurchases are used primarily to offset dilution from the

Companys equity incentive plans and for
strategic initiatives During the

years
ended December 3120082009 and 2010 the Company repur

chased approximately 0.4 million.2 million and 2.2 million shares of Class

common stock for an aggregate price of approximately $6.1 million

$21.1 million and $58.5 million respectively Between August 1998 and

December 312010 the Company repurchased total of approximate

ly
21.8 million shares of Class common stock under this program for

an aggregate price of approximately $332.3 million In June 2010 the

Companys board of directors authorized an increase of $150.0 million

in the amount available under the Companys ongoing stock repurchase

program At December 31 2010 $153.6 million was available fot repur

chases under the stock repurchase program

11 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

At December 31 2010 the Company had the following stock-

based employee compensation plans

EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

During the
year ended December 311996 the Companys board

of directors adopted the Nu Skin Enterprises Inc 1996 Stock Incentive

Plan the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan In April2006 the Companys

Board of Directors approved the Nu Skin Enterprises Inc 2006 Stock

Incentive Plan the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan The 2006 Stock In

centive Plan was approved by the Companys stockholders at the

Companys 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders held in May of

2006 The 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2006 Stock Incentive

Plan provide for granting of stock awards and options to purchase

common stock to executives other employees independent consultants

and directors of the Company and its Subsidiaries Stock options

2008

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010
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granted under these plans are generally non-qualified stock options

but the plans permit some stock options granted to qualify as incen

tive stock options under the U.S Internal Revenue Code The exercise

price of stock option generally is equal to the fair market value of the

Companys common stock on the stock option grant date The con

tractual term of stock options granted since 1996 is generally ten years

However for stock options granted beginning in the second quarter

of 2006 the contractual term has been shortened to seven years Cur

rently all shares issued upon the exercise of stock options are from the

Companys treasury shares With the adoption of the 2010 Omnibus

Incentive Plan discussed below no further grants will be made under

the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan or the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

In April 2010 the Companys Board of Directors approved the

Nu Skin Enterprises Inc 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan the 2010

Omnibus Incentive Plan This plan was approved by the Companys

stockholders at the Companys 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

held in May of 201 The 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan provides for

granting of variety of equity based awards including stock options

stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units other

share based awards performance cash performance shares and per

formance units to executives other employees independent consul

tants and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries Options

granted under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan are generally non-

qualified stock options but the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan permits

some stock options granted to qualify as incentive stock options

under the U.S Internal Revenue Code The exercise price of stock

option generally is equal to the fair market value of the Companys

common stock on the stock option grant date The contractual term

of stock option granted under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan is

seven years Currently all shares issued uon the exercise of stock

options are from the Companys treasury shares Seven million shares

subject to certain adjustments were uthorized for issuance under the

2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan

The Company has traditionally granted time-vested options

However the Company has made several performance based grants

over the last four years The following is summary of the terms

the two most significant grants of performance awards The compen

sation committee of the board of directors approved the grant of

performance stock options to certain senior level executives in the

fourth quarter of 2007 under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan Vesting

for the options is performance based with the options vesting in two

installments if the Companys earnings per share equal or exceed the

two established performance levels measured in terms of diluted earn

ings per
share Fifty percent of the options vest upon earnings per

share
meeting or exceeding the first performance level and fifty percent

of the options vest upon earnings per share meeting or exceeding the

second performance level As of December 312010 both of the per

formance levels were met for these performance stock options which

resulted in cumulative compensation expense of $8.3 million

In November 2010 the compensation committee of the board

of directors approved the grant of performance stock options to cer

tain key employees under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan Vesting

for the options is performance based with the options vesting in three

installments if the Companys earnings per
share equal or exceed the

three established performance levels measured in terms of diluted

earnings per share One third of the options will vest upon earnings

per share meeting or exceeding the first performance level one third

of the options will vest upon earnings per share meeting or exceeding

the second performance level and one third of the options will vest

upon earnings per share meeting or exceeding the third performance

level All unvested options will terminate upon the Companys failure

to meet certain performance thresholds for each of
years 2013 through

2015 In addition all unvested options will terminate on March 30 201

The Company records an expense each period for the estimated amount

of expense associated with the Companys projected achievement of

the performance based targets

The Company has also issued other performance based awards

to limited number of participants that similarly vest or become eli

gible for vesting upon achievement of various performance targets
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The fair value of stock option awards was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions and

weighted-average fair values as follows

Year Ended December 31

Stock Options 2008 2009 2010

Weighted average grant date fair value of grants 4.69 2.84 8.61

Risk-free interest ratel 3.0% 2.3% 1.8%

Dividend yield2 2.6% 3.2% 2.6%

Expected volatilitys 36.1% 40.7% 37.8%

Expected life in months 58 months 69 months 69 months

The risk-free interest rate is based upon the rate on zero coupon U.S
Treasury bill for

periods within the contractual life of the option in effect at the time of the grant

t2 The dividend yield is based on the average of historical stock
prices

and actual dividends paid

CS

Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of our stock
price over period

similar to the expected life of the option

The expected term of the option is based on the histortcal employee exercise behavior the vesting terms of the respective option and contractual life of either seven or ten years
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Options under the plans as of December 31 2010 and changes during the year ended December 31 2010 were as follows

Weighted-

average

Remaining

Weighted- Contractual Aggregate

average Term Intrinsic Value

_________________
Exercise Price in years in thousands

Options activity service based

Outstanding at December 31 2009

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited/cancelled/expired _________________

Outstanding at December31 2010

Exercisable at December 31 2010
_______________

Options activity performance based

Outstanding at December 31 2009

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited/cancelled/expired _________________

Outstanding at December 31 2010

Exercisable at December 31 2010

Options activity all options

Outstanding at December 312009

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited/cancelled/expired
________________

Outstanding at December 312010
________________

Exercisable at December 312010
_______________

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value the difference between the Companys closing

stock price on the last trading day of the respective years and the eercise price multiplied by the number of in-the-money options that would

have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on December 312010 This amount varies based on

the fair market value of the Companys stock The total fair value of options vested and expensed was $4.8 million net of tax for the year

ended December 312010

Shares

in thousands

5792.0 14.82

209.5 26.14

1298.8 13.24

218.8 14.53

4483.9 15.82 4.31 64734

2747.6 17.63 3.76 34707

1742.5 17.03

2121.5 30.31

242.5 16.65

35.0 18.03

3586.5 24.90 5.71 19563

665.0 17.07 4.07 8773

7534.5 5.33

2331.0 29.93

1541.3 13.77

253.8 15.02

8070.4 19.86 4.93 84298

3412.6 17.52 3.83 43480
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December 31

Cash proceeds from stock options exercised

Tax benefit realized for stock options exercised

Intrinsic value of stock options exercised

2010

21.2

10.3

25.4

Nonvested restricted stock awards as of December 31 2010 and changes during the
year

ended December 312010 were as follows

Nonvested at December 31 2009

Number of Shares

in thousands

340.3

Weighted-average

Grant Date

Fair Value

17.12

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at December 31 2010 530.3

As of December 31 2010 there was $8.9 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested restricted

stock awards That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 2.5 years As of December 312010 there was $22.4

million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested stock option awards That cost is expected to be recognized

over weighted-average period of 3.9 years

12 INCOME TAXES

Consolidated income before provision for income taxes consists of the following for the
years ended December 31 20082009 and 2010

U.S dollars in thousands

U.S

Foreign

Total

2008

52756

47897

100653

2009

71338

69786

141124

2010

141069

66544

207613

Cash proceeds tax benefits and intrinsic value related to total stock options exercised during 20082009 and 2010 were as follows in

millions

2008 2009

3.8

1.2

0.2

6.2

2.9

8.2

338.9

140.0

8.9

25.98

16.65

18.82

22.88
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The provision for current and deferred taxes for the years ended December 3120082009 and 2010 consists of the following U.S dollars

in thousands

Current

Federal

State

Foreign

Deferred

Federal

State

Foreign

Provision for income taxes

2008

10524

2620

22408

35552

713

345

614

246

35306

2009

9409

1690

27784

38883

14266

937

2807

12396

51279

2010

45761

3825

27450

77036

2558

212

3128

5474

71562

The Companys foreign taxes paid are high relative to foreign operating income and the Companys U.S taxes paid are low relative to

U.S operating income due largely to the flow of funds among the Companys Subsidiaries around the world As payments for services man

agement fees license arrangements and royalties are made from the Companys foreign affiliates to its U.S corporate headquarters these

payments often incur withholding and other forms of tax that are generally creditable for U.S tax purposes Therefore these payments lead

to increased foreign effective tax rates and lower U.S effective tax rates Variations or shifts occur in the Companys foreign and U.S effec

tive tax rates from year to year depending on several factors These factors include the impact of global transfer prices the timing and level of

remittances from foreign affiliates profits and losses in various markets in the valuation of deferred tax assets or liabilities or changes in tax

laws regulation accounting principles or interpretations thereof
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The principal components of deferred taxes are as follows U.S dollars in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010

Deferred tax assets

Inventory differences 3777 5572

Foreign tax credit and other foreign benefits 34717 25408

Stock-based compensation 8251 9632

Accrued
expenses not deductible until paid 25211 28325

Foreign currency exchange 8934 17727

Net operating losses 14430 12481

Capitalized research and development 19175 18295

Asian marketing rights 1095 483

Other 5839 7023

Gross deferred tax assets 121429 124946

Deferred tax liabilities

Exchange gains and losses 3299 4763

Pharmanex intangibles step-up 13514 12923

Amortization of intangibles 8768 10193

Foreign outside basis in controlled foreign corporation 10137 10683

Prepaid expenses 11239 11239

Other 2025 3921

Gros deferred tax liabilities 48982 53722

Valuation allowance 11150 11351

Deferred taxes net 61297 59873

At December 312010 the Company had foreign operating loss carryforwards of approximately $54.7 million for tax purposes which will

be available to offset future taxable income If not used $20.7 million of carryforwards will expire between 2011 and 2020 while $34.0 million

do not expire

The valuation allowance primarily represents amounts for foreign operating loss carryforwards for which it is more likely
than not

some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized In making such determination the Company considers all available positive

and
negative evidence including future reversals of existing taxable temporary difference projected future taxable income tax planning strat

egies and recent financial operations When the Company determines that there is sufficient taxable income to utilize the net operating

losses the valuation will be released which would reduce the provision for income taxes
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The components of deferred taxes net on jurisdiction basis are as follows U.S dollars in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010

Net current deferred tax assets 23541 26094

Net noncurrent deferred tax assets 49030 45027

Total net deferred tax assets 72571 71121

Net current deferred tax liabilities

Net noncurrent deferred tax liabilities 11274 11240

Total net deferred tax liabilities 11274 11248

Deferred taxes net 61297 59873

The Company is subject to regular audits by federal state and foreign tax authorities These audits may result in proposed assessments

that may result in additional tax liabilities

The actual tax rate for the
years ended December 31 20082009 and 2010 compared to the statutory U.S Federal tax rate is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

Income taxes at statutory rate 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%

Non-deductible
expenses

.23 .24 .10

Other .15 1.10 .63

35.08% 36.34% 34.47%

The increase in the effective tax rate in 2009 compared to 2008 was due to reduced benefit relating to the expiration of the statute of

limitations The decrease in the effective tax rate in 2010 compared to 2009 was due primarily to the increased benefit relating to the expiration

of the statute of limitations in certain tax jurisdictions

13 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has 401k defined contribution plan which permits participating employees to defer up to maximum of 100% of their

compensation subject to limitations established by the Internal Revenue Service Employees age 18 and older are eligible to contribute to the

plan starting the first day of employment After completing at least one day of service employees are eligible to receive the Companys

matching funds In 20082009 and 2010 the Company matched employees base
pay up to 3% 3.5% and 4% respectively In 2008 the Com

panys contributions vested evenly over four years In 2009 and 2010 the Companys contributions cliff vest at two years The Company re

corded compensation expense of $1.3 million $1.7 million and $2.1 million for the
years ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 respec

tively related to its contributions to the plan

The Company has defined benefit pension plan for its employees in Japan All employees of Nu Skin Japan after certain years of

service are entitled to pension plan benefits when they terminate employment viith Nu Skin Japan The accrued pension liability was $6.9

million $5.9 million and $7.4 million as of December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively Although Nu Skin Japan has not specifically

funded this obligation as it is not required to do so Nu Skin Japan believes it maintains adequate cash balances for this defined benefit pen
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sion plan The Company recorded pension expense
of $0.9 million $0.6 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 3120082009

and 2010 respectively

14 EXECUTIVE DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Company has an executive deferred compensation plan for select management personnel Under this plan the Company may

make contribution of
up to 10% of participants salary In addition each participant has the option to defer portion of their compensation

up to maximum of 80% of their compensation Participant contributions are immediately vested Company contributions vest on the earlier

of attaining 60 years of age 50% after ten years
of service and 5% each

year
of service thereafter and death or disability The Com

pany
recorded compensation expense

of $0.8 million $1.1 million and $3.4 million for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010

respectively related to its contributions to the plan The Company had accrued $10.0 million and $15 million as of December 31 2009 and

2010 respectively related to the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At December 31 2009 the Company held forward contracts designated as foreign currency cash flow hedges with notional amounts

totaling approximately $3.0 million to hedge forecasted foreign-currency-denominated intercompany transactions and $0.1 million net unreal

ized gain net of related taxes was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss At December 312010 the Company held $22.2 million

in forward contracts designated as foreign currency cash flow hedges to hedge forecasted foreign-currency-denominated intercompany

transactions

The contracts held at December 31 2010 have maturities through June 2011 and accordingly all unrealized gains and losses on foreign

currency cash flow hedges included in accumulated other comprehensive loss will be recognized in current earnings over the next months

There were no pre-tax net losses/gains on foreign currency cash flow hedges recorded in current earnings for the years ended December 31

2008 and 2009 There were $0.1 million of pre-tax net gains on foreign currency cash flow hedges recorded in currnt earnings for year ended

December 312010

16 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid for interest totaled $7.9 million $7.0 million and $6.2 million for the years ended December 3120082009 and 2010 respectively Cash

paid for income taxes totaled $27.2 million $36.8 million and $61.2 million for the
years

ended December 3120082009 and 2010 respectively There

was non-cash item for the
year

ended December 312010 as described in Note to the consolidated financial statements pertaining to the related

party purchase of corporate office and warehouse
space

17 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in single operating segment by selling products to global network of independent distributors that operates

in seamless manner from market to market except for its operations in Mainland China In Mainland China the Company utilizes an employed

sales force contractual sales promoters and direct sellers to sell its products through fixed retail locations Selling expenses are the Companys

largest expense comprised of the commissions paid to its worldwide independent distributors as well as remuneration to its Mainland China

sales employees promoters and direct sellers paid on product sales The Company manages its business primarily by managing its global sales

.force The Company does not use profitability reports on regional or divisional basis for making business decisions However the Company

doe recognize revenue in five geographic regions North Asia Greater China Americas Europe and South Asia/Pacific
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Revenue generated in each of these
regions is set forth below U.S dollars in thousands

Revenue

North Asia

Greater China

Americas

South Asia/Pacific

Europe

Iota1

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

594548 606113 686073

209968 210379 268171

223902 260865 250008

107656 120123 182796

111572 133578 150211

1247646 1331058 1537259

Revenue generated by each of the Companys product lines is set forth below U.S dollars in thousands

_______-
Year Ended December 31

Revenue

NuSkin

Pharmanex

Other

Iota1

2008

633411

597714

16521

1247646

2009

752681

565592

12785

1331058

2010

913819

612209

11231

1537259

Additional information as to the Companys operations in the most significant geographical areas is set forth below

U.S dollars in thousands

_________ Year Ended December 31

Revenue

Japan

South Korea

United States

Europe

laiwan

Mainland China

2008 2009 2010

443714 461914 471425

150834 144199 214648

192140 218557 212070

96573 111862 124497

92297 91727 107133

65329 71086 91352

Long-lived assests

Japan

South Korea

United States

Europe

laiwan

Mainland China

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010

8079 2473

3654 9396

42378 84829

3005 2697

1758 2200

11841 11646
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18 RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During 2009 the Company recorded restructuring charges of

$10.7 million related to restructuring of its Japan operations includin

an approximate 30% headcount reduction as well as facility
relocations

and closures $7.4 million related to severance payments to terminated

employees and $3.3 million of these charges related to facility
reloca

tion or closing costs The majority of these severance charges are re

lated to voluntary employment reduction program The restructur

ing charges for
facility

relocation or closing costs related to costs

incurred during 2009 for leases terminated in that period

19 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is subject to governmental regulations pertaining

to product formulation labeling and packaging product claims and

advertising and to the Companys direct selling system The Company

is also subject to the jurisdiction of numerous foreign tax and customs

authorities Any assertions or determination that either the Company

or the Companys distributors is not in compliance with existing stat

utes laws rules or regulations could potentially have material adverse

effect on the Companys operations In addition in any country orjuris

diction the adoption of new statutes laws rules or regulations or

changes in the interpretation of
existing statutes laws rules or regula

tions could have material adverse effect on the Company and its

operations Although management believes that the Company is in

compliance in all material
respects

with the statutes laws rules and

regulations of
every jurisdiction in which it operates no assurance can

be given that the Companys compliance with applicable statutes laws

rules and regulations will not be challenged by foreign authorities or

that such challenges will not have material adverse effect on the

Companys financial position or results of operations or cash flows The

Company and its Subsidiaries are defendants in litigation
and proceed

ings involving various matters Except as noted below in the opinion of

the Companys management based
upon

advice of its counsel han

dling such
litigation

and proceedings adverse outcomes if

any
will not

likely
result in material effect on the Companys consolidated financial

condition results of operations or cash flows

The Company is subject to regular audits by federal state and

foreign tax authorities These audits may result in additional tax liabil

ities The Company believes it has appropriately provided for income

taxes for all years Several factors drive the calculation of its tax re

serves Some of these factors include the expiration of various

statutes of limitations ii changes in tax law and regulations iii issu

of tax rulings and iv settlements with tax authorities Changes

in any of these factors may result in adjustments to the Companys

reserves which would impact its reported financial results

Due to the international nature of the Companys business the

Company is subject from time to time to reviews and audits by the

foreign taxing authori.ties of the various jurisdictions in which the

Company conducts business throughout the world The Company is

currently involved in two separate diputes with the customs authori

ties in Japan with respect to duty assessments on several of the

Companys Pharmanex nutritional products totaling approximately

5.3 billion Japanese yen as of December 31 2010 approximately

$65.3 million net of
any recovery

of consumption taxes The Com

pany was also recently notified that it is likely to receive an additional

assessment of 0.6 billion Japanese yen approximately $7.7 million

related to the second dispute

The first dispute relates to additional customs assessments

made by Yokohama Customs for the period of October 2002

through July 2005 The aggregate amount of these additional as

sessments is 2.7 billion Japanese yen approximately $33.2 million as

of December 31 2010 net of any recovery of consumption taxes

The dispute relates to whether the Company used the proper valua

tion method for these products in determining the applicable cus

toms duties The primary legal issue in the case is whether the rele

vant import transaction is sale between the Companys third party

manufacturers and the Companys Japan subsidiary or sale be

tween the Compnys US subsidiary and the Companys Japan sub

sidiary In 1999 th.e Company worked with the Yokohama Customs

authorities to restructure the form of the relevant transactions in or

der to have the import transaction be sale between the Companys

third party manufacturers andthe Companys Japan subsidiary and

thus have the duties assessed on the price paid to the Companys

third
party manufacturers With the input and guidance of the Yoko

hama Customs authorities the Company restructured the form of

the transaction and the agreements between the relevant parties

based on these discussions so that the Companys US subsidiary

would be
acting on behalf of the Companys Japan subsidiary with

respect to the purchase of these products rather than as buyer

seller The Companys Japan subsidiary entered into Memoran

dum of Understanding with each of the Companys third party man

ufacturers of the relevant products which provided that the Com

panys Japan subsidiary was the purchaser of the products and that

the Companys US subsidiary was acting for and on behalf of the

Companys Japan subsidiary with respect to these products The

Companys Japan subsidiary also entered into Memorandum of
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Understanding with the Companys US subsidiary documenting the

same agency relationship The Company believes that these legal

documents establish that the Companys US subsidiary was acting

as an agent and not buyer and seller of the relevant products The

additional assessment of duties by Yokohama Customs was based

on its re-characterization of the transaction as sale between the

Companys US subsidiary and the Companys Japan subsidiary for

custom law purposes despite the legal form of the transaction The

Company does not believe the legal documentation supports the

re-characterization of these transactions Yokohama Customs has

raised several issues to support its re-characterization including the

fact that the Company has treated the relevant transaction as sale

between the Companys US subsidiary and Japan subsidiary for in

come tax purposes However the Company believes that the rele

vant income tax and transfer pricing rules and regulations apply dif

ferent standards and are not relevant to the customs issue Because

the Company believes that the legal documentation for these trns

actions support the Companys position the Company filed com

plaint in the Tokyo District Court Civil Action Section in December

2006 to have the Ministry of Finances affirmation of the additional

assessments reversed The final hearing on this matter was held on

February 2011 and the court indicated it would issue decision on

this case on March 25 2011 Either party has the right to appeal this

decision If the Company receives an adverse decision in this case

the Company may be required to record an expense for the full

amount of the disputed assessments or $33.2 million

The second dispute relates to additional customs assessments

made by Yokohama Customs for the period of October2006 through

November 2008 in connection with an audit in 2009 as well as the

disputed portion of the Companys current import duty rate the

Company has been required to pay or hold in bond and has paid un

der protest since October of 2009 The aggregate amount of these

additional assessments and disputed duties is 2.6 billion Japanese yen

as of December 31 2010 approximately $32.1 million net of any re

covery of consumption taxes The Company was also recently noti

fied that it will
likely be assessed an additional 0.6 billion Japanese yen

approximately $7.7 million net of any recovery of consumption taxes

based on an audit of the period of November 2008 through Septem

ber 2009 With this assessment we have been required to pay or hold

in bond amounts for all periods from October 2006 to present and we

believe that additional assessments related to any prior period would

be barred by applicable statutes of limitations In July 2005 the Com

pany changed the its operating structure in Japan and believed that

these changes would eliminate further valuation disputes with Yoko

the basis of the
litigation

in the first dispute i.e whether the Compa

nys US subsidiary was acting as an agent for the Companys Japan

subsidiary or was acting as the seller However in October 2009 the

Company received notice from Yokohama Customs authorities that

they were assessing additional duties penalties and interest for the

period of October 2006 through November 2008 based on their

view that the Company was not
utilizing

the proper valuation method

The basis for such additional assessment is different from the issues

that are being litigated in the first dispute The issue in this second case

is whether US entity utilizing
commissionaire agent in Japan to

import its products can use the manufacturers invoice or must use

another valuation method and if an alternative method must be used

what the allowable deductions would be in determining the proper

valuation Following the Companys review of the assessments and

after consulting with the Companys legal and customs advisors the

Company believes that the additional assessments are improper and

are not supported by applicable customs laws The Company filed

letters of protest with Yokohama Customs which were rejected The

Company has appealed the matter to the Ministry of Finance in Ja

pan In addition the Company is currently being required to post

bond or make deposit equal to the difference between the Com

panys declared duties and the amount the customs authorities have

determined the Company should be paying on all current imports

Because the Company believes that the higher rate determined by

the customs authorities is an improper application of the regulations

the Company is currently expensing the portion of the duties the

Company believes is supported under applicable customs law and

recording the additional deposit or payment as receivable within

long-term assets on its consolidated financial statements To the ex

tent that the Company is unsuccessful in recovering the amounts as

sessed and paid or held in bond the Company will
likely

be required to

record an expense for the full amount of the disputed assessments or

$32.1 million as of December 312010

In November2008 the U.S Internal Revenue Service began an

audit of the Companys 2006 and 2007 tax years The Company an

ticipates this audit will be completed during 2011

20 DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Quarterly cash dividends for the years.ended December 312009

and 2010 totaled $29.0 million and $31.2 million or $0.11 Sand $0125 per

share respectively The board of directors has declared quarterly cash

dividend of $0135 per share for all classes of common stock to be paid

hama Customs as the new structure eliminated the issues that were on March 162011 to stockholders of record on February 252011
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21 QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following table sets forth selected unaudited quarterly data for the periods shown US dollars in millions except per share amounts

2009 2010

1st 2nd 3rd 4th 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Revenue 296.2 322.6 334.2 378.1 364.1 388.4 383.6 401.2

Gross profit 242.4 261.9 272.1 311.0 299.3 320.4 314.8 330.3

Operating income 20.2 34.4 40.9 52.2 46.1 59.2 52.9 58.9

Net income 11.8 22.1 25.6 30.3 31.0 32.4 35.3 37.3

Net income
per

share

Basic 0.19 0.35 0.41 0.48 0.50 0.51 0.57 0.60

Diluted 0.19 0.35 0.40 0.47 0.48 0.50 0.55 0.58

22 OTHER INCOME EXPENSE NET

Other income expense net was $9.4 million of expense in 2010 compared to $6.6 million of
expense in 2009 The Company recorded

II foreign currency transaction losses with respect to its intercompany receivables and payables with certain of its international affiliates including

markets that are newly opened or have remained in loss position since inception Generally foreign currency transaction losses with these

affiliates would be offset by gains related to the foreign currency transactions of the Companys yen-based bank debt Other income ex

pense net also includes approximately $7.8 million $6.9 million and $5.8 million in interest expense during 20082009 and 2010 respectively

It is impossible to predict foreign currency
fluctuations The Company cannot estimate the degree to which its operations will be impacted in

the future but it remains subject to these
currency

risks However the majority of these transaction losses are non-cash non-operating losses
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Nu Skin Enterprises Inc

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and

the related consolidated statements of income shareholders equity

and comprehensive income and cash flows present fairly in all mate

rial

respects
the financial position of Nu Skin Enterprises Inc and its

subsidiaries at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 and the

results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended December 312010 in conformity with ac

counting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmer

ica Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material re

spects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the ConHmittee of Sponsoring Or

ganizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys

management is responsible for these financial statements for main

taining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial re

porting included in the accompanying Managements Report on In

ternal Control over Financial Reporting appearing in Item 9A Our

responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and

on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on

our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with

the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining

on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of inter

nal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our aü

dits also included performing such other procedures as we consid

ered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits pro

vide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process de

signed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability

of fi

nancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exter

nal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles companys internal control over financial reporting in

cludes those policies and procedures that pertain to the mainte

nance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neces

sary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and ex

penditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the company and Hi

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec

tion of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial re

porting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of
any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or pro

cedures may deteriorate

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Salt Lake City Utah

February 23 2011
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None

CHANGES IN AND
DISAGREEMENTS WITH

ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures Under the super

vision and with the participation of our management including our

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer we evaluated

the effectiveness of the design and operationof our disclosure con

trols and procedures as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15e under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act Disclo

sure controls and procedures are the controls and other procedures

that we designed to ensure that we record process summarize and

report in timely manner the information we must disclose in reports

that we file with or submit to the Securities and Exchange Commis

sion under the Exchange Act Based on this evaluation our Chief

Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded that our

disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the

period covered by this report

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting During

the fourth quarter of 2010 there was no change in our internal control

over financial reporting as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15f un

der the Exchange Act that has materially affected or is reasonably

likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining ad

equate internal control over financial reporting Internal control over

financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15f under the Exchange Act

as process designed by or under the supervision of our principal

executive and principal financial officers and effected by our board of

directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the
reliability

of financial reporting and the prep

aration of financial statements for external purposes in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America and includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of

our assets

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in ac

cordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America and that our receipts and expendi

tures are being made only in accordance with authorization of

management and directors and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of our

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or pro

cedures may deteriorate

Under the supervision and with the participation of our man

agement including our principal executive and principal financial

officers we assessed as of December 31 2010 the effectiveness of

our internal control over financial reporting This assessment was

based on criteria established in the framework in Internal Control-

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on our assess

ment our management concluded that our internal control over

financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2010

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2010 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoo

pers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated

in their report which
appears

herein

ITEM

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

The information required by Items 10 11 12 13 and 14 of Part Ill is tion required by Item 10 with respect to our executive officers which is

hereby incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement set forth under Item Business of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

filed or to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for and is incorporated herein by reference

our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders except for certain informa

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL

STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Documents filed as part of this Form 10-K

Financial Statements See Index to Consolidated Financial

Statements under Item ofPartll

Financial Statement Schedules N/A

Exhibits References to the Company shall mean Nu Skin

Enterprises Inc Exhibits preceded by an asterisk are

management contracts or compensatory plans or arrange

ments Unless otherwise noted the SEC file number for

exhibits incorporated by reference is 001 -12421

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the

Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-1 File No

333-12073 the Form S-i

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated

Certificate of Incorporation incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 312009

3.3 Certificate of Designation Preferences and Relative Partici

pating Optional and Other Special Rights of Preferred

Stock and Qualifications Limitations and Restrictions

Thereof incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 312004

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company as amended

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December

312007

3.5 Amendment to the Amended and Restated Bylaws of

the Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

January 72008

4.1 Specimen Form of Stock Certificate for Class Common

Stock incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-3 File No

33390716

4.2 Specimen Form of Stock Certificate for Class Common

Stock incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Com

panys Form S-1

10.1 Credit Agreement dated as of May 10 2001 among the

Company various financial institutions and Bank of America

N.A as Administrative Agent incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2006

10.2 First.Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

December 14 2001 among the Company various financial

institutions and Bank of America N.A as Administrative

Agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2006

10.3 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

October 22 2003 between the Company various financial

institutions and Bank of America N.A as Administrative

Agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 312003

10.4 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of May

102004 among the Company various financial institutions

and Bank One N.A as Administrative Agent incorporated
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by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Re

port on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 302004

10.5 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of July

282006 among the Company various financial institutions

and JPMorgan chase Bank N.A as Administrative Agent

as successor to Bank One N.A incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form

8-K filed on August 232006

10.6 Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of October

2006 among the Company various financial institutions

and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative Agent

as successor to Bank One N.A incorporated by reference

to Ehibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form

8-K filed on October 102006

10.7 Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

August 82007 among the Company various financial insti

tutions and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative

Agent as successor to Bank One N.A incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report

on Form 8-K filed August 152007

10.8 Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

November 2007 among the Company various financial

institutions and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Adminis

trative Agent as successor to Bank One N.A incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on November 13 2007

10.9 Eighth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

February 29 2008 among the Company various financial

institutions and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Adminis

trative Agent as successor to Bank One N.A incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.87 to the Companys Annual Re

port on Form 10-K for the year ended December 312007

10.10 Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

August 252009 among the Company various financial insti

tutions and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as successor to

Bank One N.A as successor administrative agent incorpo

rated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on August 312009

10.11 Letter Agreement among the Company various financial

institutions and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Adminis

trative Agent as successor to Bank One N.A incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to the Companys Current Re

port on Form 8-K filed November 132007

10.12 Credit Agreement dated as of December 29 2010 among

the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A

10.13 Private Shelf Agreement dated of August 26 2003 be

tween the Company and Prudential Investment Manage

ment Inc the Private Shelf Agreement incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Companys Annual report

on Forrr 10-K for the year ended December 312008

10.14 First Amendment to the Private Shelf Agreement dated as

of October 31 2003 between the Company and Prudential

Investment Management Inc incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.53 to the Companys Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 312003

10.15 Second Amendment to the Private Shelf Agreement dated

as of May 182004 between the Company Prudential Invest

ment Management Inc and the holders of the Series

Senior Notes and Series Senior Notes issued under the

Private Shelf Agreement incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

10-0 for the
quarter

ended June 302004

10.16 Third Amendment to the Private Shelf Agreement dated

June 13 2005 between the Company Prudential Invest

ment Management Inc and certain other lenders incorpo

rated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quar

terly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 30

2005

10.17 Fourth Amendment to the Private Shelf Agreement dated

July 282006 between the Company Prudential Investment

Management Inc and certain other lenders incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Companys Current Re

port on Form 8-K filed on August 23 2006

10.18 Fifth Amendment to the Private Shelf Agreement dated

October 52006 between the Company Prudential Invest

ment Management Inc and certain other lenders incorpo

rated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on October 102006

10.19 Sixth Amendment to the Private Shelf Agreement dated as

of November 72007 between the Company Prudential In

vestment Management Inc and certain other lenders in

corporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Companys

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 132007

10.20 Seventh Amendment to the Private Shelf Agreement dated

as of February 25 2008 between the Company Prudential
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Investment Management Inc and certain other lenders in

corporated by reference to Exhibit 10.83 to the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December

31 2007

10.21 Multi-Currency Private Shelf Agreement dated as of October

2009 between the Company Prudential Investment

Management Inc and certain other lenders incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Re

port on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 302009

10.22 Letter Agreement among the Company Prudential Invest

ment Management Inc and certain other lenders incorpo

rated by reference to Exhibit 99.6 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed November 132007

10.23 Letter Agreement dated October 12009 among the Com

pany Prudential Investment Management Inc and certain

other lenders Thcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to

the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2009

10.24 Series Senior Notes Nos C-i and C-2 issued February

2005 by the Company to Prudential Investment Manage

ment Inc and/or its affiliates pursuant to the Private Shelf

Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed February

2005

10.25 Series Senior Notes Nos D-1 D-2 D-3 and D-4 issued

October 32006 by the Company to Prudential Investment

Management Inc and/or its affiliates pursuant to the Private

Shelf Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed October

102006

10.26 Series Senior Notes Nos E-i E-2 E-3 E-4 and E-5 issued

January 192007 by the Company to Prudential Investment

Management Inc and/or its affiliates pursuant to the Private

Shelf Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed January

25 2007

10.27 Series Senior Note E-6 issued July 202007 by the Com

pany to Prudential Insurance Company of America pursuant

to the Private Shelf Agreement incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on 8-K filed

January 142008

10.28 Series EE Senior Note EE-i issued January 2008 by the

Company to Prudential Insurance Company of America

pursuant to the Private Shelf Agreement incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report

on 8-K filed January 142008

10.29 Series Senior Notes Nos F-i and F-2 issued September

28 2007 by the Company to Prudential Investment Man

agement Inc and/or its affiliates pursuant to the Private

Shelf Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the

quarter
ended September 302007

10.30 Pledge Agreement dated October 12 2000 by and be

tween the Company and State Street Bank and Trust Com

pany
of California N.A acting in its capacity as collateral

agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Com

panys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 312005

10.31 Pledge Amendments executed by the Company dated

December 31 2003 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.5 to the Companys Annual Report on Form ia-K for the

year ended December 31 2003

10.32 Pledge Agreement dated as of January 31 2005 by and

among Nu Skin Asia Investment Inc wholly-owned sub

sidiary of the Company and U.S Bank National Association

as agent for and on behalf of the Benefited Parties under the

Amended and Restated Collateral Agency and lntercreditor

Agreement referred to below incorporated by refeence to

Exhibit 99.3 to the Companys Current Report on Form

8-K/A filed on March 10 2005

10.33 Amended and Restated Collateral Agency and lntercreditor

Agreement dated as of August 262003 by and among the

Company and various of its subsidiaries U.S Bank National

Association as Collateral Agent and various lending institu

tions incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form ia-K for the year ended

December 31 2008

10.34 Real Es.tate Purchase and Sale Agreement and other ancil

lary agreements dated as of December 30 2010 between

Aspen Country LLC and Nu Skin International Inc

10.35 Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement and other ancil

lary agreements dated as of December 30 2010 between

Scrub Oak.LLC and Nu Skin International Inc
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10.36 Form of Promissory Notes dated as of December 30 2010

by Nu Skin International Inc with schedule of material dif

fere ces

10.37 Form of lermination of Lock-up Agreements dated as

of September 2010 between the Company and each of

Blake and Nancy Roney Steven and Kalleen Lund and

andra lillotson

1038 Form of Indemnification Agreement to be entered into be

tween the Company and certain of its officers and directors

incorporated by reference to Exhibit10.48 to the Compa

nys Annual Report on Form ia-K for the year ended

December 312008

1039 Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan effec

tive as of January 2008 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

io-Q for the quarter ended September 302007

1040 Amendment to the Deferred Compensation Plan effective

as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.50 to the Companys Annual Report on Form ia-K for

the year ended December 312008

1041 Nu Skin Enterprises Inc Nonqualified Deferred Compensa

tion Trust dated December 14 2005 incorporated by refer

ence to Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed December 192005

1042 Second Amended and Restated Nu Skin Enterprises Inc

1996 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.28 to the Companys Annual Report on Form

ia-K for the
year ended December 31 2005

1043 Form of Master Stock Option Agreement 1996 Plan

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to the Companys

Annual Report on Form ia-K for the
year

ended December

312007

1044 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Directors 1996 Plan

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the Companys

Annual Report on Form ia-K for the year ended December

312006

1045 Nu Skin Enterprises Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan incorpo

rated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on June 12006

1046 Form of Master Stock Option Agreement 2006 Plan in

corporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form ia-Q for the quarterly period

ended September 302006

1047 Form of Master Stock Option Agreement 2006 Plan Per

formance Option U.S incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.54 to the Companys Annual Report on Form

ia-K for the year ended December 312007

1048 Form of Master Stock Option Agreement for Directors

2006 Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.59 to

the Companys Annual Report on Form ia-K for the
year

ended December 31 2008

1049 Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 2006

Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Com

panys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

June 30 2007

1050 Form of Master Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 2006

Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Com

panys Quarterly Report on Form ia-Q for the quarterly

period ended September 30 2006

1051 Nu Skin Enterprises Inc 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys

Current Report on Fdrm 8-K filed on June 22010

1052 Form of 2010 Plan U.S Stock Option Master Agreement

and Grant Notice incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July

22010

1053 Form of 2010 Plan U.S Restricted Stock Unit Master Agree

ment and Grant Notice incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on July 22010

1054 Form of 2010 Plan U.S Performance Stock Option Master

Agreement and Grant Notice

1055 Form of 2010 Plan U.S Performance Restricted Stock Unit

Master Agreement and Grant Notice incorporated by ref

erence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on July 22010

1056 Form of 2010 Plan Director Stock Option Master Agree

ment and Grant Notice incorporated by reference to
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Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

io-Q for the quarterly period ended June 302010

1057 Form of 2010 Plan Director Restricted Stock Unit Master

Agreement and Grant Notice incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

iO-Q for the quarferly period ended June 302010

1058 Nu Skin Enterprises Inc 2009 Key Employee Death Benefit

Plan

Q59 Employment Letter between the Company and Truman

Hunt dated January 17 2003 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.67 to the Companys Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2007

1060 Summary of Modifications to Truman Hunts Employment

Letter incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.69 to the

CompanysAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 312008

1061 Joseph Chang Employment Agreement dated Novem

ber 2009 between Mr Chang and the Company incor

porated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2009

1062 Daniel Chard Employment Agreement effective February

13 2006between Mr Chard and the Company incorpo

rated by reference to Exhibit 10.61 to the Companys An
nual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December

31 2006

1063 Summary of Modifications to Dan Chards Employment

Letter incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form io-Q for the quarter

ended March 312009

1064 Event Appearance Bonus Guidelines Approved for Sandra

Tillotson in October 2006 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.68 to the Companys Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2006

1065 Ashok Pahwa Settlement and Release Agreement dated

April 2010 between Mr Pahwa and the Company incor

porated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form io-Q for the quarter ended June

302010

1066 Gary Sumihiro Settlement and Release Agreement dated

March 2009 between Mr Sumihiro and the Compary

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form io-Q for the quarter ended

March 312009

1067 Gary Sumihiro Consulting Agreement dated March 12009

between Mr Sumihiro and the Company incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form io-Q for the
quarter

ended March 31 2009

1068 Fom of Key Employee Covenants incorporated by refer

ence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form io-Q for the quarter ended June 302007

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

31.1 Certification by Truman Hunt President and Chief

Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a of the Securi

ties Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section

302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification by Ritch Wood Chief Financial Officer pur

suant to Rule 13a-14a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification by Truman Hunt President and Chief

Executive Officer pursuant to Section 1350 Chapter 63 of

Title 18 United States Code as adopted pursuantto Section

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification by Ritch Wood Chief Financial Officer pur

suant to Section 1350 Chapter 63 of Title 18 United States

Code as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on February 232011

NU SKIN ENTERPRISES INC

By /s/M.Truman Hunt

Truman Hunt Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 23 2011

Signatures Capacity in Which Signed

/s/ Blake Roney Chairman of the Board

Blake NA Roney

/s/ Truman Hunt President and Chief Executive Officer and Director

Truman Hunt Principal Executive Officer

/s/
Ritch Wood Chief Financial Officer

Ritch Wood Principal Financial Officer and Accounting Officer

/s/ Sandra Tillotson Senior Vice President Director

Saddra Tillotson

/s/
Steven Lund Director

Steven Lund

/s Daniel Carrpbell Director

Daniel Campbell

/s E.J Jake Darn Director

Jake Darn

/s/
Andrew Lipman Directr

Andrew Lipman

/s/ Patricia Negron Director

Patricia Negran

/s/ David Ussery Director

David Ussery

/s/ Thomas Pisano Director

Thomas Pisano

/s/ Nevin Andersen Director

Nevin Andersen

84



BOARDOFDIRECTORS

Blake Roney

Executive Chairman of the Board

Steven Lund

Vice Chairman of the Board

Truman Hunt

President Chief Executive Officer

Sandie Tillotson

Senior Vice PrØsident

Senator E.J Jake Garn

United States Senate Retired

Compensation Committee Member

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Member

Nevin Andersen

Retired

Audit Committee Chair

Daniel Campbell

Managing General Partner EsNet Ltd

Compensation Committee Chair

Audit Committee Member

Andrew Liprnan

Partner Bingham McCutchen LLP

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chair

Compensation Committee Member

Patricia Negran

Independent Consultant Author

Audit Committee Member

Compensation Committee Member

Thomas Pisano

Retired

Audit Committee Member

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Member

David Ussery

Retired

Compensation Committee Member

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Member
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CORPORATE IN FORMATION

TRANSFER AGENT

Inquiries regarding lost stock certificates consolidation of accounts and changes in address name or ownership should be addressed

to American Stock Transfer Trust 59 Maiden Lane New York New York 10038 Domestic telphone 877-777-0800 International

telephone 718-921-8200

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Nu Skin Enterprises 75 West Center Street Provo Utah 84601 Telephone 801-345-2657

COMPANY WEBSITES

Nu Skin Enterprises www.nuskinenterprises.com Nu Skin www.nuskin.com Pharmanex www.pbarmanex.com

ADDITIONAL STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Additional information and news is available at www.nuskinenterprises.com For investor information inquiries annual reports and SEC filings

call 801-345-6100 email spondnuskin.com or write Investor Relations at the corporate headquarters

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report contains forward-looking statements which represent our expectations and beliefs about future events and operating results

as of the date of this report including the outlook for our future performance strategic initiatives and new productt and the underlying

assumptions described in this annual report Words or phrases such as believes expects anticipates plans and similarwords or phrases are

intended to help identify forward-looking statements

The companys financial performance and the forward-looking statements contained herein are further qualified by detailed discussion

of associated risks set forth in the documents filed by the company with the Securities and Exchange Commission including the companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 232011 The foniard-looking statements set forth the companys beliefs as of the date of this

release and the company assumes no duty to update the forward-looking statements contained in this release to reflect any change except

as required by law
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